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Supporting entrepreneurial businesses
to grow and innovate in defence

Cohort plc
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At a glance

We support the businesses within our Group to grow. With a focus on
entrepreneurialism, we foster agility and promote innovation. Our strong
balance sheet provides a stable financial foundation. We create an environment
of trust where our businesses share knowledge to widen market access

and through partnership to open doors globally.

Operational highlights

» |nitial contribution from Chess better

than expected
» Growth at MASS, MCL and SEA
P Weaker performance at EID

» Adjusted operating profit increased 6% and

P Order intake for the year of £189.9m

{2018: £76.6m)

» Dividend increased by 11%
» Closing order book of £190.9m (2018": £103.8m)

eguivalent earnings per share increased 16%

Financial highlights

Adjusted operating profit {Em)'

£16.2m

+9%

ECHE
18! 7 152
17t B 14.4
16! ) 11.7

15 101

2 rzstategment

Our strategy in action

Organic growth

» Consistently grow profits
and cash generation organically
through our subsidiaries.

Cahortplc.com

P Net debt £6.4m following acquisition of Chess

Order intake (Em) Net {debt)/funds (£m)
£189.9m £(6.4)m

+148%

9 "1899  (6.4) 19

18 76.6 18 113

17 1088 17 85

16 948 % 198
15 1143 15 19.7

L oPrar vaar comparal ves have oeen restaran upan the Groun’s acoptian af -FRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts wits Custome-s” Se2note 30 for det1's -ega-ging

Acquisition

»Increase the profitability of the Group
and access new markets through
selective acquisitions,

Maintain confidence
» Ensure good corporate governance and

sound risk management and communicate

what we are doing to investors.

> BUSINESS MODEL PAGES 10-11
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Our businesses

Cohort is the parent company of five innovative, agile and responsive businesses
providing a wide range of products for British, Portuguese and international customers
in defence, security and related markets. Each of the subsidiary companies within the
Group offers a specialist portfolio of unique technologies and services, supplied to
prime contractors and direct to end users.

Chess, founded in 1993, provides advance
integrated systems and technolegies for
detecting, tracking, classifying and disrupting
a wide range of naval, land and air threats.
They design, develop and manufacture
precision stabilised and non-stabilised
platforms, fire control directors and
positioners for electro-optic (EO}, radar,
communication, security, surveltlance

and targeting systems, including a wide
range of cameras and special sensors.

The more complex £Q systems are
integrated and used as part of complete
fire-control systems and may also be
integrated intc vehicle surveillance,
targeting or counter-UAV systems. Chess
aleng with ECS and Bhghter Radar provided
the first fully integrated C-UAV capability
fielded in 2017 and has since gone on 1o
develop and supply multiple systems for
rapid deployment, maobile and fixed
infrastructure protection from UAVs.,

In addition to providing fully verified products,
Chess Dyramics provides a complete service
including survey, installation, documentation,
training, maintenance and support across
its entire product range, from standard
products to bespoke engineering solutions.
They supply equipment, sub-systems and
systems to defence forces and prime
contractors in the UK and overseas, and

on specialist projects direct to the MOD.
Led by Graham Beall, Chess joined the
Cohort Group in 2018.

> READ MORE ON PAGE 20

D DISCOVER MORE AT CHESS-DYNAMICS.COM

EID designs and manufactures advanced
communications systems far the defence
and security markets.

EID 15 a Portuguese high tech company
with deep know -how and long experience
in the fields of electronics, tactical and naval
communications, command and control.

The company focuses on the design,
manufacture and supply of advanced,
high performance equipment and
systems, mainly for the worldwide defence
community. EiD is active globally, with
customers in Europe, Africa, the Middle
East, Asia Pacific and South America.

EiD was founded in 1983 and joined the
Cohort Group in 2016, EID is led by 1ts
Managing Director, Antonio Marcos Lopes.

> READ MORE ON PAGE 21

u DISCOVER MORE AT EID.PT
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MASS is a data technology company with
over 35 years’ heritage serving the defence
and security marketsin the UK and around
the world.

MASS provides electranic warfare operational
support, cyber security, information
management, digital forensics and training
support to military operations, serving
customers primarily in defence and
security markets,

They deliver tailored, integrated solutions
that are critical to customers’ operational
advantage. An intrinsic expertise in data
management, system engineering and
project management enables delivery of
through-life capability in the form of high
technology solutions, training and trusted
managed services, underpinned by a contract
research and development capability.

MASS was established in 1983 and joined
the Cohort Group as a founder member

in 2006. The company haad quarters are
based in Cambridgeshire and the Electronic
Warfare Training Academy is based in
Lincalnshire. MASS 15 led by 1ts Managing
Director Chris Staniey.

> READ MORE ON PAGE 22

n DISCOVER MORE AT MAS5.CO.UK



Applying advanced technology

to protect and secure

D DISCOVER MORE ON OUR SUBSIDIARIES AT
COHORTPLC.COM/QUR-BUSINESSES

Marlborough Communications Limited
(MCL) 15 2 leading supplier of advanced
electronic communications, information
systems and signals intelligence technolcogy
to the defence and security sectors.

MCL utilises an unparalleled and ever-
axpanding internaticnal network of specialist
technology providers, combined with

Its awn bespoke design, engineering and
integration skills, to deliver and support

a diverse portfolio of C41S and ISTAR
capabilities that transform its customers’
ability to deliver effective operations.

The company’s specialist C415 portfoho
includes hearing protection, communication
headsets and radio communication devices,
while its ISTAR capabilities include signals
intelligence and electronic warfare systems,
and UAV and counter-UAV technologies.

The 30-strong company supplies high-
profile customers — including the UK MOD,
government departments, and prime
defence contractors —and is adeprt at
identifying the latest technologies and
capabilities to suit the unigue demands

of each customer it works with.

Founded in 1980 and based in Surrey, UK,
MCL has been part of the Cohort Group
since 2014 and is led by Managing Cirector
Shane Knight.

> READ MORE ON PAGE 23

[1 DISCOVER MORE AT
MARLBOROUGHCOMMS.COM

Cohartple.com

SEA delivers products and services

into the defence, transport and offshore
energy markets using its skills in systems,
software, acoustic and electronics
engineering, supported by a skilled
manufacturing, project management,
production and support team.

In the Maritime domain, its engineering
capabilities cover a wide range of Maritime
Mission Systems requirements, including
communications, torpedo and decoy
launching systems, sonar systems,
Infrastructure and training. In the Land
domain, 1t uses It systems engineering

skills, combined with its knowledge and
understanding of the operations of
dismounted soidiers to provide independent
advice and perform research into future
dismounted saldier systems and applications.
In the transport domain, it uses its skills in
signal processing and software engineering
to deliver complex data management
solutions alongside automated traffic
enforcement systems.

SEA is complementing 3 strong position
inits home market by growing its
business overseas.

SEA was founded in 1969 and joined

the Cohort Group in 2007, SEA 15 located
in the UK in Somerset, Bristel, Devon
and Aberdeenshire, and i1s led by its
Managing Director, Steve Hill.

> READ MORE ON PAGE 24

B DISCOVER MORE AT SEA.CO.UK

Revenue share

X

1. CHESS!
£10.7m
2. €D
£11.5m
3. MASS
£39.0m
4.MCL

£21.7m

5. SEA

£38.3m

1 Five maonts only
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Our markets

Our markets explained

The Cohort Group provides a wide range of services and products for UK and international
customers in the defence and security markets for land, maritime and air applications.

In addition to defence, civil markets are covered including security, transport and the

oil & gas industry.

Total revenue by market segment (£m)

Combat Systems

We provide sclutions to protect valuable
combat assets against threats and execute
missions on land, above and below water,

We provide solutions to enable secure
information exchange and situational

awareness in the battlespace and for
critical infrastructure.

Cyber Security &
Secure Networks

We provide services to ensure critical
and sensitive information infrastructures
are protected and secure.

Training & Simulation

We deliver knowledge, tools and
instruction for people to fearn new skilis
in real, virtual and safe environments,

04 Cohort plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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We nurture agile partnerships
across markets

D DISCOVER MOR ON OUR MARKETS AT
COHDRTPLC.COM/OUR-MARKETS

Total revenue by market segment (£m)

Research, Advice
& Support

We help the armed forces to research,
define, acquire and support the next
generation of capability

intelligent Transport
Systems

We provide systems to manage road
and rail traffic, as well as improve safety.

Subsea Engineering

We provide engineering solutions to help
sustain subsea o and gas production.

Other defence,
non-defence and security

Conortplc.com

19 9.3
18 66

19 9.2

18 53

RENES

18 2.1

19 Tas

1872
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Chairman’s statement
Nick Prest CBE, Chairman

Record order book gives
strong base for the

coming year

“Chess acquired and record revenue,
adjusted operating profit and
order intake.”

2019 highlights

» Cohort achieved a record adjusted operating
profit of £16.2m {2018 restated: £15.2m)

P We acquired an initial 81.84% of Chess in
December 2018, initial contribution better
than expected

> MASS, MCL and SEA achieved growth in
revenue and adjusted operating profit

> Weaker performance at EID

Dividend [pence per ordinary share)

9.10p ...

06 Cohort plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2019

Cohort made further progress in 2019, achieving a
record adjusted operating profit of £16.2m (2018 restated:
£152m). MASS, MCL and SEA all posted increases in
profits and the result also benefitted from the acquisition
of Chess Technologies {Chess) in December 2018,
which performed ahead of our expectations.

These gains were partially offset by a much weaker
performance at €10 caused by lower naval activity
and slippage of deliveries on a major centract inits
Tactical division. As a result, the Group performance,
excluding Chess, was slightly below last year.

We acquired Chess on 12 December 2018 for an initial
consideration of just over £20m for 81.84% of the
business with an option to acquire the remaining

18 16% on or before 31 October 2021 for a maximum
consideration of £9.1m. We also agreed an earn out
with the selling shareholders of Chess of up to £12 7m.
The magnmtude of these further payments will depend
cn the performance of the business over the three years
ending 30 April 2021. Our current view is that the further
consideration payable, including earn out, to take
control of the whole of Chess in 2021 will be £5 5m.

The Chess transaction accords with our strategy of
acquiring businesses, primarilty in the defence and
security sector, with a strang niche capability and
market position. Chess also increases the Group’s
reach and potential in international markets.

We were pleased with the contribution from Chess,
which included order intake, revenue and profit arising
from the deployment of Chess’s Counter Unmanned
Air Vehicle (C-UAV) system at Gatwick just before
Christmas in response to drone flights over the airport.

The Group had a record year for order intake, securing
£189.9m of orders in 2019 (2018: £76.6m}. This intake
included £70m of important renewals, primarily at
MASS, and also some key wins at MCL for submarine
systems and at EID to supply communications
equipment to a Middle East customer.

The acquisition of Chess added a further £20m ta the
Group’s order bock which closed at an all-time high
of £190.9m. This provides a solid base for the coming
financial year and beyond.

Key financials

The 2018 comparative figures have been restated
following adoption by the Group of IFRS 15 “Revenue
from contracts with customers” on 1 May 2018 The
impact of this restatement i1s analysed in note 30 but
overall has been immaterial. The comparative figures
in this report are the restated figures.



In the year ended 30 Aprii 2019, Cohort achieved revenue
of £121.2rm {2018 restated: £110.5m), including £35.0m
{2018: £37.5m) from MASS Consuitants Limited (MASS),
£38.3m (2018 restated: £37.3m) from SEA (Group) Limited
(SEAY, £21.7m (2018: £17.4m) from Marlborough
Communications Limited {(MCL), £11.5m {2018 restated:
£18.3m) from EID and an initial contribution from
Chess for five months of £10.7m.

The Group's adjusted operating profit was £16.2m
(2018 restated: £15 2my}. This included contributions
from MASS of £8.2m (2018: £7.1mj), SEA £5.5m (2018
restated: £4 4mj}, MCL £2.3m {2018: £2.1m)}, EID £1.3m
{2018 restated: £4 3m) and a good nitial performance
atChessof £1.7m.

Cohort Group overheads were £2.8m (2018 £2.7m}.

MASS, which remains the Group’s largest profit
contributor, saw adjusted operating profit grow 15%
on revenue growth of 4%. The enhanced profitability
was a result of improved mix, including increased
export sales.

MCLU's adjusted operating profit grew by 10% on
revenue growth of 25%. The marked revenue growth
was driven by new long-term work on UK submarines,
afthough the high level of bought-in content on that
work and one problem project resulted in MCL's net
margin falling to 10.5% (2018: 11.9%),

After some years of little or no growth at SEA a
restructuring exercise was completed in the first haif
of the financial year, at a cost of £0.5m. As a result,

on modest revenue growth of 3%, SEA’s adjusted
operating profit increased by 25% from £4 4min 2018
irestated) to £5.5min 2019, The resulting net return
of just over 14% is a marked improvement.

EID had a disappointing year with its profitability falling
by nearly 70% from £4.3m in 2018 {restated} to just over
£1.3min 2019. This was a result of a drop in revenue
of nearly 40% and reflected a decline 1n higher margin
naval activity and slippage of deliveries on a major land
communications order into the 2019720 financial year.

Chess’s initial contribution of just under £1.7m on £10.7m
of revenue, 3 net return of 15.8%, was better than we
expected when we acquired the business last December,
primarily due to the contribution from C-UAV systems
and support at two UK airports, including Gatwick,
following drone incursions befare Christmas.

The Group's operating profit of £5.9m (2018 restated:
£10.3m} is stated after recognising amortisation of
intangible assets of £9.5m (2018: £5.3m), exceptional
items of £1.5m (2018, £0.1m} and research and
development expenditure credits of £0.7m (2018: £0.7m).
Net foreign exchange gains of less than £0.1m (2018:
net loss of £0.3m} were also recognised. Profit before
tax was £5.7m {2018 restated: £10.2m) and profit after
tax was £5.1m (20123 restated: £8.1m).

Cohartplc.com

Supporting
London Gatwick
with Counter-UAV
technology

Between 19 and 22 December 2018, London Gatwick Airport
was subject to a sustained drone attack that closed its rumways
for 32 hours, causing abeut 1,000 flights to be cancelled

or delayed

By 21 December, Chess had signed contracts and the AUDS
C-UAV system was set up and operational at the airport within
a few days. The system remains in place as part of the ongeing
secunty solution deploved by London Gatwick Airport.

The AUDS C-UAV solution is a system that has been specifically
developed for use by the military and has been deployed
by defence organisations to support major operations in
the Middle East and elsewhere. The AUDS system 1s
currently delivered through a partnership with three
independent British technology companies, Chess
Dynamics, Enterprise Control Systems Ltd {ECS) and
Bhighter Surveilllance Systems Ltd.

Stewart Wingate, Chief Executive Officer, Gatwick Airport,
commented: “Chess’s anti-drone technology and their
ability to move guickly and work closely with the airport’s
security teams were vital in allowing Gatwick to reopen
without the support of the military after the airport was
attacked in December 2018.

“The anti-drone technology and package of ongoing
support provided by Chess Dynamics has also given
Gatwick the resilience that a busy international airport
needs in order to minimise and mitigate the potential
threat from drones.”

Graham Beall, Managing Director of Chess, commented:
“We continue to work with Gatwick Airport on an ongoing
basis providing both technology and consultancy support.
An airport 1s 2 complex environment and has a unique set
of requirements and, as such, the technology deployed 15
bespoke to the customer’s specific reguirements. However,
our extensive experience with the AUDS C-UAV technology
in the military environment has given us the credibility and
technical capability to support Gatwick.”

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cohort plc
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Chairman’s statement continued

Key financials continued

Adjusted earnings per share (EPS) were 33.60 pence
(2018 restated: 29.08 pence). The adjusted EPS figure
was based upon profit after tax, excluding amortisation of
other intangible assets, net foreign exchange movements
and exceptional items. Basic EPS were 13 37 pence
(2018 restated: 18.95 pence}. The adjusted EPS
benefitted from a lower tax charge on adjusted
earnings of just over 15% (2018: 21%).

Dividends

The Board is recommending a final dividend of £.25 pence
per ordinary share (2018: 5.65 pence), making a total
dividend of 9.10 pence per crdinary share (2018:

8.20 pence) for the year, an 11% increase. This will

be payable on 18 September 2019 to shareholders on
the register at 23 August 2019, subject to approval at
the Annual General Meeting on 17 September 2019.
The growth in our dividend reflects our palicy of bringing
the dividend growth into line with our long-term growth
expectations of the Group. The dividend has now been
increased every year since the Group's IPO in 2006,

Cash

The Group moved Into a net debt position following
the acquisition of Chess. The closing net debt of

£6.4m {2018: net funds of £11.3m) was better than
our expectation, as a result of improved working capital,
partly from accelerated receipts but also from lower
supplier payments as a result of programme delays.

The £16.2m (2018 restated: £15.2m) of adjusted operating
profit and an overall working capital outflow resulted in
£11.6m (2018: £15.1m inflow) operating cash inflow,

The operating cash inflow was utilised in paying tax,
dividends and capital investment, a total outflow
of £8.2m (2018: £5.5m)}, as well as acguiring Chess
{£21.0m including acquired net debt).

Looking forward we expect net debt to rise over the
first half of the coming financial year as the positive
timing advantage 1n working capital unwinds before
returning to a similar ievel of net debt at the year end.
With ne other acguisitions we would expect the Group
to move back into net funds during the year ended

30 April 2021,

Board, management and staff

As always, my thanks go to all staff within the businesses.
Their bard work, skill and ability to deliver what the
customer needs are what continues to drive the
performance of cur Group.

il Cohort ple Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Andy Thomis and his senior executive colleagues have
continued therr dedicated and skilful work which has
helped the Group to progress in the face of challenging
trading conditions in parts of the defence market

| also welcome the management and staff of Chess to
the Cohort Group. They showed the importance our
people attach to playing therr part when deploying at
short notice, for long shifts, to assist Gatwick Airport
to continue to gperate over the Christmas period.

As previously announced Ed Lowe joined the Board of
Cohort plc on 1 duly 2019, fulfiiling the plan anncunced
last year to appeint a new Non-executive Director,

Ed has great experience in the defence sector and ! look
forward to his contribution to the Board and business.

Ed has jomed the Audit Committee and taken over from
Sir Robert Walmsley as Chairman of the Remuneration
& Appointments Committee. Sir Robert has stepped
down from both commuttees after serving on them
since 2006, | am grateful for all the work he has put
into these roles and the Board Is pleased that he is
continuing to serve as a Non-executive Director. His
experience of the defence sector has been and continues
to be of great benefit. Jeff Perrin has taken over fram
Sir Robert in the rcle of Senior Independent Director,

Qutlook
Markets

The political and economic context within which Cohort
operates has not changed appreciably since last year.
On the one hand the international and domestic security
environment calls for greater resources to be devoted
to defence and counter-terrarism in the UK and many
other countries. On the other hand, the pressures on
public expenditure in the UK are strong and this applies
in varying degrees in many other markets

Although the UK defence market remains tight, the
Cohort businesses have strong and relevant capabilities,
established positions on some key long-term UK MGOD
programmes, and a good pipeline of new opportunities.
Export prospects for the Group continue to develop
and the acguisition of Chess has strengthened our
position in this respect. OQutside of defence, MASS
made progress on its digital forensics service for the
Metrapalitan Police and is now actively promoting
this service to police and security forces in the UK and
overseas. SEA's ROADflow product made further
progress with significant deliveries of its Red Light
system to Network Rail for improving safety at

lavel crossings

As already mentioned, Chess has deployed its C-UAY
system at major UK airports and has recently developed
its product offering for this market and is looking for
customers in the UK and overseas.



Our business from the UK into EU countries rermains small
1£1.4min 2019, £1 4min 2018}, and consequently we
do not expect any direct effects upon Cohort fram
the Brexit process, In the longer term there could be
indirect effects, resulting from the broad economic
and political consequences of Brexit, and the future
defence and security relationship that develops
between the UK and the EU. Whether these will be
favourable or unfavourable is not possible to say.

The responsibility of the Cohert Board 15 to manage
our affairs so that our busmesses prosper whatever
the political and economic backdrop.

Our collective experience of the defence business,
our size and our decentralised management structure,
which together enable us to make quick decisions, and
our focus on niche product and service offerings, for
which demand is increasing both domestically

and internationally, are the keys to this.

We continue to look for opportunities to augment
organic growth through targeted acquisitions

Divisional

Our strong order intake of nearly £190m and a closing
order book of nearly £191m give us a strong base for
the coming financial year

We expect MASS, with a record order book, to make
progress in the coming year.

MCL had a slightly weaker closing order book than
iast year but has good opportunities in key UK land
programmes and we expect MCL to make progress.

SEA, after restructuring in the current year, has set its
overhead base at a more appropriate level for a business
with revenue at just below £40m. SEA enters the coming
year with lower order cover than we have seen historically,
and we expec?, at best, to see a flat year for SEA in
2019/20 Locking into the mid-term, SEA is 1in a good
position for a number of overseas naval programmes
and success in these will enable SEA to return to
growth from 2020/21 onwards.

After a weak year, £ID has a strong order book and expects
to secure some important long-term Portuguese orders
in the first half of this coming year. This gives us confidence
that EID will return to a satisfactory level of performance
this year.

We expect the Group to benefit from a full year
contribution from Chess, albeit at a lower annualised
level than the five month contribution to 2018/19 would
suggest. That period was stronger than expected
because of C-UAY orders. Locking further ahead Chess
has strong positions and potential on a range of naval
and land programmes with significant customers.

Cohortplc.com

Our record order intake of nearly £190m and an all
time high closing order book of £191m gives us a
strong base for the coming financial year We also
have a good pipeline of prospects.

Overall, we expect the Group to continue 0 make
progress in the coming year and beyond, taking into
consideration the budgetary risks of our main UK
customer, the timing of exports and the strong
opening order book

Nick Prest CBE
Chairman

Our core values are integral
in uniting our business

We helieve in playing our part

We dedicate our expertise to advancing
defence technology. It is our contribution
to national interest and security, protecting
people and keeping them safe. It is our way
of making a difference. We work at the
highest levels of strategic capability and
take great pride in our collective expertise.

We believe in being results driven
tf we say we will do something, then we
will do it By being an agile group of smart
thinkers, with the ability to create solutions
and the tenacity to see things through. We
are interested, committed and personally
invested in purposeful technology that
delivers and makes good commercial sense.

We believe in

independent thinking

Small teams do big things when they have
the autoncmy to think and to see the bigger
picture. When they’re given the space

and encauragement to explore, free of
unnecessary process.

Independent thinking and an entrepreneurial
spirt help us inspire each other to find better
ways of working and create the conditions
for new 1deas to unfold. It's how we come
to better understand the challenges before
us and adapt swiftly to reach the most
effective solutian.

READ MORE ABOUT HOW WE PUT
) THESE VALUES INTO ACTION ON PAGE 34

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cohort pic
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Business model

Innovative, responsive and independent
businesses combined with the benefits

of a listed group

Our mission is clear: To build and operate a group of companies applying
advanced technology in defence, security and related markets and combining
the innovation and responsiveness of smaller, independent businesses with the
stability, shared knowledge, wider market access and lower funding costs of a
listed group to provide enduring benefits to customers, employees and shareholders.

Our business model

Significant competitive advantages

Being part of the Cohort Group brings significant advantages
to our businesses compared with cperating independently:
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A clear acquisition approach

We believe that there are good businesses in the UK and
overseas that would thrive under Cohort ownership,
whether as standalone members of the Group or as bolt-in
acquisitions to pur existing subsidiaries.
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How we create value

Investors Customers and partners

Shareholder returns
» We are committed to delivering value

Cur engagement principles
» Our engagement principles show

People

Our values
» Our capabilities and customer

to sharehaolders and ensuring that
they benefit from our success.

A clear strategy for growth

Organic growth

Consistently grow
profits and cash
generation organically

through our subsidiaries.

Delivered through:
» A focus on trusted delivery
to our customers.

» Encouraging innovation
and responsiveness.

» [dentifying and pursuing
growth opportunities.

» Developing high quality
leadership teams and a high
performance culture.

what our customers and stakeholders
can expect from us when they come

to the Cohort Group for support.

Acquisition

Increase the
profitability of the
Group and access new
markets through
selective acquisitions.

Delivered through:

P Proactive engagement with
businesses that can add value
to the Group.

P Maintaining a strong
acquisition team.

» Demonstrating a structure
and culture that 1s attractive
to potential sellers.

We support businesses within our Group to grow

ﬂ DISCOVER MOREAT COHORTPLC.COM/STRATEGY

Cohortple.com

relationships all ultimately derive fram
our people. Across the Cohort Group,
employees can fulfil their potential,
develop their careers, make a difference
and feel rewarded for what they do.

Maintain confidence

Ensure good corporate
governance and sound
risk management and

communicate what we
are doing to investors.

Delivered through:

> A framework of financial
control, strategy review,
performance management
and leadership developmen:.

» Clear and consistent
communication.

» An ability to act fast
if problems arise.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cohort plc
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Key performance indicators

Measuring our progress

Change in
revenue

Changes in toral Group revenue
compared to the prior year.

Change in adjusted
operating profit

Change in Group operating
profit before exceptional items,
amortisation of other intangible
assets, research and development
expenditure credits and non-
trading exchange differences,
including marking forward
exchange contracts to market.

Order book
visibility

Orders for the next financial
year expected to be delivered
as revenue, presented as a
percentage of consensus

market revenue forecasts
for the year.

Change in adjusted
earnings per share

Annual change in earnings per
share, before exceptional
items, amortisation of other
intangible assets and non-
trading exchange differences
ncluding marking forward
exchange contracts to market,
all met of tax

6%

10%

1 10%
(2)% 18
17_1%

19 6%
18 6%
17 o 23%

55%

|19 s
[18 46%:
|17 5%

Why is it measured?
Revenue growth gives a
quantified indication of the rate
at which the Group’s business
actwity 1s expanding over time.

Why is it measured?

The adjusted operating profit
trend provides an indication of
whether additional revenue is
being gamed without profit
margins being compromised
and whether any acquisitions
are value enhancing.

Why is it measured?
COrder book visibility, based
upon expected revenue during
the year to come, provides a
measure of canfidence in the
kelihcod of achievement

of future forecasts.

Why is it measured?
Change in adjusted earnings
per share is an absolute
measure of the Board's
management of the Group’s
return to shareholders net
of tax and interest.

Comment

The Group revenue increased as
3 result of the initial contribution
from Chess (£10.7m for five
months}). Excluding Chess,

the underlying Group revenue
was flat at just over £110m
This year saw growth in all

of the Group's UK operations
offset by a marked drop at

EID in Partugal.

Comment

The increase was, as for
revenue, due to the initial
contribution from Chess. The
underlying Group performance
was down 5% on the 2018
frestated) performance with
much weaker EID performance
offsetting growth at MASS,
MCL and SEA. The net margin
of the Group was 13.3%

{2018 restated: 13.8%).

I Cowver or corsersds market forecast 2020 revenue of £146 Om at 30 Apr 2029

2 Cover or carsensJds market forecast 2019 revenue of £118 Om et 30 Aorl 2018

3 Cowver ar zonsonsds market forecast 2018 revenue of £227 Sm at 30 Apnl 2017
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Comment

After very strong order intake
n 2018/19, the order book
cover for 2019/20 is back over
530%. The coming year includes
important order prospects for
delivery in year but more
importantly for the

medium term.

Comment

The increase in adjusted earnings
per share is due to a growth in
adjusted operating profit of 6%
and a lower tax charge, 15.1%
compared with 21.0% in 2018
{restated) The changein the
tax charge is due mamnly to
research and develcpment
credits at EID as a result of
increased development
expenditure in year.



Operating cash
conversion

Net cash generated from
operations {net of interest

and net capital expenditure)
before tax as compared to the
profit before tax and interest,
excluding amortisation of other
intangible assets over a rolling
four-year period.

72%

N 105%

17 98%

Why is it measured?
Operating cash conversion
measures the ability of the
Group to convert profit
intoc cash.

Comment

As we expected last year, this
year’s operating cash conversion
has been weaker than the last
few years, primarily from the
build-up of working capital

on some larger programmes,
especially at SEA and EID.
These may not unwing unt!

the second half of 2019/20.

The reduction is also 1n part due
to dropping 2014/15 from the
four year roiling forecast, which
was a very strong operating
cash inflow at over twice the
profit before tax and
intangibles for that year.

Cohortplc.com

We commit to mission critical effectiveness

Portuguese Army
accreditations

EID's Intercom Systems have been awarded with the highly
prized "Army Tested” accreditation by the Portuguese Army.
Additionally, the Portuguese Army has selected EIC to be
the first ever company to have equipment granted “Combat
Proven” accreditation. The “Army Tested” accreditation was
introduced in 2017 and indicates that the equipment or
system complies with specific reguirements cutlined by the
Portuguese Army. The “Combat Proven” accreditation was
introduced in 2018. Building on the “Army Tested” compliance,
it is awarded to equipment or a system that has successfully
been deployed in action in a live military scenario,

In 2018 the “Army Tested” accreditation was awarded to
EID’s ICC-251 Compact Intercom System, [CC-201 IP Intercom
System and GRC-525 family of combat net radio products.

The “Combat Proven” accreditation was awarded to EID
following the Portuguese Army's recent NATO and UN
missions abroad. The GRC-525 radw and 1CC-201 intercom
Systems, installed on the Pandur Il and other armoured
vehicles, have proved to be effective, rehable and instrumental
to the overall success of the Army’s operations.

The awards were prasented to FID Managing Director
Antdnio Marcos Lopes by the Chuef of Staff Army, General
Nunes da Fonseca, and the Defense Secretary of State,
Ana Santos Pinto,

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cohort plc
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Business review

Andrew Thomis, Chief Executive, and Simon Walther, Finance Director

Record order intake

2019 has been another year of

progress for Cohort, with a record

level of adjusted operating profit
and record closing order book.”

2019 highlights

» The Group's adjusted operating profit of
£16.2m (2018 restated : £15.2m) on revenue
of £121.2m (2018 restated®. £110.5m) was a net
return of 13.3% (2018 restated : 13.8%)

P IMASS remains the strongest contrnbutor to the
Group's adjusted operating profit and saw
continued growth

» Cohort acquired 81.84% of Chess, and the new
business made a strong initial contribution

» MCL and SEA both improved their performance

» EiD had a weaker year

L Prior year comparalives have geen resiated cpon e Group's
adapnar of IFRS 15 "Revenue “rom Cortracts with Custormers”
See note 30 for detaiis regarding tne restatemcnt
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Operating review

2018/19 has been another year of progress far Cohort,
with a record level of revenue, adjusted operating
profit and order intake. Revenue grew by 10%. Both
revenue and adjusted operating profit benefited from
a strong initial five-maonth contribution from Chess,
which was acquired in December 2018

All of the Group’s existing UK businesses delivered
growth in revenue and adjusted operating profit The
improvement at SEA was in part due to the restructuring
we announced last year, which was completed in the
first half of this year.

However, these improvements were offset by the
performance at EID whose revenue was down 40%
and adjusted operating profit down 70%. As a result,
the Group, excluding Chess, produced a mixed
performance with revenue flat year on year at
£110.5m and trading profit down £0.7m {5%).

The Group's adjusted operating profit grew by 6% to
£16.2m {2018 restated-: £15.2m) on revenue of £121.2m
{2018 restated": £110.5m), a net return of just under
13.3% ({2018 restated’: 13 8%}. The Group’s operating
profit of £5.9m (2018 restated*: £10.3m} 15 significantly
impacted by the amortisation of other intangible assets,
a £9.5m charge in 2019 (2018: £5.3m). In this review,
therefore, the focusis on the adjusted operating profit
af each business, which we consider to be a more
appropriate measure of performance year on year.
The adjusted operating profit is reconciled to the
operating profit in the Consolidated income statement
on page 67 and by business in note 1 cn pages 73

to 75.

Adjusted operating profit by subsidiary

Adjustas operating arohit

Adpastet op2ialng margin

2013 2018
2019 [rosraredy Chaw&e 2019 restirad-)

£m I % %

Chess 1.7 — — 15.8 —
EID 1.3 4.3 {70) 11.8 236
MASS 8.2 7.1 15 21.0 18.9
MCL 23 2.1 10 10.5 11.9
SEA 5.5 44 25 14.3 11.8
Central costs {2.8) (2.7 {4) - —
16.2 152 6 13.3 13.8




The growth at MASS was mainly due to growth in
electronic warfare operational support {EWO0S) to
overseas customers and one-off margin benefit on
completion of a long-term support contract. A new
contract, won in competition, was subsequently received
to continue this work This growth in higher margin
areas offset weaker activity in Training Support.

MCL delivered strong revenue growth, mostly on the
supply of systems to the UK submarine programme.
An overall higher level of bought-in content on this
work and one poorly performing project accounted
for the reduction in MCl's net margin from 11.9% last
year to 10.5% this year.

After some difficult years, SEA delivered a 3% growth
in revenue and a much improved adjusted operating
profit of £5.5m, up 24% on 2018 {£4.4m). Some of this
improvement was a result of the restructuring in the
first half which delivered £0.6m of overhead saving

in the second half. This was somewhat ahead of our
expectation of an annuatised saving of £1.0m

The remainder of the profit growth was a result of
improved margin, partly a result of a loss-making contract
being completed in late 2017/18 and no losses repeated
in 2018/19.

EID had a disappointing year. Its adjusted operating
profit of just over £1.3m on revenue of £11.5m was
significantly down on last year’s £4.3m on £18.3m
revenue {2018 figures were restated for IFRS 15;
see note 301

The reduction at EID was in both 1ts Tactical and Naval
divisions In Tactical, this was due to slippage into 2015/20
of a significant delivery due to have been made in the
last quarter of the vear.

In the Naval division, various customer driven delays
and shppage of orders accounted for the weaker activity.

The more marked deteraration in profitability at EID
is due to the burden of the business overhead.

Chess delivered a good initial contribution for its first
five months within the Group. [ts performance was
stronger than we had expected last December and
was a result of the C-UAV systems it deployed, along
with support personnel, at two UK airports, including
Gatwick, over the Christmas period.

Cohortplc.com

Revenue share

Defence & security (Em)

£106.5m

+8%

Transport (Em)

£9.2m

Other commercial {including offshore
energy) (Em)

£5.5m

18 o 7o

1 Prigryear comparatives hzve been restated cpor
the Groun's adapiior of IFAS 15 "Revente from
Contracts wilh Castomers” See naote 30 for dela Iy
regarding the restatement
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Business review continued

Operating review continued

Operating strategy

Cohort operates as a group of five mediwum-sized
husinesses, aperating primarily in defence and secunity
markets, and with a strong emphasis on technology,
innovation and specialist expertse:

» Chess Technologies (Chess) 1s a combination of
two businesses:

> Chess Dynamics
> Visiondce

b Chess Dynamics designs, deveiops, manufactures
and supports a range of surveillance, detecting and
tracking systems for naval and land-based platforms
and installations. This capability includes C-UAV systems
for countering dranes in both the military and civilian
environment. Chess Dynarmics is based in Horsham
and Plymouth.

Visiondce s a software house based in Wokingham
which designs, develops and supplies tracking and
control software for both Chess Dynamics products
and systems and third-party apphcations.

Chess was founded in 19932 by Graharn Beail,
its Managing Director.

» EID 15 a high-tech company with 35 years’ expernence in
the design, manufacture and support of advanced high
performance command, control and communications
equipment for the globa! defence and security
markets. The Royal Navy 1s amongst the customers
for its naval communications systems, as are the navies
of Portugal, the Netherlands, Spain and Belgium, and
many other export customers. In total its martime
products equip over 120 warships worldwide, and
1ts army products have also enjoyed wide domastic
and export success.

EID operates through two market-facing divisions:

» Naval Communications: integrated comrnand,
control and communications systems far warships
and submarines; and

P Tactical Communications: tactical radio, vehicle
intercoms, field communications and
networking equipment.

These divisions are supported by an internal
production and logistics unit. £1D operates from an
engineering facility near Lisbon and has a regional
office in Indonesia. Itis led by its Managing Director,
Antonio Marcos Lopes.
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» MASS 15 a business which enables customers to
better protect, analyse and interpret data to provide
valuable information. It s a leading international
provider in the fields of electronic warfare (EW) and
securs communications, including cyber security.

Its products include the THURBON™ EW database
and 1t provides EW operational support services to
customers in the UK and overseas MASS has some
unique capabilities that have enabled it to establish
strong niche positions in these important areas.

It also has an Increasing reputation as a leading
provider of secure networks, cyber protection and
analysis (including digital forensics) to defence and
other security customers, MASS delivers training
support and simulation to the UK’s Joint Forces
Command, a service the Group has provided for
over 15 years. MASS was founded in 1983 and

is led by its Managing Director, Chnis Stanley.

> MCL s a supplier of advanced electronic
communications equipment (including hearing
orotection systems), information systems and
signals intelligence technology, to defence and
security customers. It sources technologies from
a global supplier network, as well as developing
and supplying its own solutions MCL has a reputation
for being flexible and agile in creating effective,
mission deployabile solutions for customers inthe
most challenging of timeframes. MCL was founded
in 1980 and 15 led by its new Managing Directar,
Shane Knight. MCL's former Managing Director,
Darren Allery, remains in the business on a part-time
basis having stepped back into a more technical role
and remains a valued member of the MCL team.

» SEA specialises in providing advanced technology
systems and specialist services to government and
industry. lts External Communications System (ECS)
is being provided for the Royal Navy's Astute and
Vanguard class submarines and will ultimately
he fitted to all the Royal Navy's underwater flast.
Its products include sonar systems and torpedo
launchers. It also offers defence technology research
and technical support services. Outside of defence,
It provides software and systems for the transport
market, including the successful ROADflow range
of traffic enforcement products, and services for
the offshore energy market. SEA was founded in
1969 and is ted by 1ts Managing Directar, Steve Hill.

Cohort's management approach is to allow its subsidiary
businesses a significant degree of operational autonomy
in order to develop their potential fully, while providing
light-touch but ngorous financial and strategic controls



at Group level. Our expertence 1s that our customers
prefer to work with businesses where decision making
Is streamlined and focused on solving their immediate
problems This model provides us with a degree of
competitive advantage over some larger rivals where
the decision making process can be more extended.
Itis also cost effective as it avoids the need for additional
layers of management involved in coordination activities
and for a large headquarters team. High calibre employees
find cur busimess model attractive and more rewarding
as it allows them to be involved In decisions affecting
the business, even at a relatively junior level, rather
than being constrained to a narrow or purely technical
role. This positions us well with customers where such
attributes are highly valued.

Although the degree of autonomy our subsidiary
businesses enjoy is high, and we believe that this is
an effective operational strategy, we take a practical
view of the best way forward when circumstances
change. When the operational situation is such that

a merger, restructuring or even sale is necessitated,
we will act and have acted in the best interests of the
wider Group and its shareholders.

Within our markets we have sought to use our agility
and innovation to identify niches where prospects

are attractive and where we have some sustainable
competitive advantage. These can be for products,
services or high value one-off projects to design
bespoke eguipment or software. Examples include
MASS's electronic warfare operational support offerings,
SEA's ECS for submarines, MCL's range of hearing
protection systems and Chess'’s recent Air Shield and
Air Guard solutions for countering drones at airports.
We have also been active in finding new customers
for the capabilities we have developed, both in export
markets and for non-defence purposes. During the
recent year we have continued to widen the customer
base for our THURBON EW database, our torpedo
launcher system and our small diameter sonar

array (Krait).

Being part of the Cohort Group brings advantages to
our businesses compared with operating independently.
The Group's strong balance sheet gives customers

the confidence to award large or long-term contracts
that we are technically well able to execute but which
might otherwise be perceived as risky. One example

is @ £50m plus in-service support contract awarded to
MASS this year, a renewal of a contract we have been
perfarming for over 15 years. Others include approximately
£80m of contracts awarded to SEA, so far, for ECS
across the UK's submarine platforms, over £30m of
orders won by MCL for supply and support of hearing
protection systems across a range of UK military users,
and a recent single order of £15m for supply of
systems across the UK submarine fleet.

Cohortple.com

We nurture agile partnerships

Delivering global
success

A key elernent of SEA’s growth strategy has been to
develop werld-leading products to meet the demands
of the overseas market.

Tailoring cur offering and business model in local areas
is vital to the success of cur export strategy, allowing us
to deliver products and services in an appropriate and
effective way whilst gaining valuable insight for future
product development. For example, in Southeast Asia
we have built a network of trusted representatives

who have in-depth market knowledge, together with

an understanding of the best methods to gain market
entry and bring new product development to the end user
This allows us to leverage market presence and develop
existing contracts in countries such as Malaysia, the
Philippines, Thalland and South Korea

Strategic partnerships with suitable approved companies
to rmeet specific needs of local programmes s an ongoing
success story. In 2018 we signed a Mol with Daronmant
Technologies to pursue the SEA1000 and SEAS0Q0 submarine
and naval shiptuilding programmes in Australia In Canada,
we formed ajoint venture company J5K 1n 2014, in partnership
with a local defence SME, Kaycom, to meet the needs of
cur ongoing support activities for the Canadian Victoria class
submarines, and to position ourselves for the Canadian
Surface Combatant (CSC) programme. Most recently, we
have signed an Mol with SIATT in Brazil to meet the indigenous
content for the Tamandare corvette programme.

We are able to partner with other subsidiaries within the
Cohort Group, including EID and MASS. These valuable
collaborations allow SEA ta offer a wider range of products
and total solutions packages to the international market
and, as a result, we have active contractsin Canada, Chile,
the US, Australia, Malaysia, Thailand, the Philippines and
Vietnam to supply our launcher and sonar systems.

Annual Report and Accaunts 2019 Cohort plc
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Business review continued

Operating review continued

Operating strategy continued

The Group's Directars have long experience of operating
in the defence sector and have contacts and working
relationships with senior customers in the UK and
internationally, which would be hard for independent
smaller businesses to establish. Our current four UK
operating businesses, while remaining operationally
independent, have close working relationships and
benefit from each other’s technical capabilities, custemer
relationships and market knowledge. We have made
further progress in the year on ensuring that EID
participates in this collaborative approach and bringing
Chess fully into the Group. In the case of Chess, SEA
was able to find and deploy ex-service personnel to
support Chess’s C-UAV solution at two major UK airports,
ncluding Gatwick, in the final quarter of the financial
year. We will continue to work to promote the Group’s
services and products in wider markets, including
through business development visits. In the past year,
Andy Thomis has led visits of both UK and Portuguese
teams to Southeast Asia and Canada. Plans are in place
for a team visit to Australia later this year, and a large
combined presence at the DSt exhibition in London.

Cooperation between the Group businesses has
extended to the sharing of technology. For example,
SEA and EID continue to work together on developing
asecure communication system for the Royal Navy's
new Type 31 Frigate, bringing together EID’s expertise
in surface ship communications with SEA’s knowledge
of the UK and especially its security reguirements.
They are also collaborating on an important trial

of SEA's new anti-subimanne warfare system, based
on its small diameter sonar array [Krait) with the
Portuguese Navy, which will take place this summer.

These strategies have allowed us to grow our profit

at a ime when UK defence expenditure, gur largest
source of revenue, has been tightly constrained. They
have also generated long-term customer relationships
and good opportunities that give us confidence that
we can continue to prosper, despite the current
difficult and unpredictable market conditions,

Innovation and technology

With the acguisitions of EID and Chess and the evolving
strategy at SEA, the Group has become mare focused
on technology development ta enhance its product and
service offerings. One of the benefits cf Cohort’s operating
model is the freedam it gives to our subsidiaries, and
this in turn leads to a cuiture of technological innovation.

Chess, the newest member of the Group, has a histery
of successful innovation that has created a portfolio
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of products with real competitive advantage in terms
of both performance and price. For instance, the AUDS
C-UAV system, developed by Chess and its partners
Blighter and ECS, is the only such system in service
with the US armed forces. Since the disruption at
Gatwick Airport caused by malicious drone use in
December 2018, Chess has developed Air Guard and
Air Shield, new C UAV systems designed to protect
complex civilian airports within their perimeter and
along the aircraft approach path. Chess’s subsidiary
husiness Visiondce has supported C-UAV deveiopment
with work on high-performance optical tracking and
systems to discriminate hostile drones from birds

and aircraft using machine learning techniques. Chess
has close partnerships with world-leading defence
technology businessesin the UK and world-wide to
create new and innovative products and systems.

EID, our Portuguese military communications business,
15 Investing 1in a new vehicle intercom system, based

on a resiient architecture and incorporating advanced
technology. It provides a capability matched by very
few competitor systems at a much more attractive price,
EID 15 preparing to supply the system to its first customers
n 2019/20.

At SEA considerable development effort has been
focused an the Krait Defence System, an innovative new
submarine detection and tracking system cptimised
for use with light naval vessels. The system s now In
its second generation. The use of digital transducers
makes construction simpler and more reliable and enables
the production of longer arrays, with increased sensitivity
and bearing accuracy It will take part in major customer
trials this year, and the future development strategy
will be reviewed in light of the results. SEA has also
been investing in the development of its ROADflow
family of traffic enforcement systems. New variants
launched recently include Red Light for level crossing
protection, Motien for moving traffic offences, and
Fusion, a medular multi-purpose version.

Much of the development effort at MASS and MCL 15
related to security classified programmes, but innovation
activities are underway in both businesses. In MASS’s
case this includes enhancements to the CounterworX
suite of missile engagement simulation software and
the NEWTS electronic warfare training system. MCL works
with its partners cn innovations to support close combat
soldiers, special farces and signals intelligence users

Many of the Group’s innovative products will be on
display at the DSEl exhitation in London in September 2019.
We welcome current and future customers, partners and
Investors to visit our stands there.



Acquisitions

Alongside our organic growth strategy, we continue to
see opportunities to accelerate our growth by making
further targeted acquisitions. We believe that there
are good businesses in the UK and averseas that would
thrive under Cohort ownership, whether as standalone
members of the Group or as “bolt-in” acquisitions to
our existing subsidiaries.

The most likely candidates for bolt-in acguisitions
are businesses with capabilities and/or customer
relationships that are closely linked to one of our
existing subsidiaries. We would expect to integrate
an acquired business of this nature fully within the
relevant subsidiary. This could lead to both cost
savings and henefits from shared access to markets
and technologies. The J+5 acquisition by SEA In
2014/15 is a good example of this.

For standatone acquisitions we are looking for agile,
innovative businesses that have reached a stage of
development where there will be mutual benefitin
joining Cohort. 1115 hkely that candidates will be
operating in the defence and security markets either
in the UK or nternationally, as that 1s where the Group
can add most value Growth prospects, sustainable
competitive advantage and the ability to operate as
part of a publicly quoted UK group will all be important

On 12 December 2018, we announced the acquisition
of 81.84% of Chess for an initial consideration of just
over £20m.

The acquisition includes an earn-out clause and an option
for acquining the minonty interest (18.16%), both based
on Chess’s performance for the three years ending

30 April 2021. These additional payments are cappead
at £12.7m and £9.1m respectively. We currently expect
to pay £5.5m 1n total on or before 31 October 2021

The acquisition model for Chess is very similar to that
successfully used for the acquisition of MCL, where we
initially acguired 50% in 2014 and the remainder in 2017,

The acquisition of Chess, although a competitive process,
was a business we knew well having first held discussions
with the owners of Chess in 2013,

Chess fits well with our acquisition strategy and
importantly increases the Group's exposure to scalable
product and systems and export customers, including
the first significant relationship with the US Department
of Defence (DoD).

Cohartpic.com

We nurture agile partnerships

Extensive support
to large-scale
training exercises

MASS Training Support Group has provided large-scale
training support te several major Joint Forces exercises,
including Exercises SAIF SARFEA 3, the largest UK deployed
exercise for nearly 20 years, where 5,500 UK personnei
deployed ta Oman to work alongside their Omani counterparts
across air, land and maritime environments.

They also provided fully tailored packages for JOINT
VENTURE 19 in Germany, part of a much larger US/Europe
command led, multi-site, large-scale exercise and Exercise
JOINT HORIZON 19, held simultaneously inthe UK and
Cyprus In addition, to simulation exercise support for the
UK Air Command, Joint Services Command & Staff College
in the UK and the National Defence College in Oman.

MASS has been providing real-life and simulation based
training exercise support for many years in both the UK
and overseas, through carefully tallored packages in areas
covering: scenano writing, planning, real-ife support, subject
rmatter experts at both military and diplomatic levels, staff
support and cbservers to assist with the post-exercise review,
and realistic, scalable simulation systems.

Annrual Repart and Accounts 2019 Cohart plc
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usiness review continued
ivisional review

Revenue

£10.7m

{2019: 5 months)

Adjusted operating profit

£1.7m

(2018: 5 months)

Operating cash flow

£1.3m

{2019: 5 months)

Market areas
» Combat Systems

» C4ISTAR

DISCOVER MORE AT CHESS5-DYNAMICS.COM

Cohort plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Chess had a good start to its life within Cohort.

It delivered a much stronger result than we expected
in December, benefiting fram the deployment of C-UAV
systems at two UK airports, including Gatwick, in response
to drone incidents just before Christmas.

Chess gave an excellent demonstration of the Group’s
values in delivering this response. Chess staff were
deployed at short notice, providing 24-hour cover
over the Christmas and New Year holidays. A further
positive for the Group was SEA being able to supply
expert operational staff to relieve Chess’s own
stretched resources.

Chess secured and undertook initial deliveries of further
C-UAV systems to the US DoD, as well as continuing to

deliver on longer-term programmes for the Royal Navy's
Type 26 frigate and an export land system.

Qurinitial experience has confirmed that Chess is

a good strategic fit for the Group. Chess is a leading
suppher within 1ts market and has a strong ethos

of innovation and responsiveness.

Chess has grown rapidly over the last few years which
has caused it some growing pains, especially in project
control and dehvery. Cohort will work with Chess's
management aver the coming year to strengthen its
management and control processes to ensure that
Chess can successtully grow whilst stitl maintaining

its agility and innovative approach.

Chess’s arder book and prospects, especiglly on some
significant overseas land and naval programmes, give
us optimism that Chess will grow in the coming year.



Revenue

£11.5m ..

19 1S
T -5 U

Adjusted operating profit

£1.3m ..

19
18 4.3

Operating cash flow

£(1.7)m ...

Market areas
P Combat Systems

» CAISTAR

1 2ripr year comparatives have beenrestated unon e
Group's adoptior of ITRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” See note 30 for details regarding
the restatement

[0 oiscOVER MORE AT EID.PT

Cohortplc.com

Following two strong years of performance for
E1D foltowing its acquisition in July 2016, this year
has been disappointing and below our expectations.

The fall in revenue of nearly 40% impacted directly on
gross margin, with a drop of 28%. As a result, the net
margin of EID fell frem 23.5% (2018 restated) to 11.3%
with the overhead, which only marginally increased,
weighing more heavily on the much lower revenue.

The fall in revenue of nearly £7m was egually spht
between its Naval and Tactical dvisions. In the
Naval division, this was mostly compietion of radio
deliveries for the Portuguese Navy in 2017/18 and
customer delay to the M-class frigate programmes
for Holland, Belgium and Portugal.

In the Tactical division, a key order was secured in
2018/19, part of which was expected to be delivered
in the year but delivery delays have pushed this revenue
into 2019/20. This delay accounts for EID's unexpected
deterigration since Dacember and the underlying Group,
before Chess, falling short of cur expectations at the
time of our Interim Statement.

The mix of work at £ID 15 expected to continue to change
in the coming few years with iower levels of naval
support activity and increased deliveries of intercom
and radic products. The latter generate a lower margin,
since they contain a higher proportion of bought-in
material. As a result, the net margin is expected to
return to more historically normal levels of around
18% to 20%.
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Business review continued

Revenue

£39.0m ..

19  3%.0
18 oL 31s,

Adjusted operating profit

£8.2m ...

i8
Operating cash flow
£7.4m ...
ECH 74
18 7

Market areas
» Combat Systems

» Cyber Security & Secure Networks

» Training & Simulation

n DISCOVER MORE AT MASS.CO.UK
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MASS had another year of good growth with adjusted
operating profit nising 15% on revenue that grew 4%
compared to 2017/18.

The main drivers of growth in revenue were
electronic warfare operational support (EWOS),
especially for overseas customers and MASS's
long-term support contract to the UK MOD.

The EWQS growth was a result of securing orders which
had been in discussion for some years, exemplifying
the unpredictable nature of export sales. This growth
is at higher margins due to the high level of input from
MASS technical staff.

The long-term support contract was, after competition,
renewed In year for a further eight years and the growth
was a result of closing out the old contract. Going forward
we expect the revenue in this area te be lower than
that seen historically,

MASS's net margin increased to 21.0% {2018: 18.9%),
with higher revenue and, particularly, an improved mix
increasing its gross margins and more than offsetting
a small growth in overheads.

MASS's operating cash flow this year was consistent
with last year with the improved profitability driving
hetter cash performance. Looking forward, we expect
MASS's operating cash flow ta be broadly in line with
its profitabihty.

MASS operated through the year with five divisions.
The EWOS dwision includes the THURBOM EW database,
SHEPHERD {the provisian of a system embedying
THURBON to the UK MOD) and MASS's EW managed
service offerings in the UK and elsewhere. The Cyber
Security division inciuges MASS’s offerings of solutions
and training to government security customers, including
the Metropolitan Palice. This diviston also delivers secure
network design, delivery and support and information
assurance services to commercial, defence and educational
customers, The Strategic Systems division provides certain
managed service and niche technical offerings to the
UK MOD The Traming Support division provides training
simulation and support to the UK's toint Warfare Centre
as well as similar high level command training to other
UK and overseas customers. Finally, MASS's Information
as a Service division supports a key UK military intelligence
platform as well as providing similar information
services to other defence and commercial customers.

MASS has implemented a new management and
reporting system, the same product as SEA’s new
system, which went live in May 2019.



Revenue

£21.7m ...

© a7
18 _ 114

Adjusted operating profit

£2-3m +10%

o o o . _.__23
T S
Operating cash flow
£f4.4m ...
9 aa]

8- . _ 58

Market areas
P Combat Systems

» CAISTAR

D DISCOVER MORE AT MARLBOROUGHCOMMS.COM
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MCL's revenue grew 25% compared tc last year,
mostly from initial deliveries of systems for the

UK submarine fleet. The bought-in content for these
items 1s much higher and as a result, although the
absolute gross margin increased, the gross margin
percentage fell.

The averall profitability of MCL improved by 10% off
the back of increased volume and margin partly offset
by slightly higher overheads. The latter was the result
of MCLl's increased headcount during 2018 with this
year bearing the full annual cost.

MCL secured several key contracts in the year and its

total order intake of £26.0m was 1.2 times its revenue.

When we acquired MCL, back in july 2014, one of
the primary objectives was to suppert it in building
an order book and business with greater longevity
and visibility. This year saw the order book grow
from £10.3m {(April 2018) to £14.6m (Apn! 2019)
Desprte this, the visihility of MCL's revenue remains,
on average, in the three to six-month range.

The very strong operating cash flow was better than
expected and reflected MCL's peak of activity at the
end of the financial year, with supplier payments
slipping into early 2019/20.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cehart ple
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1 Prgryear compar sl ves have heenrestated upon the Group's
sdoption of IFRS 15 “Reverue from Contracts with Customers”
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usiness review continued

£38.3m .

' A

Adjusted operating profit

£5.5m ...

18 4.4

Operating cash flow
£0.8m ...
19 08

18 o ) 4.0

Market areas
» Combat Systems

» CAISTAR

P Training & Simulation

» Research, Advice & Support
P Intelligent Transport Systems

P Subsea Engineering

DISCOVER MORE AT SEA.CO.UK

See note 30 for aetalls regarding tre restatoment
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SEA has had a better year. Its revenue did grow, mostly
driven by its transport division and with some growth
In its research activity, These were partly offset by a
further contraction i its submarine activity.

The change in SEA’s business over the last few years
15 analysed as follows:

017 003
estaredt [r2srar=d, 2019

fm o Em

Submarines 16.9 7.3 a.7
Research 2.1 2.3 2.7
Other 257 277 30.9
SEA total revenue 447 37.3 38.3

The submarine and research activities are exclusively
for the UK MOD.

SEA’'s year-on-year revenue increase was 3%, but as a
result of the restructuring and improved margin mix,

the net margin at SEA improved from 11.8% to 14 3%,
close to our expectations,

The improved margin mix is a continuation of a trend
at SEA over the last few years with increasing product
sales, particularly in export and transport, and a lower
level of submarine activity, which is subject to
contractual limitations on margin

This trend has been accompanied by iess predictability
in some of the key revenue and major growth drivers.
For instance, SEA's transport contracts are typically on
short time-frames from win to delivery, usually a few
weeks to months, As a result SEA’s opening order book
as at 1 May 2019 provides less cover far 2019/20 than
we have seen historically and we expect this situation
to continue until longer term naval programmes

{UK and export) are secured for communications and
Torpedo Launcher System (TLS) products. The former
15 exciusively, at presant, for the UK submarine
programme and we do not expect the Dreadnought
class work to begin until 2020. For TLS, a number of
overseas navies are reganerating their fleets and this
provides good opportunities for long-term significant
work for SEA.

SEA, as indicated last year, again saw modest growth
inits research activity.



SEAs maimn growth was in transport which increased
from £5.3m {2018 restated) to £9.2m in 2019. The
growth maostly arose from the delivery of Red Light
variants of our ROADffow system for Network Rall to
improve safety at level crossings.

In the coming year SEA will trial 1ts new Anti-Submarine
Warfare {ASW) system based upon its 16mm diameter
Krait sonar array with the Portuguese Navy. This activity
will be supported by EiD in country and is an important
step In positioning SEA as a supplier of ASW capability
for smaller ships for which we see demand in many navies.

SEA’s Subsea division saw revenue remain flat. The
division’s gross margin stayed high due to the proportion
of refurbishment and repair activity, reflecting the
cost-conscious approach in the oil and gas sector.
Much of this work is done by SEA's staff, with fower
bought-in content.

As we announced iast year, restructuring was undertaken
at SEA to reduce both direct and indirect headcount.
Back-office services at SEA, including firance and
purchasing, were concentrated at Barnstaple The total
cost of this restructuring was £0.5m and is expected
to realise a saving of £1.0m per annum. The saving

in 2018/19 was £0.6m 1n the secand half.

SEA now reports through three divisions based upon
their geographical location, These are.

» Communications (from the farmer Maritime
division), Research and Technical Support and
Software Solutions and Products divisions under
a singie manager based at Beckington

» The remainder of the former Maritime division,
Launchers and Advanced Technologies along
with Production under a single manager based
at Barnstaple.

»Subsea, based at Aberdeen under a single manager.

These changes have enabled SEA to improve its delivery
and shape its cost base to its current level of activity.

During 2018/19, SEA progressed the integration of SEA
and J+S. A new management and reporting system, the
same 3s MASS's new system, 1s expected to go live In
September 2019 completing this integration.

Cohortplc.com
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Business review continued

Revenue by sector and business

Cogr EID 1IASS VL S2A
2019 M5 2019 rieh:S 2019 K] 2019 Kb be:] 2019 1013
£m “m £m fm fm om £m £m £m £
Defence and security 10.7 — 11.4 16.4 35.8 346 21.7 17.4 26.9 298
Transport -— - - - - —_ - —_ 9.2 53
Offshore energy - — - — — — — - 2.1 2.1
Other commercial - — 0.1 15 3.2 2.9 - — 0.1 0.1
10.7 — 11.5 18.3 39.0 37.5 217 174 38.3 37.3
The defence and security revenue is furthar broken down as follows:
Chess LD MASS MCL SEA
2019 018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
im £m £m £m £m {m Em £m Em £m
Direct to UK MOD — — — — 18.1 20.1 20.2 15.7 7.8 6.9
Indirect to UK MCD where the Group acts
as a subcontractor or partner 1.2 — 0.2 0.4 3.6 4.2 03 c.3 109 15.9
Total to UK MOD 1.2 — 0.2 0.4 217 243 205 16.0 18.7 22.8
Portuguese MOD — — 4.4 4.5 - — - — —_ —
Security 4.8 — -_— — 3.2 3.3 1.0 0.9 - —
Export defence 4.7 — 6.8 11.5 10.9 7.0 0.2 a.5 8.2 7.0
9.5 — 11.2 16.0 14.1 10.3 1.2 1.4 8.2 7.0
10.7 - i1.4 16.4 35.8 34.6 21.7 174 26.9 29.8
MNote EID ard SEA 2C18 figures Nave neer restated (ar the ‘mpact of 135 15 "Reverue iron Contracls wath Sustemers” (see note 335)
More Tap pereertages applied to =ne defence and security reverue 5 based or the tafal revenue tor the Group i 2ach yaar
Defence and security revenue is categorised into market segments as follows
Year ended Yeear cnded
30 April 2019 IDARal 2018 estatan |
£m % im 3
By market segment
Combat systems 229 19 20.9 19
CAISTAR 51.1 42 435 39
Cyber security and secure networks 15.5 13 156 14
Simulation and traming 6.5 5 4 9
Research, advice and suppoert 9.3 8 6.6 5
Other 1.2 1 272 2
Totat defence and security revenue 106.5 88 ag 2 29
Note, Tre percertages apphed to tne gefence and secur ty reverue s hasec on the total revenue ter the Groupan 2ach year
The Group’s total revenue, broken down by type of deliverable is as follows:
Year ended Yodr erded
30 April 2019 304pr 2018 1restated @
£m % £1r w
Product 65.2 54 60.6 55
Services 56.0 46 499 45
Total revenue 121.2 100 110.5 100

Mote Prodict neludes bespoke producs, costomineg systenss 2r¢ sub systemrs and s barcwsre and/or software

1 Prior yoarcomparatives have bieen restetes ueon the Growp's adoptior of iFRS 15 "Roverue from Cortracts st Zustemers” 1sec note 3Ct
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2018 2013
£m % im H
106.5 88 98.2 89
9.2 7 5.3 5
21 2 2.1 2
34 3 4.5 4
121.2 100 110.5 100

Group

2018 2018
£m % £m *
46,1 38 427 3%
16.2 13 208 1%
62.3 51 63.5 58
4.4 4 4.5 4
9.0 7 4.2 4
30.8 26 260 23
44.4 37 347 31
106.8 88 88.2 839

Cohortplc.com

We hold innovation at our core

Leading the latest
developments in
hearing protection
technology across
UK Armed Forces

With hundreds of military personnel suffering
from hearing damage and possibly ruled out of
frontline duties, the UK Armed Forces recognise
that hearing protection is essential equipment
for all.

In partnership with INVISIO Caommunications, MCL supply

hearing protection communications systems utiising advanced
acoustic technologies to provide hearing protection coupled

with clear communications and 3607 situational awareness.

These technologies not only alleviate the problem of hearing
protection but increase effectiveness of military personnel
in combat conditions.

With five contracts in place and with over 50,000 systems
fielded, MCL is the largest supplier of hearing protection
systems to UK Armed Forces including soldiers, Marines,
pilots and aircrew.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cohort ple
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Business review continued

Revenue analysis

The overail pattern of sales i 2018/19 was similar

te 2017/18 in terms of market segment (see table

on page 26). The most noticeable changes were an
increase in CHSTAR activity, mostly at MCL, and an
increase In research and advice at SEA. The reductions
In this area were in simulation and training, the latter
at MASS where there was less exercise activity by the
loint Forces Command, and at SEA in relation to the
DECKsim product.

Looking at our defence and security revenue by sector
{see table on page 26) we saw a fall in our overall rates
to the UK MOD both directly and indirectly. This was
mostly in indirect sales and was due to the continued fall
in SEA’s submarine activity. Direct sales to the MOD
were static reflecting the high proportion of our work
that was in service provision, which is generally &
steady revenue stream.

Operational outlock
Order intake and order book

Sales to Portugal were flat, but we expect this to
ncrease in the coming year with some deliveries on
recently won land system orders getting underway.

Both security and export sales saw growth. This was
mostly due to the imtial contribution of Chess, but MASS
and SEA also saw their export sales increase, offsetting
adrop at EID, where some naval projects delivered in
2017/18 were not repeated or shipped into 2019/20.

The Group's defence and security business is, and is
expected to remain, the largest part of our business,
supplying 88% of revenue this year (2018: 89%)
Nevertheless, the Group's nan-defence revenue was
up by 19% compared to last year, with growth mostly
coming from SEA’s transport activity. Transportsales
rase from £5.3m 1n 2018 to nearly £9.2m in 2019,
much of this due to delivery of Red Light ROADflow
systems to Network Rail for safety enforcement at
level crossings.

Order indahs Jrdar boos
2018
2019 2013 2019 restatec )
£m £r £m [

Chess 11.3 — 20.8

EID 18.9 8.4 25.6 19.0
MASS 97.0 291 98.8 408
MCL 26.0 121 14.6 10.3
SEA 36.7 27.0 31.1 336
189.5 76.6 190.9 103.8

1 2r p-year comparativas have been restated upon the Group’s adoonon of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue Fam Contracts with Customers” See note 30 for

dets ¢ regarding tha restatement

The 2019 order bock includes £20.1m of order book acquired with Chess in December 2013,

The increase in the Group's order intake was across the Group. As we indicated last year, we expected a number
of key renewals, especially at MASS, and these were all secured in the year. The order intake was a record for the
Group and has returned the order cover for the coming year to over 55%.
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Delivery of the Group’s order book into revenue

60 190.9 -
. _— K ASS L2535
180 145 !
— _ SEA WL

o 208 o

140 25.6

120 311
= 81.7
O 0.7 —

28 1]
80— gd i
122 |
&0 055 43.9 6.8 28.5 -
: 2.8 7 4.9 6.1
47 - I ———— 5.67 30 j
24 31»_ _ 26 =l 59.6
0 - 8.4 87 . Vi
20 . 8s —_— Iy -~ 55
P 1A 137 18z , L
At 30 Apri 2019 H1 201320 —7 201920 2020721 Later yeas

The above table shows the underpinning of future
revenue from the current arder book {all figures are
Em) The Group's order intake and arder boak are

the contracted values with customers and do not
include any value attributable to frameworks or other
arrangements where no enforceable contract exists.
The order intake and order book include contractual
changes to existing orders including extensions,
vanations and cancellations,

Chess's arder intake of £11 3m included follow-on
orders for its C-UAV system for the US DoD and nearly
£4m of orders for C-UAV systems for civilian airports.
Chess’s closing order book of £20.8m includes £15.0m
for delivery in 2019/20 and Chess is well positioned for
several kay naval and land programmes which we hope
will convert to orders in the coming year. Chess should
continue to grow In the corming vear, but we do not
expect Chess’s full year performance for 2019/20 to
reflect what was an abnormally strong five months

for 2018/19.

EID’s order intake for this year was just under £19m
compared with just over £8m last year. The main items
of order intake for EID in 2018/19 were 1n its Tactical
division, securing an order of gver £4m to deliver
rachos for Portuguese armgured vehicles and an
important expart erder for vehicle intercoms, the
imtial batch of which will now be delivered in 2013/20,
later than expected. EID's order book of £25.6m gives

Cohortplc.com

good underpinning for the year ahead, especially in its
Tactical dwision The corming year 1s impartant for EID
to secure important naval programmes and extend its
current export order for vehicle intercoms. We expect
EID to return to growth in 2015/20.

MASS's order intake of £97.0m was a record. It included
renewals, won in competition, of over £50m plus
long-awaited export EW0S orders. MASS's closing
order book of nearly £99m includes over £25m of
ravenue to be delivered in 2019/20. The conng year
for MASS should ses further export arders forits EWOS
and THURBON offerings and an expansion of its digital
forensics offering. Its provision of support to the UK's
Joint Forces Command, a service the Group has provided
for over 15 years, will be subject to a competitive
renewal, probably in early 2020/21. MASS is expected
to continue to grow in the coming year.

At MCL, order intake of £26.0m was higher than last year’s
£12.1m. MCL's order intake was dominated by a large
order to provide systems across the UK’s submarine fleet,
a programme which witl run over a number of years.
MCL’s closing order book of £14.6m includes just under
£8m to be delivered n 2019/20. Our long-term strategy
remains to try and strengthen MCL's order book and
prospects to give it more visibility of future wark flows
and with some key prospects in UK land programmes,
MCL should continue to grow, modestly, in the

COMmIng year.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cohort plc
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Business review continued

Operational outlook continued

Delivery of the Group’s order book into
revenue continued

SEA's order intake at £36.7m was abave last year's
£27.0m and included £5.5m of research activity for the
UK MCD and just over £3m of extension and change
arders for Submarine communication systems. Various
support orders for existing SEA equipment on UK naval
platforms totalled aver £12m, much of this deliverable
over several years. SEA's transport division order intake
was just under £9m, half of which was for Red Light
ROADflow systems for Network Rail. SEA's arder book
of £31.1m includes £12.3m for delivery in 2019/20,

a historically low level for SEA. SEA has an important
year ahead tg secure orders for its medium and
long-term prospects, especially in navai programrmes
in the UK and overseas. SEA faces a challenging year
and we expect a relatively flat performance.

In the near term, the majority of Cohort's business will
continue to be derived from the UK MOD, either directly
or indirectly. The Government’s Strategic Defence Review
published in November 2015 gave high priority to a
number of areas where the Group's capabilities are strong,
ncluding subrmarines, special forces, cyber and secure
communications. It also brought a welcome increase

in planned defence eguipment spending We do expect
to see opportunities arising from this increase, but it s
also clear that delays and cost growth are limiting the
freedom of movement of the UK MOD and armed forces
nacquinng new equipment. As we predicted last year,
this tightness, coupled to a shortage of commercial
staff, has resulted in unpredictable fluctuations
between purchase commitments and cash controls
during 2018/19. However, we have seen the UX MOD
continue to place orders for important and necessary
services and capability.

Unlike the year just gone, the coming year 1s not
dependent upen a few significant orders to defiver the
in-year performance. However, order infill i1s required,
as always, across the Group, especially at MCL and
SEA. The coming year s an important one for longer
term orders at EID, Chess and SEA.

Funding resource and policy

The Group retains a robust financial pesition and centinues
to be cash generative enabling it to continue to invest
in internal R&D and other value-adding projects ona
carefully considered basis, as well as maintaining its
progressive dividend policy.
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The Group's cash position and its banking facility provide
it with the resources to conduct its acquisition strategy

NatWest 1s the Group's primary bank, especially
for clearing purposes and day-to-day transactions.
In November 2018 the Group completed a new
UX bank facility with Lloyds and NatWest.

The current facility 15 a revohving credit facility for four
years with an option to extend for one year. The amount
of the facility is £30m with an option to extend by a
further £10m to £4Gm.

The facility itseif provides the Group with a flexible
arrangement to draw down for acquisitions and cverdraft
and, as at 30 April 2018, £25.0m of the facility was
drawn leaving £5.0m avalabie to be drawn down.

This facility is avaitakle to the UK members of the
Group and is fully secured over the Group’s assets,
including those of Chess but excluding EID’s.

The UK Group has separate bilateral facilities with

each of NatWest and Lloyds to provide trading facilities
for instruments such as forward exchange rates, bank
guarantees and letters of credit. In addition, the Group
15 able to have such facilities with other banks where
pricing and operational efficiency warrant 1t. MCL,

for example, has a forward exchange facility with
Investec Bank.

The Group takes a prudent approach to treasury policy
with its overriding objective being protection of capital
Inimplementing this policy, deposits are usually held
with institutions with credit ratings of at least Baa3.
Deposits are generally held on short {less than three
months) duration to maturity on commencement. This
ratches the Group’s cash rescurces with its internal
monthily 13 week cash forecasts, retaining flexibility
whilst trying to ensure an acceptable return on its
cash. Most of the Group’s UK cash (that s not on
short-term deposit) 1s managed through a set-off
arrangement, enabling the most efficient use of the
Group’s cash from day to day, under the supervision
af the Group’s finance function.

EID’s bank facilities are managed locally with banks
in Portugal The cash is spread across a number of
institutians to mitigate risk to the capital.

E{D provides na security over its assets and its wide
range of banks enable 1t to be well supported in
executing export business.



During the year, EID agreed a ‘ocai overdraft facility
of £€2.5m with Santander which s available ta EID only.
This was undrawn at 30 Aprif 2019,

The Group regularly reviews the ratings of the
institutions with which it holds cash and always
considers this when placing a new deposit.

The Group’s return on net funds during the period was
0.00% to 0.15% (2018: 0 00% to 0.15%)

The Group's net debt as 30 April 2018 of £6.4m 15 after
the acquisition of Chess at a cost of just over £20m
plus acquired net debt of £1.0m.

Looking forward, we expect the Group’s net debt at

30 April 2020 to be at a similar level to 30 April 2019 with
the Group moving back into net funds by 30 April 2021,
if thereis no further corporate activity.

In addition to its cash resources, the Group has in issue
41.0m ordinary shares of 10 pence each. Of these shares
0.1m {2018: 0.3m) are owned by the Cohort plc Employee
Benefit Trust (EBT), which waives its rights to dividends.
The EBT purchased a further 0.4m shares in May 20183.
In addition, the Group has issued options over ordinary
shares through Key Employee Share Option and SAYE
schemes to the level of 1.6m at 30 Aprii 2019 {2018: 1.7m).

The Group’s exposure ta foreign exchange rish arises
from two sources:

1. the reporting of overseas subsidiaries” earnings
{currently only EID) and net assets in sterling; and

2 transactiens in currencies other than our Group
reporting currency {£) or subsidiary reporting
currency where different {currently € at EID).

The first risk is 2 reporting rather than cash risk and
we do not hedge the reporting of earnings.

In terms of reporting the assets, we have in place a natural
hedge of borrowing in euros to acquire a euro asset
(EID) but over ume as the asset grows and the loan
diminishes, this hedge will wane.

We take a prudent approach to transactional foreign
exchange risk requiring all significant sales and
purchases to be hedged at the point in time when we
consider the liketihood of the transaction to be certain,
usually on contract award. We de not hedge account
and mark these forward contracts to market at each
reporting date, recegnising any gain or loss in the
income statement.

Cohartplc.com

The Group, 3s in the past, has maintained iis
progressive dividend policy, increasing its dividend
this year by 11% to a total dividend paid and payable
of 8,10 pence per share {2018: 8.20 pence)

The last five years” annual dividends, growth rate,
earnings and cash cover are as follows:

Casncower
A ased apon
covar b net Zash
Dwidend pad Growth over upon adjusts o
avdgraposed  provious yoar 2arungs ouar trom
¥earengad 30 Apry Pas-g kS share) operatigns)
2019 9.1 11 3.8 2.3
2018 8.2 15 35 40
2017 71 18 39 02
2016 6.0 20 45 28
2015 5.0 13 41 9.2
2014 4.2 20 4.6 15
The growth over recent years has moved the dividend
from a relatively low base to a more normal level for
an established cash-generative business,
Looking forward the Group plans to maintain a policy
of growing its dividend each year but we expect the
rate of growth to reduce over the coming years to ahgn
maore closely with the earnings growth of the Group.
The Group's cash generation in 2019 was, as had been
expected, weaker than last year. In summary, the
Group's cash performance was as follows:
2018
2019 aestate 1
£m £
Adjusted operating profit 16.2 15.2
Depreciation and other non-cash operating movements 1.4 14
Working capital movement {5.0) {0.9)
12.6 15.7
Acquisition of 81.84% of Chess {inciuding costs of
acquisition of £1.0m and acguired net debt of £1.0m) (22.0)
Acguisition of EID: 23% 1n 2018 - {3.5)
Payment of final earn-out for MCL in 2018 —_ 2.5
Restructuring of SEA {0.5) —
Reorganisation of SCS {0.5) {0.6)
Tax, dividends, capital expenditure, interest, loans and
other investments {7.3) {6.3)
{Decrease}/increase in net funds {12.7) 2.8
1 Prioryear comparatives Fave been restated unon the Group's
adoptior of IFRS 15 “ReverLe from Cortracts with Cusiomers”
See note 30 for details regarding the restatement
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Business review continued

Funding resource and policy continued

The slightly higher cash outflow In tax, dividends, etc.
was due to higher capital expenditure, tax payments
and dividends Looking forward, we retain the flexibility
to use newly issued shares as well as EBT shares to
satisfy employee share options.

The Group's customer base of governments, major prime
contractors and international agencies make its debtor
risk low. The year-end debtor days in sales were 22 days
(2018: 24 days). This calculation 1s based upon dividing
the revenue by month, working backwards from April,
into the trade debtors balance (excluding unbilled income
and work in pragress) at the year end. Thisis a more
appropriate measure than calculating based upon

the annual revenue as it takes into account the heavy
weighting of the Group’s revenue in the last quarter

of each year. The decrease in debtor days reflects
invoicing revenue, especially at MCL and MASS, earlier
in the final quarter than last year, enabling more
receipts to be collected in the financial year

Tax

The Group's tax charge for the year ended 30 April 2019
of £584,000 {2018: charge of £2,074,000) was at arate
of 10.3% (2018: rate of 20 4%} of profit hefore tax.
This includes a current year corporation tax charge of
£2,350,000 {2018 £3,357,000}, a prior year corporation
tax credit of £9,000 (2018: credit of £391,000) and

a deferred tax credit of £1,757,000 {2018: £892,000)

The Group's overall tax rate was below the standard
corporation tax rate of 19% {2018: 19%) The reduction
15 due to an R&D tax credit in Portugal of £0.5m in respect
of expenditure incurred this year in developing an
enhanced vehicle intercoms system by EID.

The Group this year has reported research and
development expenditure credits (RDEC) for the

UK in accordance with 1AS 20 and shown the credit
(£744,000} in cost of sales and adjusted the tax charge
accordingly. The 2018 comparatives (£679,000} has
been restated accordingly. This results in the reported
tax charge for the Group being higher than would have
been reported previcusly and more 1n line with the
headline tax rate for the UK.

The RDEC has been reversed in reporting the adjusted
operating profit for the Group to ensure comparability
of operating performance year on year.

Looking forward, the Group’s effective current tax rate
for both 2019/20 and 2020/21 is estimated at 16%.
{excluding the impact of RDEC reporting).
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This takes account of the expected reduction in headline
tax rates in the UK and assuming that the R&D tax credit
regime remains unchanged from its current level and
scope offset by an increased proportion of profit before
tax from EID at higher Portuguese tax rates, The Group
maintains a cautious approach to previous R&D tax credit
claims for tax periods that are still open, currently
2017/18 and 2018/19.

Exceptional items

The exceptional items this year are £1.0m in respact
of acquiring Chess and £0.5m for restructuring SEA
in the first half of the year.

Adjusted earnings per share

The adjusted earnings per share (EPS) of 33.60 pence
{2018 restated: 29.08 pence) is reported in addition

to the basic earnings per share and excludes the effect
of exceptional items, amortisation of intangible assets
and exchange movement on marking forward exchange
contracts to market, all net of tax.

The adjusted earnings per share excludes the
non-controlling interest of EID (20%) and Chess
{18.16%) for the five months from acguisition

The reconcilialion s as follows:

Adstad Adped

aperating Cal gy

profit pe share

{m Peare

Year ended 30 April 2018 (restated ) 152 29.08

Contribution from Chess for five months (81.84% owned) 1.7 2.72
100% owned businesses throughout the year ended

30 April 2018 2.2 4.33

EID (B0% owned) {2.9) {4.51)

Change in tax rate 10.6% (2018: 16.5%) — 2.08

Ditution from higher weighted average number of

shares (due to option exercises) — {0.10)

Year ended 30 April 2019 16.2 33.60

Increase from 2018 to 2018 5% 16%

1 Frior year comparatives have Seenrestated uzon the Group's
acoption o' (FRS 15 "Revenue from Cantracis w th Custorrers”
See note 30 for detar's rega-aing the restatement

The adjustments to the basic EPS in respect of
exceptional items, exchange movements and other
intangible asset amortisation are shown in note 8.



Financial estimates and judgements

In preparning the Annual Report and Accounts of
Cohort pic for 2019, a number of financial estimates
and judgements have been made which are explained
in the Audit Committee report on pages 44 to 45.

Accounting policies

The changes in respect of accounting policies are
explained in the Audit Committee report on page 45.
In particular, the 2018 comparative figures have been
restated to reflect the impact of IFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, as shown in note 30.

Additional financial reporting disclosure

The Group makes reference to additional financial
reporting over and above that required by the IFRS.
These alternative performance measures are explained
in the Audit Committee report on page 45.

Our people

All of the Group’s capabilities and customer relationships
uitimataly derive from our peopie, and such success as
we have enjoyed is a result of their efforts. We would
ltke to take this opportunity to express our thanks to all

employees of Cohort and its businesses.

Andy Thomis X /
Chief Executive | :

Simon Walther )
Finance Director //
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Our people

Building stronger relationships

Qur capabilities and customer relationships ali ultimately
derrve from our people. Across the Cohort Group,
employees can make a difference, fulfil therr potentiad,
develop their careers and be rewarded for what they
do. We are committed ta making our businesses
stimulating places to work with the benefits of a small,
agile company but with the interesting and engaging
work opportunities of a farge Group.

In December 2018 we welcomed Chess to the Group,
and by year end we had 907 permanent employees.
We employ a large number of highly qualified engineers,
mathematicians and screntists, all working at the highest
level of strategic capability committed to responding
to our customers’ needs. The depth of expertise and
passion for defence and security of our people makes
the critical difference for our customers. We constantly
encourage them to think and do things differently, and
to strive for innovative ways to create real value.

Recognition

We recognise and reward our people for taking
the initiative to think ditferently, detiver solutions
that really benefit our customers and improve

the way we work. Every year we host the Cohort
Business Excellence Awards where we acknowledge
the great achievements of teams and individuals
across the Group. Nominees consistently demonstrate
overwhelrmingly how they have contributed, many
in a way that has had a real impact on national
security. For the first time this year we were able
to link ¢ne of these awards to our new Cohort
Group Values, the purpose being to reccgnise

an especially good example of one of the Group
Values — "We believe in playing our part”™. This was
awarded to the Joint Warfare Support Team at MASS
for their delivery of two Joint Forces Command
training events where they displayed a depth of
commitment, teamwork and positive approach

to an unusually intensive project. This team’s work
has made a genuine and substantial contribution
to the UK’s ability to manage and respond to
internaticnal crises.

Cohort is
proud to bhe
a signatory
of the Armed
Forces
Corporate
Covenant.
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Training & development

We want our people to stay with us for the
long-term, sc we are committed to developing
them to help achieve their full potential. Investing
in traiming to develop the next generation 1s vital
to maintain the capabilities we need to deliver
our strategy successfully and remain competitive.
Cur leadership programmes are designed to equip
our current and future leaders to adapt their
leadership styles and approaches to effectively
respond to the business strategic priorities and
drive performance in a highly competitive and
ever-changing envircnment. We ran our first
Alumni programme this year covering three
groups from our 2017 and 2018 Leadership
Development programmes, ensuring the
networks formed as part of these programmes
are maintaned and to encourage collaboration
across our subsidiaries.

Graduates from across the Group take part in the
Leadership Training Day with SERFCA at the Royal
Military Academy Sandhurst.

Number of permanent employees

2019:

907

2018:

790

2017

311



The Group donated to charity over

£26,000

in 2019
{2018: £38,000)

Charity & community

The Cohort Group's largest customers are the UK's
armed forces and the work we do helps them to
carry out their vitat tasks more effectively. This
15 g significant motivating factor for our people,
many of whom are current reservists or former
members of the armed forces themselves.

Qur subsidiaries take partin many fundraising
and sponsorship activities raising funds for
military and veterans’ charities, activities which
we are pleased to support corporately, either
directly or through matching employee efforts,

Cohart s proud be a signatory of the UK Armed
Forces Corporate Covenant and as a Group
we currently hold two Silver Awards under
the Defence Employer Recognition Scheme,
Cohort's award having been renewed in 2017.

HMS Oardacious

The Cohart Group, MASS, MCL and SEA are
proud to be Silver sponsors of HMS Oardacious.
The team are four Royal Navy submariners taking
part in the Talisker Whiskey Atlantic Challenge in
December 2019, aiming to raise over £100,000
for the Royal Navy and Royal Marines Charity.

n DISCOVER MORE ABOUT THE TEAM AND THEIR CHALLENGE
AT MMSOARDACIOUS.COM

Cohortple.com

STEM

We also invest time and money to support Science,
Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM)
activities to motivate and inspire the next
generation of young scientists and engineers.

In May 2019, SEA was recognised by the MNorth
Devon Manufacturers Association for a Business
Engagement in STEM Award for its continued
waork to inspire and motivate young people to
pursue a career in engineering. 5EA currently
has eleven STEM ambassadors and works with
eleven schools, as well as Careers South West,
to improve STEM appoertunities. SEA Is also
committed to employing two apprentices per
year and has a structured and interactive work
experience programme.

MASS has committed to sponsor two secondary
schools, one in Lincoln and one in 5t Neots,

to provide support for cross-curricular STEM
programmes provided by The Learning Partnership.
These will be supported by the social learning and
community piatform Dendrite, which provides
STEM career and recruitment pathway information
and learning resources for teachers and students,
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Board of Directors

Nick Prest CBE Chairman

Nick hecame Chairman of Cohort on flotation in March 2006.

ckgomad the UK NOD 10 13482 Nk s

Exzzutize” 2980 aru Chara
Doy ab ekt mene Jompsoy hed becore N3 ATTaIsTE Dunoools n fany

trastor undaradng
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~d 5, atoms
Sookwas 2inn Tharman of dvea Grolp pec from 2006 unal 2012

Zxtesmal Anoomtrrents ~aadittor tobe ng Chairman af Cobort, N <5 a.50 Charman of Snepnarz Sroup, 4 orvaszle owped meda
company spetizsng o defence a~d aarospace

Andrew Thomis Chief Executive
Andrew took over as Chief Executive of Cohort in May 2005

Andrew graduatec with a~ MZng degree o Tiectrica. ans Elec-onic Enginesning from Impera College London in 1987

He spe~t mine years In science, techrology ana policy roles ir the UK MOD He left n 1996 anc, atter a peniod workmg with public
and private sector clierts at Capita plo's managemen: consultancy arm, fe jomed Alvis in 2 -ole covering strategy, M&A and
business develoament Following tne acquisition af Alv s by BAE Systems . 2004, ne worked witn Nick Prest ard Stanley Cacter
or the creatior of Conort pic, act ng as = narce Director dunng tre flotation ard subsequent'y Corporate Development Director.
Fraom 2007 to 2005 he was Managing Director of MASS. Andrew is a Fellow of the Institution of Engireering ang Techrology.

Simon Walther Finance Director and Company Secretary
Simon joined Cohort as Fingnce Director in May 2006.

After graduating with a B5cin Toxico ogy and Pharmaco'ogy from Unive-sity Colege London, Simon went an to quahify as a
Charte-ec Aczountart with Touce Ross i1 1832, Simon moved to the Peninsalar ana Oniental Steam Navigat-on Company {(P&O)
in 1993 where he was appointed a Chief Accountant for P&O European Fernes 'n 1995 He has over 20 yeass' irdustry-relevant
experience, w th previous senior finance roles at Alvis and BAE Systems.

Stanley Carter Non-executive Director
Stanley has been with Cohort since its formation in 2006.

Stanley joint'y founded Cohort with Nick Prest and initia‘ly served as its Chief Executive before becoing Co-Charrman 'n 2009 1n 2015,
Stanley stepped down ‘rom Co-Cha'rman to becore 4 Non-executive Director Priar to that he was Managing Director of SCS, wh ch he
founded in 1992 on leaving the Reguiar Army. During his military service as a Royal A-tllery Officer he held a wide range of posts in the
MOD's central staff, n procurement and at government research estabhshments, and representad the UK on NATO techical committees
He received an award for the nvention of a m ssile launcher from the UK MOD He has held a rumber of directorstips in technology
companies and has degreesin "echnalogy and 3ehavioural Sc’ence and an MSc in Infarmation Systeres,

Edward Lowe independent Non-executive Director

£d was appointed to the Board on 1 july 2019 and became Chairman of the Remuneration Appointments Committee on
23 fuly 2019

=d joined Racal Electronics in 1980 ard, aver a 20-year period, undertook a vatiety of commercial, sales ana managerial roles,
n 2000, he was appointed Vice President witnin Thales UK w.th responsib bty for the commercia), sales and strategy functions
n 2005 he was gpponited Managing Directer of the Tha es UK naval activities anc led the international business line for naval

platiorms and services. In 2010 he was appointed Chief Ope-at ng Officer for Thales LUK with operational resporsibility for

ali Thales U< activities,

Jeff Perrin independent Non-executive Director and Senior Independent Director
Jeff joined Cohort in July 2015. He is Chairmuon of the Audit Committee and was appointed Senior independent Director on 23 July 2019.

A Chartered Certified Accountant, Jeff has held a nurber of senior finans al positions including roles within Uniever, Orif ame,
and the defencs businesses of GEC and Radstone Technology Ple. in the latter company, he was also Chief Executive for four
years until his depa-ture a yea” afte- 115 acawsition by the Geaeral Electsic Cormpany In 2006, He was Chairman of the private
equity-backed defence company, Chess Techrologies Limited, from 2008 until 1ts acguisition by Cohart on 12 Decemaer 2018,

Sir Robert Walmsley KCB, FREng Non-executive Director

Sir Robert joined the Board of Cohort on flotation in March 2006. He was Chairman of the Remuneration & Appointments
Committee unti 23 July 2019,

Sir Robert servea in the Royal Navy from leawving schaol Lntil Ris firal appointment as a Vice Admiral, Aftar retinng from the
MNavy, he was appamted as Chief of Deferce Procurement for the UK MOD, occupying that positior from 1996 until 2003 He
served on the Britisk Znergy board from 2003 until 2008 and until 2012 was a senier adwviser at Morgan 5Stan ey International
and Cnairman of the Major Projects Associat'on Fram 2004 until 2015, he served on the board of General Dynamics
Carporation in the United States

External Agooimtments: Sir Rebert s 00 the board of Ultra Electronic holdings 0 ¢ and halds a number of other advisary roles in
the defence and energy sectors. Since 2013 he has been the independent Chairman of the Denartmens for Work anc Pensions’
Un'versal Credit programme and since 2014 he has been a Crown Representative within the Crown Cormrmeraial Service

Member of the Board of Directors
— Member of the Remuneration Appointments Committee
—_ Member of the Audit Committee
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Executive Management Team

Graham Beall Managing Director of Chess
Grakam has held the role of Managing Director of Chess since its foundation in 1993,
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Antdnio Marcos Lopes Managing Director of EID
Antonio was appointed as Managing Director of EID in July 2016,

Anzdnio gracuzted from the Un versity of Lisbon as 3y elecrronics a~d telecom-ur-catians engiresr n 1977 immediately
Joinirg the Portug.ese Navy as ar office-. Az the same time, e was Ass.stant Professor of Matnematics at the Univers.ty of
Econom cs ir Lishon, Antonio joinex E10 35 years age as a researen and development engineer He assumed (ne leade snip
of the Naval Corrmuricat-ons division in 1996 a~d was appointed o the board of directorsin 2000 as an Executive Drrector
of the cormpany. He was appoirted Managing Director in July 2016 folfowing Conart’s acquisit on of EID

From 2001 1o 2003 Antdmo was a Non-executive Director of STE, Servicos ce Telecamumeagdes e Electranica, S A and from
2001 to 2010 ne was a member of the board of d rectors of NEC Portugal — TelecomunicagBes e Sistemas 5 AL

Chris Stanley Managing Director of MASS
Chris was appointed as Manoging Director of MASS in April 2G17.

After graduating from the University of Laicester with a B5¢ in Astropnysics and obta ning a master’s degree in Microwave Sohd
State Physics from the University of Portsmouth, Chnis started hus career designirg radar systems and arternas for Racal Defence
before soending six years developing radar and IR countermeasures for the RAF at the Electronic Warfare Operational Support
Establishment. Chris ther spent four years as the Mathematical Madelling Group Manager at GEC Avionics, designing and
developing advanced radar systems. Dunng this time he also gained ar MBA from Henley Management College.

Chris managed and directed the Technical Services business urmt within the VT Group before moving to MASS in December 2007
as Director of the EW0S division.

Shane Knight Managing Director of MCL
Shane was appointed as Managing Director of MCL in January 2019

Shane served ir the Army until s final appointment as a Captainin the Boya Signals. Throughout his Army career be
wor<es in a “ange of posts within the elect-onic warfare arena He joined MCL n 2003 as Busiress Developmen: Manager
{Communications) 2na became Sales and Marxeting Director in 2011 before his appo ntment to Managing Director in 2019,
Shane has over 15 years business exaoenence ir the inter~ational defece secto-,

Stephen Hili Managing Director of SEA
Stephen was appainted as Managing Director of SEA in March 2011,

Stephen has held senior managenal positions, predominantly 1in the international ae-osoace and defence sector since the
rd-1390s. He began his career \n 1883 at GEC-Marcori as an Electronics Engineer, evertually becoming Busiress Director,
with respansibihity for the Lamd Systems electro-oatics business at Basildon  n 2000, he moved 1o Thales, where his roles
included vanagmg 2 rector of the Air Operations business at Wel s a1d W ce Presidert with responsibiity for the UK Awr Systemns
division Prior to joining the Cohort Group. he was Chie® Execative of CircleBath, a venture caoital-bac<ed private haspital in
Bath Stephen has a first class honours degree 1n Electrical and Elecironic Enginesr ng and a master’sin —ngineernrg Project
Management, and 15 @ quaified Chartered Directo~,
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Corporate governance report
Nick Prest CBE, Chairman

Introduction

From flotation :n 2206 Conort model ez ts corporate
governanca, as far as practicaoie, on 4 reco™mended
coraorate governance code, though as ar AIM ted
company i was not mandatory 10 doso

In Margn 2318, the concdor Stock Exchange issaed
~evised rules foc AIM-listed copanies, wtir which
was a requiterrent (Ruie 26} for AIM companies to
apply a recognsed corporate governances code from
28 Saptember 2018

Cohort pic chose to apply the QCA Corporate
Governance Code, updated n Aoril 2018 {the Code},
with immediate effect and our corporate governance
report for the year ended 30 April 2018 was based
upon the Code, as is this repart for the year ended
30 April 2019,

The principal means of communicating our application
of the Code are this Annual Report and cur website
{cohortplc.com).

Overview

As Chairman of Cohort plc, | am responsible for leading
the Board so as to ensure that Cohort has in place the
strategy, people, structure and culture to deliver vaiue
to shareholders and other stakeholders of the Group,
as a whole, gver the medium to long term. Corporate
governance |5 the collective term for these activities
and | welcome the GCA Corporate Governance Code as
a useful guide to assist me and the Board of Cohort plc
in developing and applying good corporate governance,
and in explaining it to our stakeholders.

In the remainder of this report, | have set out the
Group’s application of the Code, including, where
appropriate, cross-reference to other sections of the
Annuzl Report.

Where cur practices depart from the expectations of
the Code, | have clearly highlighted these and given an
explanation as to why, at this time, it is approprate for
the Group to depart from the Code.

The Code sets out ten principles in three broad
categories, as follows:

Governance structure
Corporate structure Board composition

| The Board

J e e

Audit Committee Remuneration &
Appointments Committee

Chairman {1)

j
~ Executive (2) |

Jeff Perrin (Chairman)

Sir Robert Walmsley: Edward Lowe- {Chairman) Non-executive (4) )

Edward Lowe’ Sir Robert Walmsley!

Stanley Carter

1 Sir Robert walmsley stepped down from the

leff Perrin
Aucit Commuttee and from the Remuneratan
& Appoirtrments Committee on 23 Juy 2019 Nick Prest CBE

2 Edward Lewe jainced the Audit Committee and
the Rermuneraticn & Appointments Committee
or 23 July 2019, and became Chairman of the
Rermureration & Appeintments Committee on
23 luly 2019
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Deliver growth
I Estabiisn astrategy anz ousitess mod2 whict oormate long-term value 137 our sharehalders.

2 Seekto understa~c 307 meat gur sharehoicers needs gng expectat:ors,

3. Ta<znto accowrs wize- stakebolder ang spoa ~zsporsibe tes and ther mroacations forour long t2rmsuccess
1 Impegefactve ris< Tatagemeant consider Ng notn BpSorianit o5 and threats, throughout ©e Group.
Maintain a dynamic management framewaork

5 Maintain the Boarz as a well-funchioning, ba-ance team ieg by the Chair

6. Ensure that between thewr the Dractors hava the necessary Lp-to-date experence, skills and capab:hties,

7. Evaluate Board periormancea based on clear and relevant objectives, seeking contnuous iImprovement,

8. Promote a corporate culture that 1s based on ethical values and behaviours.

9 Maintain governance structures and processes that are fit for purpose and support good decision making
by the Board.

Build trust

10. Communicate how Cahort pic 15 governed and 1s performing by mamntaining a dialogue with cur shareholders
and other relevant stakeholders.

Deliver growth

Estabiish a strategy and business modei which promote long-term value for our sharehoiders

The Group’s Business model is set out on page 10 with our strategy alongside on page 11. We believe this does
promote long-term value for our shareholders as demonstrated by our five years’ financial performance {see
page 110) and our key performance indicators on pages 12 to 13 which are shown for the last three years.

Our progressive dividend policy and share performance over the jast five years are also indicators of long-term
value for our shareholders with total shareholder return shown below.

The Board conducts an annual review of strategy and the business plans of Cohort and its subsidiaries, and in
between these formal reviews, strategic issues are frequently discussed by the Board.

We also believe that remaining on AIM 15 of long-term value to our shareholders as it offers a combination of
access to capital markets, flexibility to make acquisitions, incentives and rewards to management through share
schemes, and a regulatory environment appropriate to the size of the Company.

Seek to understand and meet cur shareholders’ needs and expectations

Cohort places a great deal of importance on communication with all shareholders. The Company uses the Annual
Report and Accounts, the AGM, the Interim Report, the website {cohortplc.com), social media, webcasts and
email news alerts to provide information to sharehalders. The Company also meets with itsnstitutional
shareholders and analysts and receves feedback from its institutional shareholders, via its Nomad, Investec,

on a regular basis.

300 —

200

o - B -
lure 2014 June 2015 June 2G16 lune 2017 June 2013 June 2019
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Corporate governance report continued

Nick Prest CBE, Chairman

Overview continued

Beliver growth continued

Seek to understand and meet our shareholders’
needs and expectations cortin2d

The primacy poirts 57 contact wetn tme sharehoiders
are mysei, the C- e” Executive and the Firance Direcio”
Jeff Perr'n, the Sen or Inzependent Director, 15 avalanie
to ail sharenolders should they have any concerns which
commurication through the normal charpels of Chairman,
Chiaf Executive and Zimancs Drractor has fared to
rasolve, or for which contact through the normal
channels would be inappropriate.

The Company receives every year, just prior to 1ts
AGM, vating guidance reports from organisations such
as the Association of British Pension Funds. These
highiight any areas of concern and invite the Company
tc comment prior to publication.

in the recent past, these concerns have been in respect of.

i. lengthof service of Independent
Non-executive Jirectors,

. membership of Board Committees; and

. executive remuneration, specificatlly no performance
conditions applying to the exercise of share cptions.

Not ail of these involve non-compliance with the Code,
but we have addressed them all and either introduced
changes or explained in this year's Annual Report and
Accounts why we do not think it is 1n our shareholders’
interests to do so at this time.

Take into account wider stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their implications for our
long-term success

Stakeholders other than shareholders inciude our
employees, customers, partners, suppliers and neighbours.

Our employees {see pages 34 and 35) are the key to
our success. We ara not a capital intensive business
but depend upon the sk:lls, capabilities and flexibility
of our employees, and our business model depends
upon us being agile and responsive.

The Group has formal arrangerments in place to facilitate
whistle-biowing by employees through a contract with
a third-party service provider. If any call 1s made to this
third party, either the Chief Executive or the Senior
independent Director 1s notified promptly of the fact
and the conten: of the call, so that appropriate action
can be taken.

Our customers and suppliers are in many Instances
long-term partners and an important part of our culture
15 to establish and maintain relationships of trust.

Embed effective risk management, considering both
opportunities and threats, throughout the Group
The Board and Group approach to risk is set out in the
Audit Committee report on pages 44 to 45 and in the
Risk management section on pages 46 to 51.

The Board has overall responsibility for the system

ot internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
in managing the risks we face. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate risks and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Each year, on behalf of
the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness
of thesa systems. This ts achieved primarily by considering
the risks potentially affecting the Group and from
discussions with the external auditor
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The Audit Commmittee, on benalf of tne Board, reviews
the nsk environment fazed by the Group onar2g.larbass
ance qow the Groud marages and miagates tnese 11sks

Tha way nisics of the Growup are arase~rec or pages 45
051

The Board s not aware of any sigrificant fa l ngs or
wearnesses inthe system of interral zontrol.

On tha recommendation of the Aud: Committee, the
Board has deter~ined thar an intarnal audit function s
not required due to the re:atively smali size of Cohort
and the high tevel of Director review and authorsation
of trarsactions. The Board will keep this matter under
review as the Group develops.

A comprehensive budgeting process s completed
once g year and 15 reviewed and approved by the Board.
In addition, the Group conducts quarterly re-forecasts.
The Group's results, as compared against budget and
the latest quarterly forecast, are reported to the Board
on a monthly basis and discussed in detall at each
meeting of the Board.

The subsidiary balance sheets are reviewed in detail
on a quarterly basis by the Cohort Finance Cirector.

Maintain a dynamic management framework
The Board of Cohort plcis highly experienced in the
defence market. Through the aperation of the Board
and the Group Executive, which comprises the subsidiary
Managing Directors and the Cohart plc Executive
Directors, the Board is able to monitor the business
and respond in a timely manner to issues and
opportunities as and when they arise.

Maintain the Board as a well-functioning,

balanced team led by the Chair

The Board

As at 30 April 2018, the Board of Directors comprised
of myself, two Executive Directors, Andrew Thomis and
Simon Walther, and three Non-executive Directors,
Stanley Carter, Jeff Perrin and Sir Robert Walmsley

Ed Lowe joined the Board as a Non-executive Director
on 1July 2019.

The Board considers that Jeff Perrin and Ed Lowe
are independent.

All Directors retire by rotation and are subject to
election by shareholders at least ance every three
years. Any Non-executive Directors who are considered
by the Board to be independent but who have served
on the Board for at least nine years or in conjunction
with an Executive Director for nine years or more, will
be subject to annual re-election.

8oard Committees

The Board has established two Committees: Audit and
Remuneration & Appaointments, each having written terms
of reference, which can be viewed on the Company's website.

The reports of the twe Committees are reported
separately on pages 44 to 45 for the Audit Committee
and pages 54 to 59 for the Remuneration &
Appointments Committee.

During the year ended 30 April 2019, the Audit Committee
comprised Sir Robert Walmsley and Jeff Perrin. On

23 July 2019, Ed Lowe joined the Committee and an
the same day Sir Robert stepped off the Committee,
so that the Audit Committee now comprises two
Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance
with the Code The Audit Committee’s role is set out
on page 44 of the Audit Committee report.



Dur g the year ended 30 Aol 2013, the Ramunaratinon &
Appo ntments Compitze comprised Sir RoberiValmsley
1Chary, seff Perrin Stan ey Carter and ve The roals o°
the Remuneratior & Apaointments Committes 1510

P 2505057 A Tormat asd transparsent pohcy or SxscLtive
sEruneration and 1o sat remunerat on packages
fornanadua Executive Cirectars (ard suen other
senior empioyees as the doard may determire);

P 355255 the performance of the individual Executive
Directars ‘and such other senior emp'oyees as the
Board may determine) against these packages and
determine the related remuneraton;

» undertake the role, In conjunction with the Chief
Executive, of propasing individuals to the Board
for such appointments as the Board may from time
to time reguest, and

» undertake any other tasks appropriate to the
Cammittee requested by the Board.

On 23 July 2019, d Lowe |cined the Remuneration

& Appointments Committee and became its Chairman
in succession to Sir Robert Walmsley, who stepped
down on the same date. The Remuneration Committee
therefore has two Independent Non-executive Directors

Attendance at Board and Committee meetings

as members, one serv ng as Tnarman Botn Td Lowe
a1d Jeti Per-n have cons.deraniz ednerience 0" managmng
ramonerano” scheries fa7 semor axecatives 1 2L
ard private camoames, bath iasge ardsmal

Nevertheless the compost or of the Remunesatan
& Appaintmerts Commitiee s notir accorcarce

with the Code, wh cnreguires tmat omy indeperdent
Naon-executive Directors should sit on s Cobort s

not a 'arge company and we wa~t 1o make the best use
of the skills we have Both Stanley Carter and | have
considerable experience in dealing with remunaration
matters, as well as substantial shareholdirgs in the
Company, and the collective view of the Board is that
the present composition of the Committee benefits
the Company and its shareholders.

At present, the formal role of Company Secretary is
undertaken by Simon Walther, the Finance Director

of Cohort plc. In practice the majarity of the work1s
undertaken by the Deputy Company Secretary, who is
a full ime employee and acts as Secretary to the Board
and 1ts Committaes and in this capacity deals directly
with me and Board and Committee members as required.
It may be appropriate at some time in the future to
separate the Company Secretary role from the
Executive, and we keep this under review.

Board and Committee meetings are scheduled in advance for each calendar year. Additional meetings are
arranged as necessary including meetings with subsidiary Managing Directors to review strategic and financial
plans. The scheduled Board and Committee meetings and attendance of the members during the year ended

30 April 2019 were as follows:

Remuneration &

Board Audit Appoiatmeants
{10 formal Committee Committes
Mneehras) (3 meenngal {4 meetings)
N Prest CBE (Chairman) SNSEEEEEEN — AEER
S Carter [Non-executive Director) ENEEREEEEN — EEEN
Sir Robert Walmsley
{Non-executive Direc:or) SETEREEEERN HEEER aEEE
JPerrin {Non-executive Director} SNEERERN | 1 1] [T 1 [
A Thomis {Chief Executive) SEEEEREEEN - —
S Walther (Finance Director and
Company Secretary) NEANAEEEENR — _

leff Perrin excused himself from two Board meetings during the year when the subject matter was the propaosed
acquisitron of Chess Technologies Limited of which Jeff was Chairman and a shareholder.

The Executive Directors and subsidiary Managing Directors all work full-time for the Group.

The Non-executive Directors have commitments outside Cohort. These are summarised in the Board biographies
on page 36. All the Non-executive Directors give the time to fulfil thoroughly their responsibilities to Cohort and as

Chairman, | moniter this,

Evaluate Board performance based on clear and relevant objectives, seeking continuous improvement
The Board undertook a formal evaluation of its performance in 2017, After considering different alternatives
the Board made the decision to undertake the evaluation internally, using a process led by me.

Cohortplc.com
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Corporate governance report continued

Nick Prest CBE, Chairman

Overview continued

Maintain a dynamic management framework continued

Evaluate Board performance based on clear and relevant objectives, seeking continuous improvement co~tinuead
TAe avaluat.on imvolved Lot a numer © and discursive selt asiesament ov 2acn Boa-d membec in responie 0
agLestorrare, on tae role and functior ng of the Board ard s memoers and Conentiees Tha resits of the
raviesy yare proad g satisfactony but a nemaer of actions emerged from it as ‘o lows

1 Acomorehensive review 0f tne legal and regulatory erv ronment app 'y g to Cohert, imtendea to 2~sure that
our pol.c 25 and procedures address comprehensiveiy Thes2 oniiganons.

2. Following o from this, *he2 productior of a Company manua codifying 21l gur ponicies and procedures, krawn

as the Cohort ple Corporate Govarnance Randbock.

3 Ar exparded review of the Group's busingss risks and m.t:igations. led by the Audit Committee Chairman.

4 A programme to ensure the necessary level of contact between the Board. and Non-executive Directors
mn particular, and subsidiaries through visits and meetings with subsidiary Managing Directors.

In practice we menitor the Board on a continuous basis, including succession.

Ensure that between them the Directors have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills and capabilities
The Board has a broad range of skills, with particularly deep experience in the defence sector. The balance of
skills and experience of the Board 1s summarised as follows:

Drre” oublic
Jefanzs [EERELE] LeMmpany
3&I107 S ngnzal managezoaent Lboara leved) Publicsector
N Prest L] u u u
A Thomis ] 2 |
S Walther L ]
Sir Robert Walmsley n ] | | [ ]
E Lowe | |
S Carter n ]
J Perrin n ] u ]

The Board biographies (page 36} give an indication of the breadth of skills and expertence.

Cohort is predominantly a defence company and
collectively the Board has experience of engineering,
financial, commercizl, sales and marketing and general
management functions in a range of defence compames,
large and small, operating in and supplying to a large
number of countries throughout the world, We consider
this collective experience to be an important contrbutor
to Cohort.

Each member of the Board takes responsibility for
maintaining his skill set, which includes roles and
experience with other boards and organisations as welt
as formal training and seminars. We also commission
tailored executive coaching for our senior executives
from time to time.

I'am fully aware that & Board comprising seven men
and no women does not reflect current views of best
practice and carries some risks in terms of the breadth
of capability and views brought to the table. Anissue in
the defence industrial sector 15 that, for a variety of
reasons, there are not many women In senior positions
and cur policy so far has been to appoint Board
members who have, alongside their other skills,
defence experience. We continue to keep the issue
under review.

The Deputy Company Secretary, a qualified solicitor,

is responsible within the Company for advising the
Board on its legal and regulatory responsibilities and
on corporate governance matters. The Deputy Company
Secretary and the Cohort Human Resources Manager
also advise the Non-executive Directors independently
of the Executive Directors in any matter in which the
Executive Directors are personally interested, for
example their own remuneration.
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External advice is sought when necessary on legal,
personnel, financial and governance matters. The
primary sources are the Company’s Nomad and the
Company’s lawyers.

Promote a corporate cufture that is based

on ethical values and behaviours

The Group has a strong ethical culture, supported

by our ethical policy as published on our website
{cohortplc.com). We see a company as a social unit
with an economic output and the success of our social
unit depends on the values of honesty, trust, loyalty
and working together, with a healthy balance

of competition and coaperation, just as in any other
unit of society. We try to run our businesses this way.

The Board, through the Group Executive, undertakes
regular reviews and aud:its in certain specific areas of
risk, namely:

Anti-bribery

The Group has an anti-bribery policy and each of its
businesses has implemented that pelicy and adequate
procedures described by the Bribery Act 2010 (the Act)
to prevent bribery. Each business within the Group
reports annually to the Board on its compliance with
the policy and procedures. The Cohort Chief Executive
is the Board member responsible for the Group's
compliance. As part of its procedures, the Group has
implemented training in respect of compliance with
the Act for its employees.

The Group's anti-bribery policy is reviewed at least
every two years or more oftenif necessary. The policy
was last reviewed and updated in April 2019,



Cyber risk
As ment.ored last yaar, the Group inT-oduces, in
tanuar, 2019, anew Informatior Secur Ty Palcy (ISP

replasitg T orevious Securtty Poicy Tramework

Tne SP ercompiasses our cesponsibit es nrespect
of the Gene-a: Data Protectior Regulat.on 1IGDPR)
and other non personal infornat onwe handie

Tne ISP covers the ghysical and cvber security of our
information including that held on behalf of third parties
It a 50 addressas business cont nu-ty and disaster
recovery pracedures.

Fach business within the Group reports annually to the
Board on its compliance with the ISP and this compliance
is audited by an internal team of information assurance
and cyber experts from MASS. MASS's own ISP is zuditad
aexternally. Audits for the year ended 30 April 2019
wers undertaken in May 2019,

The Group’s ISP 1s frequently reviewed, taking account
of best practice and requirements in government
and industry,

Modern slavery

The Group has an anti-slavery policy toc address the
aspects of modern slavery as set out in the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 (the MSA). In accordance with the
requirements of the MSA, the Group and each UK
member of the Group have pubhlshed a statement an
their respective websites setting out the steps the
Group and they have taken to ensure that slavery and
human trafficking are nat taking place in their respective
businesses and supply chains. A copy of the statement
can be found in the Corparate Governance section of
the Cohort website {cohortplc.com). The Group's
Portuguese subsidiary, EID, has in place an anti-slavery
policy which is aligned with the Group’s policy.

The Group's anti-slavery policy was first adopted in
April 2016 and will be reviewed at least every two
years or more often as necessary.

Maintain governance structures and processes
that are fit for purpose and support good decision
making by the Board

The Board discharges its duties through the following
management structure:

Group management

The Cohort Board meets at least seven times per
calendar year, in addition to business and strategic
reviews which are not recorded as formal Board
meetings. The Board also holds regular ad-hoc
discussions to consider particular issues. We aim as

a Board to visit each of the subsidiaries at least once
avyear, and | and individual Non-executive Directors
also make visits to kzep up to date with business issues
at the subsidiaries. This is important in a decentralised
group like Cohort. ! and the Non-executive Directors
meet at least once a year without the Executive
Directors present.

Cohortpic.com

Tne 3oarg receves 4 monthly Boa~d pack comprsing
dwvidual renorss rom easn of the Sxecutive Directos
ang e subs diary Manag rg D rectors, together wieh
zny other matenial necessary for the Board to bo's
toly nfored miscussiors 1o dschargs s dut 2,

e uchrg the review of Company strategy to ensura
this aligrs wits c=at ng snarebolder value, Its the
Joard’s responsib.lity to formulate, review and approve
the Group's strategy, puggets, major 'terrs of expenditu-e
3and commitment, major contract dids, acguisitions
and disposals. & full schedule of the matters reserved
for the Board can be viewad on the Cohort website
{cohortplc.com). The Group Executive Committee meets
at least four times per calendar year, comprising Cohort
Executive Directors and subsidiary Managing Directors.

Subsidiary management

There are monthly Executive Management meetings
involving the senior management of each subsidiary.
Cohort Executive Directors attend subsidiary Executive
Management meetings on a regular basis The
Non-executive Directors and L occasionally attend
subsidiary Executive Management meetings.

Build trust

The Board communicates how the Company Is governed
and how it1s perfarming by maintaining a dialogue
with shareholders and other stakeholders through the
mechanisms described on pages 39 to 40.

Board Committees

The reports to shareholders of the Audit and
Remuneration & Appointments Committees are
on pages 44 10 45 and 54 to 59 respectively.

The Board welcaomes considered enquiries from
shareholders and other stakeholders at any time.

Nick Prest CBE
Chairman
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Audit Committee report

Jeff Perrin, Independent Non-executive Director and Senior Independent Director

Introduction

The Audit Commttee comprised two Non-executive
Directors for the year ended 30 April 2019. Edward Lowe,
Independent Non-executive Director, joined the Audit
Committee on 23 luly 2013, with Sir Robert Walmsley
stepping down at the same time. As from 23 July 2019,
the Audit Committee will comprise two Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee 15
scheduled to meet at least three times a year. (tis

the Audit Committee’s role to provide formal and
transparent arrangements for considering how to
apply financial reparting under (FRS, the Companies
Act 2006, risk and the internal control requirements
of the Code and maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the independent auditor of the Group

The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that
the Group’s risks are understood, managed and mitigated
as far as practicable

leff Perrin is Chatrman of the Audit Committee being
a gqualified Chartered Certified Accountant and having
experience of the defence mdustry in prev-ous and
current roles, The current terms of reference of the
Audit Committee were reviewed and updated in

June 2017.

Consideration of the financial statements
in making its recommendation that the financial
statemeants be approved by the Board, the Audit
Committee has taken account of the following
significant issues and judgement areas:

Areas of judgement

Revenue and profit recognition on fixed-price contracts
The judzement applied in recogmsing revenue on

a contract over time as performance obligations

are completad is in respect of the input costs incurred
and the attributable margin The latter s particularly

a judgement in respect of estimating the cost to
complete on a particular contract and the remaining
risk and associated contingency. This cost contingency
takes account of the stage that the contract has reached
and any judgement and uncertainty remaining to deliver
the remainder of the contract. Itis usual for these cost
contingencies to reduce as the contract progresses
and risk and uncertainty reduce.

Goodwill

The Group has recognised goodwilt and other intangible
assets in respect of the acquisitions of Chess, MASS,
SEA {including I1+58), MCL and EID. The other intangible
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Auditor’s remuneration

2019 33
£'000 BEEE
Fz2q gavania s the Comrpany’s auditor mor ne 3.0t
of tne Comasty and consondate st accownts 56 19
lees nayabia to the Company’s aud to” for the audt
uf the Comaary’s subsiciaries 195 126
Tatal aud t fees 251 145
Interim review fee 20 20
Other non-audit fees 129 10
Total non-audit fees 149 30
Total fees paid to the auditor and its associates 400 175
Charged to profit for the year 400 175

assets are in respect of contracts acquired, intellectual
property rights and specific opportunittes and in each
case are amortised over the expected ife of the earnings
associated with the other intangible assets acquired.
The goodwili, which is not subject to amortisation but
to at least annual impairment testing, arises from the
intangible elements of the acquired businesses for
which either the value or life is not readily derived.
This includes, but is not limited to, reputation, customer
relations, contacts and market synergies with existing
Group members The goodwili relating to the acquisitions
of MASS, SEA {including §+5), MCL and EID has been
tested for impairment as at 30 April 2019; this s an area
of judgement. In each case there was no impairment.
The Group's 2019 post-tax WACC of 7.9% 1s lower

than the 2018 eqguivalent of 12.4%, which reflects
lower volatility, partly offset by higher interest rates.
These post tax WACC amounts are equivalent to a
pre-tax WACC of 12.5% {2018: 17.3%}).

Sensitivty was applied to the impairment tests to deliver
a matenal impairment of goodwill as reportad in note 9.

Chess was acquired on 12 December 2018, As such the
goodwill in respect of this recent acquisition has not
been subjected to impairment testing as the business’
prospects since acquisition have not materiaily changed.

Provisions

The Group makes estimates of provisions for existing
commitments arising from past events. In estimating
these provisions, the Group makes judgements as to
the gquantity and likelihcod of the liability arising.
Certain provisions reguire more judgement than others.
In particular, warranty provisions and contract loss
provisions have to take account of future outcomes
arising from past deliveries of products and services.
In estimating these provisions, the Group makes use
of management experience, precedents and specific
contract and customer ssues.

Accounting policies

in the year ending 30 April 2019, the Group applied
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Custemers” for
the first time with a restatement, where apphcable, of
the reported results for the year ended 30 April 2018.

The impact of IFRS 15 1s shown in note 30.

IFRS 16 “Leases”, which will apply from 1 May 2018,
has also been assessed and its expected impact is
shown 1n note 24,



Alternative performance measures (APMs)

Tha Groun ceports a namze” oF APMSs which ara not in accodance with the ranarirg ~equire~a--3 0 [R5
Tre Awdit Corm ttee has eviewed 'nese cuooag tne year erdeg 30 Apra 2013 to 2nsure tne, are aporopriate
ard that noedach case

»toareg,or for the ruse s c2arly 2xp'aned.

P ibey are reconcilan totne equna'ent IFRS f gurs, anc

B iney are rot gwvan prormirance over the ecuwalent IFRS figure
The most important APMs repoaried by the Group are as follows:

Adjusted operating profit

This s used by the Group to report wnat the Boa-c considers 1s its trading prof-tin a congistent manner, yoar on year,
to provide the readers of the accounts with a consistent comparative Thisis derived from the operating profit

as reparted under IFRS by excluding amortisation of other intangible assets, all of which arises on acquisition of
subsidianes, research and development expenditure credits (RDEC), which were previcusly shown in the reported
tax figure, exceptional itemns, including acquisitions costs and reorganisations and foreign exchange movements
from non-trading activities, including marking forward exchange contracts to market value

The reconciliation of operating profit (IFRS) to adjusted cperating profitis shown in the Consolidated income
statement (page 67) for the Group and in note 1 on page 73 for the Group's subsidiaries. The following table
shows the Group’s adjusted operating profit compared with operating profit for the last five years:

2013 2017 2J1A
2019 rastated) rastytedy) irestatsd | 2213
£m £7 £m fm fn
Adjusted operating profit 16.2 15.2 14.4 117 10.1
Operating profit 5.9 103 09 51 59

1 Prior yea” comparatives have poer rostated Lpon the Grouc's adopt on of IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts w th Customers” See note 30
for details regarding the restatement

The main difference between the two figures 1s the amortisation of other intangible assets value which arises on
the acquisition of businesses.

The trading performance of the Group s better reflected by the adjusted operating profit.

Adjusted earnings per share

Based upon the adjusted operating profit after taking account of tax applying to adjusted operating profit and
interest to enable the Group to report an earnings per share figure based upon what the Board considers s a
more appropriate and comparable carnings basis.,

This 1s reconciled to the headline {IFRS) earnings per share in note 8.

Independent auditor

The independent auditor haises with the Audit Cormmittee regarding work to be undertaken and comphes with
the Fthical Standards far Auditors issued by the Auditing Practices Board. Prior to commencing its audit wark, the
independent auditor confirmed in writing the nature of any non-audit work carried out on behalf of the Group
and the safeguards in place to ensure its independence and objectivity. Any in-year propaosals for non-audit work
are subject to prior approval by the Audit Committee.

The independent auditor presented its audit plan to the Audit Committee prior to the Audit Committee meeting
held in December 2018 The plan was reviewed and approved at that meeting with specific areas of focus by the
independent auditor discussed in detail for the ensuing audit.

The independent auditor (KPMG LLP} was appointed in March 2010. The audit engagement partner has heen
changed for the year ended 30 Apnl 2019.

The analysis of KPMG LLP (2018: KPMG LLP) remuneration 1s shown in the table on page 44.

Fees payable to KPMG LLP and its associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required (o be
disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated
basis only.

The other non-audit fee charged to profit for the vear ended 30 April 2019 included £125,000 in respect of
financial due diligence on the acquisition of Chess Technologies Ltd. The audit fee included £22,000 in respect of
the audit of the acquisition accounting for the same business. These items {£147,000 in total) have been included
in the acquisition costs of Chess Technologies Lid, reported as an exceptional item in the income statement.

Jeff Perrin
Independent Non-executive Director and Senior Independent Director
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Risk management and principal risks

Risk management

The cay rics and the maragemeant *haraof 372 58t ous
on pazes 47031 nazdit ontahese risc, other e
faci~g the Groun ar2 2xpia ned 2isewkere in the

Arnua Report and these should pe read together

to gwe acomolet2 oicture of aur risks ard their
management and contros

Specifica'y, tre econamic market risks [inctuding Brext)
are discussed 10 the Chairman’s statement and Business
rav.2w and tha cyber nisk of the Grouo 1s diszussed
within the corporate governance rzport, alongside
our etnical and behavioural risks

Finally, our risk in respect of our key rescurce, our
employees, is contained within this Risk management
section but also expanded upon in Business model and
the Cur people section of this report.

The Board's approach to risk management is
summarised by the following framework:

Risk management framework

s

Executive Management

Group-wide business risk register

The Group faces a number 2 risks, the signf.cant
ones o7 wnich ara set au haiow The Group reviaws,
ara yses and addresses tra s faces throogh tne
Avat Camrattee, Baoars Groun Dxeout ve meetings,
sulzs iary ranagament maetirgs and subsimary
aroject anc furcliona. reviews

Depending upon the naturs aof the risk review and
action may te or ar anncal basis, 11 mos” casas the
review I1s more frecuert Project risks are gererally
reviewsd monthly through ~he indw dual project reviews,
subsidiary management meatirgs and reports to the
Cohort Board

Cohort plc Board

Audit Committee

-

- —_r —
Top-down review
¥
Risk review

B

1

Bottom-up review

I ]
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Business risk

Capacity to grow the Group

Az ar AINVI-Ysted Groep, Cobort's sTrategy 550 grow,
oot argamicaly and by acgusinzt Tns givesrise
to tne risk of the Group 1ot Naving the tapacity to
grow ir ine with ous strategic ogject ves Spec fic
alemenis 0f tharsrcluds our aodity o wn new
ous.ness, design new and competitive products,

and soiuTons, whilst ensuring that we meaet oLr
obligations to our customers and dentify and
execute suitable value adding acquisitions

The e aments o tb s aroad cuvimess nisk ar2 3adressed ne'ow,
ssgecially the rses o respect of Tustomess, DPerations, acsuist ons
arc tregsuy

At g higner 'ever, aur faderated model of relatively smalt indepanrdent
ousiresses enanles us to respond mare Juickly to changing markat
and business conditions. Each business is anie to retan through this
indepencence a good degree of iInngvat on and responsiveness,

This model also allows our Gusinesses to keep close to customer
requirements and technical changes to enable them to identify
the need for new products and solutions and how best this 1s
achieved, whether through our own development or utilising
third-party technologies.

To ensure that the business growth opportuntties are value adding,
whether new business, products, services or acquisitions, appropriate
controls are in place in both our subsidiaries” businesses and at Group
level ta lessen the risks of such undertakings

Market risks

Customers

The Group’s single most important customer remains
the UX MOD. £46.1m of revenue came directly from
this source in 2019 {2018: £42.7m)}, 38% (2018: 39%)
of Group revenue.

In addition, £16.2m (2018: £20.8m) of Group revenue,
13% (2018: 19%), was sourced ultimately from the
UK MOD but received via other contractors. With the
continuing constraints of government expenditure
and the current uncertainties arising from Brexit
there 15 a risk that further cantrols on defence
expenditure could be introduced, which could have
an impact on the Group’s ability to win new work or
could result in termenation of its existing contracts.
Any event which effects the Group's reputation with
the UK MOD could also put this revenue at risk,

The decrease in the proportion of its revenue to its ultimate primary
customer in 2019 compared with 2018 reflects the acquisition of
Chess, which had no direct revenue with the UK MOD in the current
year, and also growth in export sales, security and transportin the
underlying Group. The direct sales to UK MOD increased, mostly a
result of increased MCL revenue but also a return to growth in SEA’s
research activity. The indirect revenue to UK MOD decreased with
mast of this due to lower submarine activity at SEA, again as expected.
As we said last year, we expect this revenue stream to remaimn low in
the next two years as the submarnine production work is elongated,
mostly due to UK MOD budgeting prassures

The Pertuguese MOD, which 1s also 2 horme market for the Group,
was steady at £4 4m {4%]1n 2013 (2018 £4 5m; 4%) We expect
revenue to the Portuguese MOD to increase in the coming year with
land programmes getting underway and naval programmes coming
back on track. Non-defence sales (which include security} also
increased to £23.7m (20%) from £16.6m {15%) The marked growth
was due to security increasing as a resuit of the initial contribution
from Chess in delivering C-UAV systems and serwvices to UK airports
including Gatwizk.

Transport revenue grew significantly on last year, from £5.3m to
£9.2m. This was due to the first deliveries of Red Light systems to
Network Rail and growth in underlying ROADflow sales from £3.4m
to £3.6m.

In export markets, £31.9m of revenue (26%) was delivered this year
compared with £26.3m (24%) in 2018. This growth was expected.
and has been driven by MASS delivering maore electronic warfare
services, torpedo launcher systems and Krait sonar arrays at SEA
and by the introduction of Chess.

£337m {2018 £33.9m), 28% (2018: 31%} of Group revenue, representing
54% (2018: 53%) of revenue derved from the UK MOD, was in relation
to the Astute and other submarine programmes, nuclear deterrent
programmes and operational support to the Royal Navy, Royal Air Force
and Joint Forces, all of which have been confirmed as high pricrity areas
following the Government's Strategic Defence and Security Review.

Cohortplc.com
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Risk management and principal risks continued

p—g

9 Unchanged

@ Increased [ ) Decreased

PARTRA IR I I At S

Operational risks

Employees

Toe 3rzup's ma nrosource s gur emp oyees Weare
not & 2amital atensive bus ness and as such our vaiee
anc oLr custamears’ value derives from the aoidity of
e Growp torecrus, £213 0 30d tran employess witn
the ngntskills and flexaniliny In some of our key areas,
resources ara amited, ardits 3 nisk if we canroat
mainta:n sufficient nurrbers and appropriate skills

Asbighlightes i~ "Our paooa” (pages 34 and 35), wo enC23vodr to
provide an crraronment vowh ch s led employees are att-aciec

*0 ouf basiness through the nature ard variety of work ana the .eve!
of responsiolity e can gprovide We maintain close 'irks with our
miltary and secunty custamers, wha provide 2 prorary sou-ie

of Joman exparts for our busingssas We, inreturn, are keento
sappnart peaole initatves for and within those orgamsations,
including the UK MOD's Military Covenant.

We maintain close hnks with academic institutions in our
neighbourhoods and further afield where appropriate skills exist.

We have apprenticeship and graduate recruitment schemes which
ensure the Group is able to develop its own people to ensure skills
are maintained inte the future, especially in light of shrinking
military establishments.

{

Suppliers

As is typical in the defence sector, the Group s
reliant on certain key supplers for specific elements
of 1ts technical and product offerings. This reliance
Is long term, with product duration in this sector
often being tens of years.

This risk 15 managed through close haison with suppliers, goad
project management and having contingency plans to contract
with alternative suppliers or bring the work in house,

The long-term life of many defence products requires a regular
review of product life and capability and the Group supparts the
customer in this respect through fundad ongoing product support
and re-life tasks.

Operations (Chess, EID, MASS and

SEA)

The subsidiary trading and business risks are similar
in the cases of Chess, EID, MASS and SEA.

i.  Bid risk — the businesses bid on contracts where
the scope of work may not be weil or fully
defined by the customer.

ii. Fixed-price contracts — these are often of a
iong-term nature (greater than 12 morzths)
and typically include delivery of hardware and
software, some of which may be developed as
part of the contract.

ii. Due to the nature of their niche technical skills
requirement, Chess, EID, MASS and SEA all have
a fixed level of core software and hardware
engineering and technical expertise

This is typical in defence and 15 managed through bid/no bid reviews
at the appropriate level using experienced personnel, including the
Cohort Executive and Board.

These projects are managed by dedicated project management teams,
manthly reviews by the subsidiary board and regular interaction with
the customer and key supphers. Revenue and costs are recagnised
taking account of risk and the estimatad cost at completion {including
any contingency). More intensive reviews introduced last year at SEA
have arrested unexpected cost overruns we had seen during 2018,

This cost base 1s carefully maonitored at budget time and by rolling
quarterly forecasts to identify any potential nsk of low utilisation and
thus under recovery of cost, or over-utilisation leading ta the inability
to meet customer commitments.

The risk is mitigated, in the short term, by the use of sub contractor
staff. In the long term, a programme of skills assessment and training
15 in place to ensure continued flexibility of the Group’s engineering
and technical resources.

Chess was acguired in December 2018. Chess brings with 1t more
production, including machining, than seen elsewhere in the Group.

During our due dihgence and in our first few months of ownership,
we have observed weaknesses in Chess's project caontrol pracess with
poatential implications for delivery and cost control.

We have already taken action to address this and expect to have an
improved project control process in place during the coming year.

We are also addressing key management roles in respect of production
and engineering.
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Operational risks continued

Operations {(MCL)

MCSs mevanie sl T snort 3t rypica e three to
siemontas Thscars 2s nsk tastaf® atisat on ang
prad crabuty of ~evenue a~d prafit

NCLy sta™t leve's are ow, 2219302014 30 arc the people
amployed are T exinle 31d Dossess ~u Tplesais enablirg trem (o
ta<e o des'ge, integratior and sugpo~ tasks acroas the ful range of
WCUs oraduct offerirg N bas 3 ong-term strategy to mprove its
vis bty by sacunirg lorger-term cantracts, utihsing tne Group's size
ard financiai staoility. 1ts arder cover fur 2019720 5 lower thar ast
yaar's 3475 [2018: 42%), but MCL has «entified several sigmiicant
opportunities this year that should allow it to buld future

revenue visibility.

Managed service contracts

The Group {through 1ts subsidiaries, MASS, MCL and
SEA) cperates a number of off-site managed service
contracts. These contracts are long term in nature
(typically five years at commencement} and have
dedicated project managers. The contracts are fixed
price in terms of revenue with opportunities for
additional tasks enhancing volume and return.

As mentioned last year, MASS had some important
long-term managed service contracts to be renewed
or replaced. During the year it secured most of these
with a small service provision contract being fost in
competition, The arder value secured from renewals
was nearly £70m and further renewals are due in the
coming financial year.

The Group carefully manages the partnership with 1ts customer and
supplier base n all these cases to ensure the customer recelves value
for maney, with skilled Group staff providing a dedicated, flexible
and responsive approach. The primary risk to these managed service
contracts is termination or loss through cormpetition. We mitigate
this risk through the partnering approach adopted by the Group and
our close engagement with customers to ensure their needs are met.

Export contracts

The Group’s subsidiaries seek to win and deliver
solutions and services outside its geographical home
markets, the UK and Portugal.

The risks that arise for the Group relate to the need
to comply with local and domestic legislation, and to
ensure we receive payment in circumstances where
palitical and credit risk may be much higher thanin
our domestic markets There is also a risk that export
licences may not be granted or may be cancelled.

The Group’s long-term strategy is to grow 1ts export business, both in
terms of volume and markets. This provides mitigation against reliance
on any single customer, in particular the UK Ministry of Defence {MOD).
Export actwvity in 2019 represented 25% {2018 24%) of the Group’s
total revenue. Revenue derived from the UK and Portuguese defence
ministries represent 51% {2018: S8%) and 4% {2018: 4%) of the Group
total respectively.

Cur commercial staff are highly experienced at dealing with the
various regulatory processes associated with the export of defence
goods and services, including export hcence applications and information
security requirements. In particular we have a strong Group-wide
anti-bribery policy to ensure compiiance with the UK's 2010 Bribery
Act The Group has experienced a very low level of bad debts, including
from export contracts We take a case-by-case approach to payment
risk, making use of various treasury and commercial arrangements
where necessary to ensure payment. We regularly monitor any potential
nolitical risk to any of our export markets, and we do not commit
resources to markets where export licences might be difficult to obtain,

Partners

The Grouip, especially in the defence sector, often
secures business through teaming and partnering
with other suppliers and this is often a requirement
of securing work with the UK MOD in order to
ensure the end customer receives the best solution.
This creates a risk that the Group's revenue or
profit will be affected by poor performance of
apartner business.

The Group takes an active part In thess arrangements and,

through regular {usually monthly) project review meetings and

other communication, ensures that the team {including cur partners)
delivers as a whole to the customer and to the needs of the
individuat team members.

Cohortplc.com

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cohart pic

49

aueuwsaaod ajeiodio)



Risk management and principal risks continued

@ Unchanged @ Increased f@ Decreased

Myt

Strategic risks

Acquisitions

Tre puying jard st gt of businessas iz 3 75w
nrespect of value, distract or, ntagraton and
orgoirg obigations and urdarra<nas

. Tn

e Group's acgus .o sk s m Tigateg as far aspract.oabie by e
acguisition process beorgled at the Cohort Board levetl, making use

of 3 3¢ led and expar enced internal tear augmented oy ex ernal

" expertise ard resources as and woen reguired. Our app-aach to

acquisitions «5 set out reore fully in our Business mode section

an pages 10 ard 11, Duning the y2ar ended 30 Apr | 2013, the Groun
acquired 81 84% of Chess. In respect of mitizating the acauisition sk,
Cohort had iritially engaged with Chessin 2013 and has had
discussions with varying levels of intensity over the last five years,

Due diligence was conducted by an mternal team, many of whom had
warked on the acquisitions of EID, J+$ and MCL. External due diligence
also utilised teams we had worked with previcusly in the financial and
INsurance arenas.

Financial risks

Treasury

Over the last 12 months, the credit ratings of most
of our banks (see note 15) have remained steady
Specifically, in the UK, changes to the banking
sector have resulted in the Group's deposits,
accounts and banking arrangements being moved
into the ring-fenced banks of NatWest and Lloyds,
improving the credit ratings and reducing our risk.

In Novernber 2018 the Group completed a new bank
facility with Lloyds and NatWest. NatWest remains the
Group's primary hank, especially for clearing purposes
and day-to-day transactions. The facility 1s a revolving
credit facility for four years with an option to extend
for ane year. The amount is £30m with an option to
extend by a further £10m to £40m. The facility itselt
pravides the Group with a flexibie arrangement to
draw down for acquisitions and overdrafts.

This tfacility 15 avadable to all of the Group's UK entities
{excluding EID) through an offset arrangement. The
current facility expires in November 2022, although
the Group has an option to exterd it for one year.

The facibity is secured against all of the Group's UK
businesses {and assets) including the Group's shares
in EID E'D has faclives with local banks in Partugal,
none of which have security ovar its assets. These
facilities are for clearing bank purposes, overdraft,
foreign exchange contracts, guarantees and letters
of credit.

A risk for the Group is that its pools of cash
and facilities, both in the UK and Porzugal, are
insufficient for focal needs.

Under the facility agreement with 1ts banks, the
Group Is required to meet certain covenants every
guarter. There s a risk that the Group does not meet
some or all of the covenants and that the facility is
amended or cancelled as a consequence.

The Group takes a very prudent approach to the management of its
financial instruments, which are described in note 18 The Group’s
cash (see note 15) is usually held with at least Baa3-rated institutions
(including Portugal) and on deposits usually not exceeding three months.
This ensures a very low risk to capital and a reasonable baiance of
liguidity against interest earned on cash deposits.

The Group regularly reviews the ratings and other relevant factors in
respect of the banks with which it deposits its cash and on each and
every occasion that a short-term deposit is ptaced.

The Group prepares a monthly cash forecast to ensure that cash in
the UK and Portugal 1s sufficient for locat needs over the following
three-month period. The shareholder agreement in respect of EID
enables dividends to be paid from EID to the UK.

The Group regularly monitors its covenant position and consigers
the impact of propased transactions vis-a-vis upon the banking covenants
to ensure that they are not breached. It also has regular (no less than
twice yearly) meetings with 1ts banking providers to ensure that any
potentiat issues or risks aredentified and communicated early and
that any implications for covenants can be addressed

The Group has remained in comphance with its banking covenants
in 2019 and expects to continue 1o do so

Cohart plec Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Financial risks continued
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Currency risk

The GroLp has contrdnty w T Dversaas
303 5LEDIET: FEQUNNG gaymert o7 rece
carrardies other 1han steriing 1 e LK and
euro in Potugal)

The Groud's expoasure ro crade ris< ar 30 Apnil 2018
in resoazt of financial der vatives {forward "ore gn
exchange contracts) was £9 6m of payabie and
£0.4m of receivable (2018: £2 3m of payable and
£0.8m of recevable).

The financial dervatives at 30 April 2019 were
held with NatWest, Lloyds and Investec Bank
{30 April 201R: NatWest, Lloyds, Barclays and
Investec Bankj. These are disclosed in detail in
note 1% to the financial statements,

The Group mManags2s ts 2x0os.are T curend, 3k by us ng fo-aara
foreign carrency exchange contracts The level of “grware cover 15
determined on an nd vidual contract bas s, taking into account the
net currancy ex3osure to rece1nts and purchases ror vard contracts
a2 only put in place when the award o7 customea- contracts has

' rtacen place or 5 cons-tered hignly probable T2 Group does not
enter into speculative Torward exchange contracts The Group's

primary exposure is ta the US dollar through MCL which purchases
a number of products in the US, and SEA, which sells products to
US customers.

The Group does not hedge the exposure to euro/sterting fluctuations
that arise from its ownership of £iD.

Revenue

The Group has risk in respect of.
1. milestone and acceptance falure on projects; and
1. unrecoverable trade debts.

The recognition of revenue is discussed at length
in the accounting policies {page 107) and critical
accounting judgements {page 109} and as such
may from time to time have a degree of risk.

The 2019 net bad debt charge was £NIl
{2018: £16,000) on Group revenue of £121.5m
{2018 restated": £110.5m).

financtal assets expased to credit risk at 30 Apnit:

2008

2019 £m

£Em irestated

Trade receivables 19.9 17.3
Other receivables including

contract assets 231 17.4

Cash and bank deposits 18.8 205

1 Prieryear tomoaratves gy peonrestated upor e Graep s

adop' oot iE35 15 "Ravaq e from Tontracts w o1 Customers”
see not2 33 for detals ~oga-ding Tne ~2srarament

The Group takas a prudent appreach to revenue and credit risk,
and any work done at risk is minimal, authorised at the appropnate
tevel and reviewed on a monthiy basis. The Group uses project
control processes and regularly reviews project progress to ensure
recognition of revenue takes account of external milestones and
customer acceptance as well as the internal costs incurred.

The calibre of the Group’s custamers and the contral processes in
respect of revenue capture and invoicing ensures minimal bad debts.

The Group also uses letters of credit and other methods of payment
guarantee, including customer advances, especially in respect of
overseas customers, to ensure any export debt risk is mimimised.

Significant debt recewable in foreign currency s hedged using
forward exchange contracts.

The credit risk of the major debtor of the Group, the UK MQOD,
15 considered very low.

The Group's risk to trade receivables is higher in some of our
non-defence markets where our customers are not all
governmeant bodies

The Group also has a risk, even for government business, where we
contract via a pnme contractor. This risk has beer low historicaily,
especially in the defence sector, but collapses such as Carillion
nighlight that prime contractor risk needs to be monitored.

Caohartplc.com
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Directors’ report

Introduction

Tae Drectars presant the rreanrt and “he aud "ed nancial staterents inazas 5750 10 of Cohors p's for the
32 apr: 2019 Conor peo s 3 co™pany Inc27poratad n 3~ operat 0g fram Englangd s regisreren

> Cnethatessde Drove ArlingTon Bus ness Park, Tnexe, Reading RG7 15 Tre Corporats goverranio
~2p0rTintida ng Boare Comrm Tmen tenorisi 3ve et 0.l 8N 0ages 3810 51 and oo oart of tas eport,

Principal activities
Trie princpat activity of the Company s that of 3 holding comoany The princpal act vities of the Group a-@
descmbeg nous Busimess review 07 pages 14 to 33

Trne Zharman’s staterrert s incuded (= the Ove-vew 522000 an pagas 6 1o 3.

Dividends

The Directors recommeand a final dividend of 6.25 pence (2018: 5 65 pencel per 10 pence ord:nary share which,
subject to shareholder approval, 1s due to be paid on 18 September 2019 to ordinary shareholders on the register
on 23 August 2019 Together with the interim dividend of 2.85 pence paid on 27 February 2013, the full divdend
far the year will be 9.10 pence (2018: 8.20 pence}, an increase of 11% over last year.

Table 1: Information in respect of the Directors of the Company

BRI TS Rzpa-t PdEes
Directors who served throughout the year Remuneration & Appointments Committee report 54 10 59
Directors retiring by rotation Remuneration & Appointments Committee report 54 1o 59
Directors’ biographies Board of Directors and Executive Management 36 to 37
Directors’ interests Remuneration & Appointments Commitiee repart 5410 59
Directors’ share options Remuneration & Appointments Committee report 54 t0 59

Table 2: Substantial shareholdings and voting rights

Pecontage of

vt g gt

and b e Humber of

3ars raital ardinary Natare of

” EIETI™ roldirg

S Carter 22.22 9,099,802 Direct
Schroders 1503 6,155,488 Direct
Canaccord Genuity Wealth Management 10.50 4,300,929 Direct
Liontrust Asset Management 750 3,072,779 Direct
FIL Investment International 531 2,176,100 Direct
N Prest CBE 5.07 2,075,738 Direct

Research and development
During the year ended 30 April 2019 the Group expenditure on research and development, both on behalf
of customers and the Group's own private venture expenditure, was £8.8m {2018: £5.9m).

Going concern
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on the going concarn basis. The reasons for this are set out
on page 103 of the accounting policies.

Capital structure

Details of issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year, are shown in note 19. The Company has one class of ardinary shares, each of which carries
nao right to Nixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed
by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legisiation. The Directors are not aware
of any agreements between holders of the Company's shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of
securities or on voting rights.

Details of employee share schemes are set out In note 28, The Trustee of the Cohort Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)
{see note 21) abstains from voting on the Company's shares held on trust and these shares do not receive any dividend.

Al 30 Aprit 2018, the EBT held 98,053 Cohort plc ordinary shares, 0.24% of the 1ssued share capital {2018, 341,128; 0 83%)
The maximum number held at any ttme in the year ended 30 April 2019 was 373,628, 0 91% of the issued share
capital. Shares in Cohort plc are acquired and disposed of by the EBT for the purposes of satisfying employee share
option and Restricted Share Schemes, details of which are shown in nate 21.
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on pages 38t2343,

Under its Articles of Associatian, the Company has
authority to 1ssue up to half of its issued shares as new
ordinary shares, This approximates to 20,.5m shares at
30 April 2019,

There are also a number of ather agreements that
take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control
of the Company, such as: commercial contracts; bank
facility agreements; property lease arrangements; and
employee share plans. None of these are considered
to be significant in terms of their likkely impact on the
business of the Group as a whole, Furthermaere, the
Directors are not aware of any agreements between
the Company and its Directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs because of a takeover bid,
other than those disclosed in the Remuneration &
Appointments Committee report on pages 54 to 5.

International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)

The Grougp and parent company's reported results
for the year ended 30 Aprid 2019 are prepared n
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the £U.

Directors

The Group maintains appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against the Directors, as well
as against material foss or claims against the Group,
and reviews the adequacy of the cover regularly.

Details of information in respect of the Directors of
the Company are referenced in Table 1 on page 52.

Fixed assets

There is no matertal difference between the book
value and current open market value of the Group’s
interests in land and buitdings.

Employee consultation

The Group organises staff commumications locally
through its subsidiary undertakings as well as delivering
an annual strategy presentation to all the Group’s
employees at the main sites of employment. The media
used for organised communications includes the Group
intranet, local intranets, in-house magazines, staff
bulletins, presentations and copies of press releases.
In addition, regular staff meetings are held, and notices
are published containing information about matters
of interest within the Group and its subsidiaries.

Cohortale.com

Disabled employees
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Donations

Juning the yea- onded 30 Apr | 2019 the Group made
charitable donations of £26,183 {2018 £37,5861,
mainiy in respect of military and local charities. The
Group made no political donations during the year
(2018: £Nil).

Substantial shareholdings

The Company has been notified as at 7 June 2019,

n accardance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, of the voting nghts of substantial
sharehalders of the Company as shown in Tahle 2

on page 52

Re-appointment of auditor
A resolution to re-appaint KPMG LLP as auditor will
be proposed at the AGM.

The Directors who were in office on the date of
approval of these financial statements have confirmed,
as far as they are aware, that there is no relevant audit
infarmation of which the auditor is unaware. Each of
the Directors has confirmed that they have taken all
the steps they ought to have taken as Directors in
order to make themselves aware of any relevant

audit information and to establish that it has been
communicated to the auditor.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 July 2019
and signed on its behalf by:

Simon Walther
Company Secretary
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Remuneration & Appointments Committee report
Sir Robert Walmsley KCB, FREng, Non-executive Director

Introduction

The Remuneration & Appointments Committee of
the Board is, inter aha, responsible for considering
Directors’ remuneration packages and making
recommendations to the Board. On 23 July 2019,
Edward Lowe replaced Sir Robert Walmsley as
Chairman of the Remuneration & Appointments
Committee. Sir Robert stepped down from the
Rermuneration & Appointments Coammittee on

the same date. This report has been prepared by
Sir Rebert, as it relates to remuneration matters
dealt with during his period as Chairman.

Remuneration policy
Remuneration packages are designed Lo be competitive
and to incentivise and reward good performance.

Executive Directors receive salary, medical cover
{including an annual medical} and pension cont-ibutions
as well as being eligible for annual cash bonuses,
restricted shares and share aptions.

Directors’ interests (unaudited)

Service contracts of the Executive Directors

who served in the year

Andrew Thomis and Simon Walther have service
agreemeants with the Company which can be canceiled
by either party giving six months’ notice at any time or
12 months’ notice in the event of losing office following
a change of control arising as a result of any person or
persons acquiring more than 50% of the voting rights
at a general meeting of the Company.

Pensions

For the period from 1 May 2018 to 31 March 2019, the
Group made contributions to a stakeholder pension
scheme {3 defined contribution scheme) at a rate of
10% of any Executive Director’s contribution plus 3%
of the Executive Director’s salary per annum to the
same scheme. From 1 April 2019, the Company has
paid (and will continue to pay) to the Executive Director
4% of annual salary as a retirement allowance. This
payment does not count towards the Executive Director's
determination of borus. This is a result of the impact
of HMRC tax regulations in respect of a cap cn annual
pension contributions of £10,000 and an increase in
emplayer auto enrclment contributions to 4% of
annuat salary from this date.

At 30 April ar VAN

2019 014

Number of Sanbar of

10p ordinary  10p ardinary

sharas sharas

S Carter 9,099,802 9,105,718
N Prest CBF 2,076,738 2,076,738
I Perrin 4,000 4,000
A Thomis 169,702 145,658
Sir Robert Walmsley 30,000 30,000
S Walther 173,292 126,907
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Directors’ interests in the equity of Cohort plc (unaudited)
Toa Oirasrass v ooft 22 4.7 A3 tae yeas under raviaw and thair interastsinthe eq iy of the Comoany 372 srown  the mapi2 3pove Toe
cnanges in tra Exacatne Drectors’ aquity intares s m ioe Campany betweer 30 Aor i 2318 a~g 33 Ap-- 2019 a-e a~alysed as fo lows:

4030 Apnl 202138 145,638 125807

Shares awarded unde- Rest cted S-are Schere 13,779 14,695
Corart piz shares poronasec torough Conort 21 SAYE schame 2,300 468
Shares acguired uncer Coho-t olc 2006 share 09t ors scher-e — 30,109
Autamatic div aand raimvestment in smaraes within a~ ISA and,'or a 5iPP) 3002 1,138
Shares sald on transfer of shares to an ISA/SIPR (37) 25}
At 30 April 2019 169,702 173,292

The Executive’s shareholdings at 30 Aprii 2019 represent 257% of Andrew Thomis” and 335% of Simon Waltner's annual salaries respecuvely
(at 30 April 2018 the respective levels were 212% and 237%) and are based upon the market price of Cohort plc shares at those respective
dates: £3.725 at 30 April 2019 and £3.500 at 3C Aprnil 2018.

Of the above shareholdings at 30 Aprid 2019, 26,211 ({2018: 22,321) of Andrew Thomis’ and 20,541 (2018: 17,599} of Simon Walther's are
held on trust by the EBT as part of the Restricted Share Scheme and do not receive a dividend,

There was no change in the interests of the other Directars with the excepticn of Staniey Carter, whose interests were reduced by 5,915
shares in the year by transfer to non-dependent family members. None of the Chairman’s or the Non-executive Directors’ shareholdings
are held as part of the Restricted Share Scheme (2018: £Nil).

Performance incentives {unaudited)

The Cohort Executive Directors’ incentive scheme was agreed by the Beard on 19 June 2013 following a recommendation from the
Remuneration & Appointments Committee. This scheme has applied for the year ended 30 April 2019 and wiil also apply for the year
ended 30 April 2020.

The Remuneration Committea expects to review the performance incentive scheme of the Executive Directors and other members
of the Group Executive Management during the coming financial year.

The incentive scheme comprises two elements:

1. In-year performance

The bonus payable to the Cohort Executive Directors in respect of cach and every year will be based upon actual performance compared
1o budget for adjusted operating profit and operating cash flow [both measures excluding the impact of any in-year acquisiters and
disposals) and will be payable up to a maximum of 15% of salary in cash.

2. Long-term perfermance
The Cohort Executive Directars will be eligible to receve the foliowing annual rewards based upon achievirg a long-term annualised profit
growth target:

i, Upto 20% of salary as a cash bonus.

I Upto 20% of salary as Restricted Shares. The number of shares awarded under the Restricted Share Scheme is calculated by
reference to the average share price for the respective year.

Afurther 10% of salary over and above the 20% shown in 1 and 1. is payable ether as cash or Restricted Shares, not both, under the
long-term performance schems where the performance exceeds the 10% target set out betow.

o Adiscretionary award of up to 20% of salary as share options. The number of shares under option awarded is calculated by reference
to the market price on the day of grant.

The long-term performance awards are based upcn a historical growth target over four years. This growth target is used in determining
each of the following awards under the scheme:

i, cash;and
i Restricted Shares.

The discretionary share option award takes account of the Company's performance, inciuding the achieved growth, the return to
shareholders and market circumstances.

There are no future performance targets agplied to these awards.
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Remuneration & Appointments Committee report continued

Performance incentives (unaudited) continued

2. Long-term performance continued

Trese rewards ase oayadie or “he year ended 30 Apr| 2013 on a irear 0asis from zerc to 20% of s3:a-y as the corpou-c arnua grow™n
~ate nagustea profit before rierest and tas o2 snaqeafter excluging non cortroll ng ntercstsy over a ~olling four w3~ nar od starting
1 May 2015 goes fram zorg to L0%,

rthe zase of the discretionary share option awards, the Corrittes c2ns ders tne exercise 0F *he aptions {wh ch are 1ssued at mar<et
pr.caf should not be subject to future performance targets singe the moverment of the share price aftar the award date s its2lf the nght
parameter ta reflect the value of this companent of remuneration.

In the zase of the Rastrictad Snares awarded, full be~eficia. ownership of Restricted Shares (including voting and dividend rights) wll
accrue 1o the recipients in stages over a tnree-year period from the date of award Recipierts may only sell Rastrictad Sharas with the
approval of the Chairman of the Remuneration & Appointments Committeea while they remain in employment with the Company.
Income tax and National Insurance payable in relation to Restricted Shares is borne by the Company when awarded.

The Committee considers the award of Restr:cted Shares should not be subject to future performance targets as they are a reward
for actual achievement targets over a long {four years) period.

The Committee considers that this long-term incentive plan aligns the objectives of the Executive Directors with the shareholders.
The Committee retains discretionary powers in respect of awarding future annual cash bonuses in excess of 45% of annual salary
to the Executive Directors where circumstances warrant it.

At the Remuneration & Appaintments Committee meetinrg held on 22 July 2019, the following awards were made to the Executive Directors:
i.  Acash bonus of £109,624 was payable to the Executive Directors for the year ended 30 April 2019 (2018: £111,144).

1. Restricted Sharas under the Restricted Share Scheme were approved as follows:

In respect of the year ended rrespect of the ear enoed

30 April 2019 304pn1 2018
Estimated Actual
Actual value of actual ualue nf
number of shares aumber of sharas
shares £ shares 3
A Thomis 19,274 73,800 18,779 72,000
S Walther 15,082 57,749 14,695 56,340

34,356 131,549 33,474 128,340

The value of the Restricted Shares awarded were at 30% of salary for the year ended 30 Apnil 2019 (30% for the year ended 30 April 2018).

The totai estimated value received by the Executive Directors in respect of the Restricted Share Scheme, including income tax and
employee NIC was £248,205 in respect of the year ended 30 April 2019 {2018: £242,151). The Restricted Shares in respect of the year
ended 30 April 2018 were approved at the Remuneration & Appointments Committee meeting of 22 May 2018 and were awarded on

20 August 2018, The Restricted Shares inrespect of the year ended 30 Apnl 2019 are expected 1o be awarded in August 2019. Tne actual
rnumber of shares is based on the average mid-market share price for the year ended 30 April 2019, 382.9 pence (2018: 383.4 pence}.
The total estimated value is based on this average share price and the prevaihng tax rates.

li. Ordinary shares under option granted during the year ended 30 April 2019 and outstanding at 30 Apnit 2019 were as shown in
Table 1 on pages 57 and 58.

The mid-market price of Cohort plc 10 pence ordinary shares at 30 April 2018 was 372.5 pence (2018: 350.0 pence); the lowest and
highest market prices in the year were 422.0 pence and 345 .0 pence respectively
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N2 bonuses are payania or shars 2p19ns awardable to the Non-exesLtive Directars. Cash and snare bonus schemes “or other senior manags nert
of tre subs.diary comparias nave oeen 2stanlishad far the year ended 30 Aprii 2020, with 3 simailan framework to that 5f the Cohart

Sapcutva Dhrectars aitn vary ng 'ove 5 of percentage of salary, none 2xzeeding 45%,

subject o the d szreton of the Zommutlee.

Tne Growp has tae right 1o racayver f-om the Cohort Executive D ragtors and the ser o7 managemenrt of the subs diary comaaries any

cash conus 2aid ar shares roce ved in respect of a ~2portng per od where a matanal adyerse «estaterent 1s made

Chairman and Non-executive Directors (unaudited}

Both Nick Prest CBE ard Sir Robert Wa'lmsley were agpointed in February 2006. Stanley Carter was aoooinTed Non-executive Director
of Conort pic on 22 Septembear 2015 failowing his decision to step down as Co-Chairman on the same date. jeff Parrin was appointed
Non-executve Director on 1 July 2015, Edward Lows was agpointed Non-2xecutive Direzior on 1 July 201%. These apoointmants can

be termrated upon thrae months’ notice being given by aither party

Nick Prest and Stanley Carter are due to retire by rotation and, being eligibie, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM

on 17 September 2019,

Edward Lowe, who was appomted by the Board with effect from 1 July 2019, in accordance with the Articles of the Company, and, being
eligible, offers himself for election at the forthcoming AGM on 17 September 2019

Directors’ remuneration

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set cutin Table 2 on page 59.

Salaries for Andrew Thomis and Simon Walther have been increased to £260,750 and £204,000 per annum respectively for the year
ending 30 April 2020. The fees payable to the Chairman and the Non-executive Directars isee Table 2) for the year ending 30 April 2020
are unchanged from this year. Edward Lowe will be paid £45,000 per annum from 1 July 2019.

Table 1: Directors’ share options {audited)

At 1 May 2018 Date from
or date of Lapsed”’ At 30 April wnich opuon Exerzise
appaintment Granted Exerc sed farfeited 2019 Date af can be perod
Numpar Numiber Number humber Number Erdant eRoroised Tears
A Thomis
Cohort plc 2016 share option scheme (approved}
— Option price of £3.760 per share 7,978 — — — 7,978 25 Aug 2017 26 Aug 2020 7
Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme (unapproved)
— Option price of £1.675 per share 24,250 - — - 24,250 9 Aug 2013 10 Aug 2016 7
— Option price of £1.975 per share 4,153 — — — 4,153 11 Aug 2014 12 Aug 2017
— Option price of £3.725 per share 10,470 - - - 10,470 20 Aug 2015 21 Aug 2018 7
Cohart plc 2016 share option scheme (unapproved)
— Option price of £3.400 per share 12,471 - — — 12,471 15 Aug 2016 16 Aug 2019 7
— Option pnice of £3.760 per share 1,809 — — — 1,809 25 Aug 2017 26 Aug 2020 7
— Option price of £3.900 per share - 9,846 — - 9,846 10 Aug 2018 11 Aug 2021 7
Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme
~ Option price of £3 380 per share 2,300 — (2,300 — — 14 Aug 2015 15ep 2018
— Option price of £3.550 per share 1,176 - — — 1,176 29 Aug 2016 1 5ep 2019
— Option price of £4.085 per share 1,480 — — — 1,480 1 Sep 2017 2 Sep 2020
— Option price of £3.900 per share — 1,993 — — 1,993 15ep 2018 2 Sep 2021
56,087 11,839 {2,300) — 75,626
Cohortplc.com Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Cahort plc 57

2cueusanod ajesodio)



Remuneration & Appointments Committee report continued

Directors’ remuneration continued
Table 1: Directors’ share options (audited) continued

At 30 April L ".' e
3. = 2019 AR PR N
e L2t o R Number ar oo EaeEr T e LR
5Viaither
Cohort plc 2016 share option scheme (approved)
Option onice of £3 760 oer share 7,660 — — — 7,660 25 aug 2017 26 Aug 2020 7
Option orice of £3 900 per share - 307 — - 307 120A.g 2018 11 Aug 2021 7
Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme (unapproved) — — -
— Option price of £0 835 per share 55,172 —  (55,172) — - 23 Jul 2010 24 Jul 2013 7
— Cption price of £0.915 per share 30,252 —  {30,252) - 26 Jul 2011 27 Jul 2014 7
—Option price of £1.165 per share 63,000 — {65,000} - — 2 Aug 2012 3 Aug 2015 7
— Option price of £1.675 per share 21,750 - {21,750) — — 9 Aug 2013 10 Aug 2016 7
— Option price of £1.975 per share 406 — {408) — = 11 Aug 2014 12 Aug 2017 7
— Option price of £3.725 per share 8,483 - - - 8,483 20 Aug2015 21 Aug 2018 7
Cohort plc 2016 share option scheme (unapproved)
— Option price of £3.400 per share 9,882 — — — 9,882 15 Aug 2016 16 Aug 2019 7
- Qption price of £3 900 per share — 7397 — — 7,397 10 Aug 2018 11 Aug 2021 7
Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme
— Option price of £3.380 per share 468 — (468) — — 14 Aug 2015 15Sep 2018
- Qption price of £3.550 per share 1,287 — — — 1,287 29 Aug 2016 15ep 2019
— Option price of £4.085 per share 440 — — — 440 1Sep 2017 2 Sep 2020
— Option price of £3.900 per share — 673 — — 673 1 Sep 2018 25ep 2021
200,800 8,377 (173,048) — 36,129

There are no future performance conditions applying to any of the share option schemes above. The price paid for all share options
in the above schemes was Nil pence.

Both Andrew Thomis and Simon Walther have participated in the Cohort plc Share Incentive Plan (SIP) which was launched on
1 September 2018, As at 30 April 2019, contributions were made by each of £1,200. This would convert to 322 Cohort plc ordinary
shares as at 30 April 2019 based on the closing share price of £372.5 pence per share.

The terms of the Cohort plc SIP are set out in note 20.

As announced on & luly 2018, Simon Walther exercised 172,580 Cohort plc 2006 unapproved share options when the market price of
Cohort pic ordinary shares was 365.0 pence per share. Simon Walther disposed of sufficient shares to fund the option exercise, paying all
necessary tax and national insurance and realising cash proceeds of £125,003. The balance of 30,109 shares being retained at 30 April 2019

Simon Walther exercised 468 share options held under the Cohort pic SAYE scheme on 24 November 2018 when the mid-market price of
Cohert pic ordinary shares was 405.0 pence per share. All shares were retained.

Andrew Thomis exercised 2,300 share options held under the Cohort plc SAYE scheme on 16 November 2018 when the mid-market price
of Cohart plc ordinary shares was 420.0 per share. All shares were ratainad.

The aggregate amount of gains made by the Directors as a result of exercising share options during the year was £445,409.
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Table 2: Directors’ remuneration {audited)

Restricted Benefits Retirement Pension
Salary Bonus Share awards inkind allowanca  Emajuments cantributions Tatal
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£ £ £ 3 £ £ E £
Executive Directors
& Thomis 246,000 61,500 139,245 1,841 826 449,406 7,638 457,044
S wValtner 192,495 48,124 108,960 1,841 642 352,062 7,545 359,607
Non-executive Directors
N Prast 90,000 — — — - 90,000 - 90,000
S Carter 45,000 — — - - 45,000 - 45,000
1 Perrin 51,000 — — —— _ 51,000 _— 51,000
Sir Robert Waimsley 45,000 — — - — 45,000 — 45,000
Total 669,495 109,624 248,205 3,682 1,462 1,032,468 15,183 1,047,651
leff Perrin was paid £6,000 above his usual salary (of £45,000) for supporting the integration of Chess inte the Group. This addit:onal
work ceased in February 2019
Reyim.cted EERELIE ReTire vient Peasion
EEIEIRY dunus  Sharz awards in kind 1fowanre  Emolarments  2onTr bLbons Total
PNE] 2913 2313 2018 2313 2018 2013 2073
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ 3
Executive Directors
A Thormis 240,000 62,353 135,849 858 — 439,060 7920 446,980
S Walther 187,800 48,791 106,302 858 — 343,751 7,589 351,340
Non-executive Directors
N Prest 90,000 — — — — 90,000 - 90,000
S Carter 45,000 — — — - 45,000 — 45,600
1 Perrin 45,000 — - - — 45,000 - 45,000
Sir Robert Walmsley 45,000 — — — — 45,000 — 45,000
Total 652,800 111,134 242,151 1,716 - 1,007,311 15,509 1,023,320

The Restricted Share awards nclude tax and employee NIC.

Sir Robert Walmsley KCB, FREng

Non-executive Director
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the Annual Report and financial statements

The Directors are rasnonsible for prepaning tne
Anyal Report and the Growp 312 sarent company
francal statements noaccordance w ik applicas 2
34 and regulations

Comrpany law requ res the Direciors to prepao Graup
and parent company fraancial statements “o- each
financia: year. As required by the AIM Rules of e
london Stock Exchange they are required to prenare
tne Group firancial statements in accordance with
International “inanciat Reporting Siandards as adopred
by the European Union [IFRSs as adapted by the EL)
and applicable law and have eiected to prepare the
parent company financial statements in accordance
with UK accounting standards and applicable law

{UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),
including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”.

Under company law the Directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satishied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and parent cempany and of their profit or
loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group
and parant company financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

»select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

» make judgements and estimates that are reascnable,
relevant, reltable and prudent;

»for the Greoup financial statements, state whether
they have been prepared in accordance with 1FRSS
as adopted by the EU;

» for the parent company finanoal statements, state
whether applicable UK accounting standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

P assess the Group and parent company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclasing, as
apphcable, matters related to going concern; and

» Lse the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Group or the
parent company or to cease gperations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do sc.
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The Directors a~e respansible for keeping adequare
accouriing records that a~e sutficient to s~ow ard
esplan the parent commoany’s transacthions ard daclowe
Wit rcasonanle accuracy atany urre tne f nanc 3!
GCsiton gt the paert company and enabie them 1o
ensu e thatits finarnc a statements comz'y w to the
Compan &3 Act 2006 They are rasponsibie for such
ntarral control as they cetermine is necessary to
enable the preparator of financia: statermants that
are free from matesia misstatemenrt, whethar due
10 fraud or 27107, and have general responsibiiity for
taking such steps as ara reasonably open to them

to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors
are also respensible for preparing a Strategic report
and a Directors’ report that complies with that law
and those reguiations

The Directors are respoensible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website, Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in

other junisdictions.

By order of the Board on 23 Juty 2015,

e

Andy Thomis
Chief Executive

Simon Walther
Finance Director
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1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Cohort
plc {"the Company”) for the year ended 30 April
2019 which comprise the Consolidated income
statement, Consclidated staterment of
comprehensive income, Consolidated statement of
changes in equity, Company statement of changes
in equity, Consolidated and Company statement of
tinancial positon. Consolidated and Company cash
flow statements, and the refated notes, including
the accounting policies on pages 103 to 110 in our
opmnion:

— the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group's and of the
parent Company's affairs as at 30 Apnf 2019
and of the Group’s profit for the year then
ended;

— the group financial statements have been
praperly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union;

— the parent Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with UK
accounting standards, including FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

— the financial staterments have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 20086,

Basis for opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK} ("ISAs
{UK}"} and applicable law. Our responsibilities are
described below. We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and are independent of the
Group In accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard as appled to
listed entities. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained s a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion.

Cohort plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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to the members of Cohort plc

£700k {2018:£70Ck)

4.6% {2018: 4.5%) of
normahsed group profit
before tax

Materiality:
group financial
statements as a
whole

100% (2018.100%) of group
profit before tax

Coverage

Risks of material misstatement vs 2018

Recurring risks Revenue recognition — a4p
estimation of costs to
complete on contracts

Revenue recognition — ap
cut-off
Carrying value of ap
goodwill
Event driven The wnpact of NEW
risk uncertainties due to

the UK exiting the
European Union cn our
audit

Parent Recoverability of <p
company only  parentcompany’s

investments in

subsidianes




Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement

ey a.Ct matters are tose matters mat n our professional Ldgmant wers of most sign fzance 0 the audit of the financal
stataments and .rol.de the most sign ficant assessed 1 sks of rateal rosstatement twhethes o7 10t due to fraua aenthied oy
L3, mzlading those wnizn bad the graatest effzct on the overall audt s7atagy the allocatior o rzsources in the audit, ard
drechng the sffors of the engagemant team, Wea sumanse below the kay gadit maters ir arving at our audis opimion

anyve together v th oar key audit prosadures o 34255 those natters Thase mattess wore adoress21in tha context of and
solely ‘or the pupose of, cur audit of the fmancial statements as a whole, and .~ formirg our ap mon therzon, and a2 de not
0de d 320ar8°8 ONINION CN these matrers

The risk Qur response
The impact of Unprecedented levels of We developed a standardised firm-wide approact to the
uncertainties due to the uncertainty consigeration of the uncertainti2s ansing from Brexit v

UK exiting the European

P ; All audi- 3253 ana challenge
Union on our audit aunls assess 4 9

planmng and performing our audits. Our procedaras included:

the reasonableness of estimates.  — Qur Brexit knowledge: Wz considerad the directors’
In particular as descrioed in the assessment of Brexit-related sources of risk for the
Aefer to p{f‘ge g carrying value of goodwill risk group's business and financial resources compared with
(Chairman’s statement), below, and related disclosures and our own understanding of the risks. We considared the
fgfg’j’age 41 {principal the apprapriateness of the going directors’ plans to take action to mitigate the nsks.
1sks) :
fci?]:]iiir; Zf:tizrz];i;?iqu??hgs;he — Sensitivity analysis: When addressing valuation of
depend on assessments of the goodwll and other area§ that depend on forecasts, we
future econemic envirenment and compared the directors anafysnsrto our assessment Qf
tha group’s future prospects and the full range of reasonably possible scenarios resulting
performance. from Brex\t uncertaw_nty and, where _forecas‘r c_ash flows
are reguired to be discounted, considered adjustments to
Brexit 1s one of the most discount rates for the level of remaining uncertainty.
significant economic evants for . N
the UK and at the date of this — Assessing transparency: As well as assessing individual
repart its etfects are subject to disclosures as part of our procedures on the carrying
unprecedented levels of value of goodwill, we consﬁered all of the Brexit related
uncertainty of outcomes, with the disclosures tegether. mclud\ng_those n tlhe strategic
full range of possible effects report, comparing the Qverali picture against our
Unknown. understanding of the risks.
However, no audit should be expected to predict the
unknowable factors or all possible future implications for a
company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.
Revenue recognition — Subjective estimate Our procedures Included:
zztr;rgla:tlzllzfczzsttsa::s The Group re;ogmsgs revenua an  — Control design: Evaluated and tested the Group’s kgy
(£121.2 million: 2018: a number of fixed-price contracts processes and controls in place over revenue recognition
£110.5 million) by refen_ance to the degree of and forecast cost estimation;
completion of each contract. The . . . ,
degree of completion is measured Personnel lnter\(lews: Interviewed the Group s project
Refer to page 107 by reference to costs incurred at managers regardmg the performance of the projects,
{accounting policy) and the batance sheetdate as a part\;ularlv ‘focussmg on cost forecasting andl
page 73 {financial percentage of the total estimated commge.ﬁmes, in orlder to assess the appropriateness of
disciosures) costs to complete the project. assumptions in project budgets used to allocate revenues

earned between periods for long-term contracts;
The assumptions underlying the
cost to complete estimates
nvolve judgement, and any
changes in the assumptions could
have a material impact on the
revenue recognised in relation to
these contracts. — Tests of details: Assessed the recoverability of contract
balances {including for any indication of disputes), by
vouching customer acceptance, post year-end invoicing
and cash regeipt,

— Historical comparisons: Challenged the Group's key
assumptions in the percentage of compietion calculation,
based on a retrospective review of the accuracy of the
Group’s previous estimateas, ncluding movements in
marginsg on certain projects or types of project over time.

The effect of these matters is
that, as part of our nsk
assessment, we determined that

the cost tc complete estimates — Assessing transparency: Assessed the adequacy of the
have a high degree of estimation Group's disclosures in relation ta the risks and steps
uncertainty, with a potential range taken to mitigate those risks in the judgements made in
of reasonable outcomes greater the financial statements.

than cur matenahty for the
financial statements as a whole
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The risk

Qur response

Revenue recognition: Cut-off

cut-off

Refer to page 107
taccounting policyt and

Presgsuras on achigving nizqnal
aro exteral expecrarons of
resulis ircrease the “ sk o

fraudulgnt revenus recognTonr.

page 73 innarcia!

18705 128!

ysar end

For revenue r2cogn.sad ovaer ime
“his may ocour througn
inappropriate recognit on of costs
related to a contract.

Forrevenue "ecogn
in trme this may sccur through the
recognon of salss around the

Dur proceaures includeg

— Control design: Assessad ts dzsign of contrals over
thz ratching of sales invoizes o related ordars and
sustomar-authonsed delvery rotes

— Test of details: Assessad whether sales ard cast
transactions aither side of tre nalance sheat dare as well
as gredit notes 1Ssusd a'ter yea end are recogrased in
the correct panod.

— Test of details: Per‘ormed data ard analytics routires 1o
identfy arusual revenue and cost pastings around the
cut-off period, and vouched any identied to appropriate
supporting documentation such as Jelivery notss,
timesheets or other customer correspondence.

Carrying value of
goodwill {£41.4 million,
2018 £39.2 millicn)

Refer to page 105
{accountng policy! and
page 73 (financial
disclosures)

The effect of these matters
that, as part
assessment  for
purposes, we determined
valuation of goodwill had a high
degree of estimation uncertainty,
with a  potential
reasonable cutcomes greater than
our matenahty for the financial

statements  as

conducting our final audit work,
the degree of
estimation uncertainty to be less
than that materiality.

we reassessed

Forecast-based valuation

The recoverable amounts of the
Group's Cash-Generating Units to
which goodwill 1s allocated are
determined from value In use
calculations, which represents a
key judgement areg as errors in
assumptions, particularly relating
to forecast cash flows and
discount rates, could result in &
material misstaternent of the
goodwill balance.

Qur procedures included’

— Control design: Evaluated the Group's budgeting
procedures upon which the forecast cash flows are
based by assessing whether the forecasts lincluding
growth rate) were consistent with the Group's current
busingss strategies,

— Historical comparisons: Assessed the reascnablenass
of the budgets by considering the historncal accuracy of
the previous forecasts;

-~ Benchmarking assumptions: Challenged the Group's
selection of discount and growth rates by using external
data (including competitor analysis) to determine an
appropriate range and comparing the actual rate used to
that range;

— Sensitivity analysis: Performed analysis tc assess the
senstivity of the imparrment reviews to changes in the
discount rate, growth rate and the forecast cash flows;

— Assessing transparency: Assessed whether the Group's
disclosures about the sensitivity of the outcome of the
impairment assessment to changes in key assumptions
reflected the risks inherent in the valuation of goodwili.

Recoverability of parent

company’s investment in

subsidiaries {£90.7 milhion,
2018: £73.0 mullion)

Refer to page 104
laccounting policy) and
page 81 (financial

Low risk, high value

The carrying amount of the parent
company’s investments In
subsidiaries represents 99%
(2017: 99%} of the company's
total assets. Their recoverability is
not at a huigh risk of significant
rmisstatement or subject to

Our procedures included:

— Tests of detail: Comparing the carrying amount of 100%
of investments with the relevant subsidianes’ draft
balance sheet to identify whether their net assets, being
an approximation of their minimum recoverable amount,
were in excess of their carrying amount and assessing
whether those subsidiaries have historically been profit-
making.

disciosures) significant judgement. However, — Assessing subsidiary audits: Assessing the work

due to therr materiality in the performed by the subsidiary audit teams on all of those
context of the parent company subsidiaries and considering the results of that work, on
tinancial statements, this is those subsidianes’ profits and net assets.
considered to be the area that had
the greatest effect on our overall
parent company audit.
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OQur application of materiality and an overview of the scope of
our audit
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Of the groun’s 1612078 131 report.ng camponents, we subjected 5
{2018 61 to full scope audits for group nurposss and 11 (20138 7)o
spechied nsk-focused audit procedures  The latter were not
ndividually financially significart enougn to require a full scope audit
for group purposes. but aid presant specific individual risks that
needed to be addressed

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages lllustratad opposite.

The work on 5 (2018, 5) of the 18 reporting components was
performed by a compaonert auditor and the rest, including the audit
of the parent company, was performed by the Group team. The
Group team mstructed the component auditor as to the significant
areas to be covered, including the relavant nsks detaled above and
the information to be reportad back. The Group team approved the
component materialities, of £160k 10 £500k (2018: £100k to
£500k). having regard to tha mix of size and risk profile of the
Group across the components. The group team performed
procedures on the items excludad from normalised group profit
before tax

The Gioup team instructed the comporent auditor as to the
sigrmificant areas to be coverad, including the relevant r.sks detaled
above and the infornanon to be reported back., The Group team
approved the component matenal ty, Faving regara to the mix of
size and nsh profie of tre Group across the comporents. Video
and telephone conference meetings were held with the
corrponert auditor At these meetings, the findings reported to
the Group team weare dacussed sn more detall, and any furtner
waork reqguired by the Group team was then performed by the
comgponent auditor

We have nothing to report on going concern

The Directors nave prepared the financial statements on the going
concera basis as they do not intend to liguidate the Company or
the Group of *o ceass their operations, and as they have concluded
that the Company's and the Group’s financial position means that
this 1s realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertaintes that could have cast signrficant doubt over thair ability
to contmue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial staterments ("the gaing concern perigd”).

Our responsibiity is te conclude on the appropriateness of the
Directors’ conclusions and, had there een a material Lncertainty
related to going concern, to make reference to that in this audit
rgport However, as we cannot predict all tuture events or
conditions and as subseguent events may result in oautcomes that
are Inconsistent with judgements that were reasorable at the time
tney were made, the absence of reference 1o a matenal uncertainty
In this auditor's report 1s not a guarantee that the Greep and the
Company will continug In operation

Cohortple.com
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We have nothing to report on going concern
{continued}

. corclisons, we
t3tn2 Group's and
Company's ous.ness vo-del ang analysed now those

Srs

Ingureyalia on 2F e Dires

considziedthz rrasent ns-s

07 an Ity 10 2ort ~Ls 3DEAT 0NS Over thE goINg Cance"™
perod The sk thalae Tons dersc rost lkely 1o acvarssaly
attcarthe Groun's arnd Comipany's asalsole Fnarnoial
"B50.4r2es sver this nenoc was
— Tng opact of futare defsoce and sz2cur 1y -elat.anships
between tne UK ana the EL.
As thrsywvas a nsk thas could notentially cast s.gnifizant
dount on the Group's and the Compary's abilty to contnue
33 a going concern, we considered sensitivities over the
level of avallable financial resources indicated by the
Group's finarcial forecasts taking account of reasonably
possible (hut not unrealistic) adverse effects that could arise
from these nisks individually and collectively and evaluated
the achievability of the actions the Directors consider they
would take to improve the pesition should the risks
materialise. We also considered iess predictable but
realistic second arder impacts, such as the shorter-term
impact of customs delays on import and export of
materials.

Based on this work, we are required to report to vou if we
have anything material to add or draw attention to in
relation to the directors’ staterment on page 103 to the
financial statements on the use of the gomg concern basis
of accounting with no material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt over the Group and Company’s use of that
basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date
of approval of the financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we did
not identify going concern as a key audit matter.

We have nothing to report on the other information in
the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. Our opimion an the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Qur responsitility 18 to read the other information and, In
doing so, consider whether, based on our financiai
statements audit work, the information therein is materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or
our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have
nct identified material misstatements in the other
information.

Strategic report and directors’ report

Based solely on our work on the other information.

— we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report and the directors’ report;

— ir our opinion the information given in those reperts for
the financtal year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

— 1n our opnion those reports have been prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 2008

Cohort plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We have nothing to report on the other matters on
which we are required to report by exception

Jdrges he Compar 25 Agt 2006, wa are regy “e0 12 12pot

Iyout rouT oD NN

— zdeguals acTounlng "2c0 s mave Not Dean <207 by e
pareny Comhogty, Of t2TLns 2os00ate for 0.7 ALt Made
no” bear 2eeved front brasthas ~ot visred by U o7

— *re parert Tomipacy fireezal staterteeis are 0t o
agragemEnt o7 e acTaust ty retoras a0

returrs, ar

— certam asclosares of directors’ rerrunsration spacified
by faw are "ot mads. or

— we nave ro: recavad all the irformation ana
explarations we regquire for our audin.

We have nothing 1o report in these respects.

Respective responsibilities
Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page
60, the directors are responsible for. the preparation of the
financial staterments including being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view; such interral control as they determine
13 necessary 1o anable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and
parent Company's ability to continue as a going congern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern,
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liguidate the Group or the parent
Compeany or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reascnable
assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
(1K) will always detect 2 matenal misstatement when 1t
exists  Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are
considered matenal «f, individually or in aggregate. they
could reasonably be expecied o influence the ecanomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements

A tuller description of our responsibilities is provided cn the
FRC's website at www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a
body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. QOur audis work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opimions we have formed.

Wedetuodou sA

Natasha Jones (Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Arlington Business Park, Theale, Reading, RG7 45D
26 July 2019



Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 April 2019

214
2019 RSt
- £'000 .
Revenue 1 121,132 110,597
Costoisaes (78,143) 170,855)
Gross profit 43,039 36,691
Adrin strative expenses {37,095) [29,429]
Operating profit 1 5,944 153,262
Comprising.
Adjusted operating profit 16,164 15,225
Amortisation of other intangible assets {included in administrative expenses) 9 {9,514) {5,312}
Research and development expenditure credits {RDEC) (included i cost of sales) 744 679
Credit/{charge} on marking forward exchange contracts to market value at the year end {inctuded in
cost of sales) 18 33 (280}
Exceptional items
Cost of acquisition of EID {included in administrative expenses) 17 {50)
Cost of acquisition of Chess (included in administrative expenses) 23 {1,000) —
Cost of restructuring at SEA {included in administrative expenses) (500) -
5,944 10,262
Finance income 4 27 14
Finance costs 5 (296) (103}
Profit before tax 5,675 10,173
Income tax charge (584} (2,074}
Profit for the year 5,091 8,099
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the parent 5,447 7,710
Non-controlling interests (356} 389
5,091 8,095
Earmmgs o shara Pence Poaege
Basic 3 13.37 18.95
Diluted 8 13.29 1876
All profit for the vear is derived from continuing operations.
The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
1 2raryearcomoarat ves bave heen restated Lpna the Graap's adeanan 27 IFRS 13 "Revanue t-om Contracts wilth Customes” See 1otz 30 for deta'ls -egardi-g
tho mostatamoet
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 April 2019

3
2019 e
£'000 -

Profit for the vear 5,091 3,599

Forangr cLrrency trans anon differerces on net assets of EID, et of ipar Lsea to 3cqurre £ (21) 1107

Other comprehensve Ncome for the oe-od, net o Tax {21) 167

Total comprehensive ncome *or the year 5,070 7,932

Attributable 1o

Sgaty sharzholders of the parent 5,559 7410

Non-cortrolling interasts {489) 522

5,070 7,932

1 Pro7ygar comoarst s have neen restaten upor toa Groups adop: sn of iIFR3 153 "Reve~ur from Contrazi: with Customers™ See note 30 for detans regarding

63

the rasigtemant.

Cohort plc Annuai Report and Accounts 2019



Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 April 2019

AT 1Ny 2007 4,336 29,657

36,901 59,833 4158

(1,242 783 165

Impact of IFRS 15 on opening resaryes - — — — — 1270} 1270 - 270
Rastated as at 30 April 2017 4,086 29657 (1.142) 783 485) 36631 55560 4,158 73,718
Profit for the vear [~estated-) — — — — — 710 7712 333 3,093
Ozher comprehensive income for tne year — — — — — (300} 300y 133 1167
Totzl comprehensive income far the year — — — - - 7418 7.410 522 7,932
Transactions with owners of Group and
naon-controlling interests, recognised
directly in equity
Equity dividends — — — — — (3,035} 3,035) —  (3,035)
Vesting of Restricted Shares — — — — — 175 175 — 173
Own shares purchased — —  {1.487) — — —  {1,467) — {1,467}
Own shares sold — - 697 — — — 697 — 697
Net loss on selling own shares - — 722 — — (722 — - —
Share-based payments — — - 273 — - 273 — 273
Deferred tax adjustment in respect
of share-based payments — — - (248) —_ — (248) — {248)
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting
of options — — — (182) — 182 — — —
Completion of acguisition of MCL by settlement
of non-controlling interests earn-out — — — — 465 — 465 — 465
Effect of acquisition of 23 09% of
non-controlling interest in EID — — — — — {1,388} (1,388} (2,126) (3,514}
At 30 April 2018 (restated-) 4,096 29,657 {1,190} 625 — 39253 72,442 2,554 74,996
Profit for the year — — — — — 5,447 5,447 (356) 5,091
Other comprehensive income far the year — — — — — 112 112 1133} (21}
Total comprehensive m¢ome for the year — — — — — 5559 5559 (439) 5,070
Transactions with owners of Group and
non-controlling interests, recognised
directly in equity
Equity dividends — — — — —  (3464) 13,4564) —  [(3,464)
Vesting of Restricted Shares - - — — — 178 178 — 178
Own shares purchased — — (631) - — — (631) — (631}
Qwn shares sold - —_ 743 — — — 743 — 743
Nat loss on selling own shares — — 730 - — 1730) — — —
Share-based payments — —_ — 291 — — 291 — 291
Deferred tax adjustment in respect
of share-based payments — — - {76) — — (7€) - (76)
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting
of ootions — — — (238) — 233 - — —
Acgquisition of 81.84% of Chess — — - —  {4,3530) — (4,350) 4,214 {136)
At 30 April 2019 4,096 29,657 (348) 603 (4,350) 41,034 70,652 6,279 76,971
The accompanying notes farm part of the financial statements.
1 Pricr year corrparatves have beer restated upon the Growp's acopt.an of SRS 15 “Reveque from Contracts wete Custorre s” See note 30 °0r detal s regarcing

the restatement,
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 April 2019

T Ta Lo CEE
A L Nay 2017 4095 29,57 11,142, 783 12452 45 3731
Prof 't for the year — — — — — 5,758 5,158
Transactions with owners of the Company,

recognised directly in equity

Equity dvidends — — — — - 13,035) 13,235
vasting of Restricted Shares — — — - - 175 175
Own shares purchased — — 1,467) - - — [1,467)
Own shares sold — - 697 — — - 697
Net loss on selling own shares — — 722 - - 1722) —
Share-based payments — - — 273 — — 273
Deferred tax adjustment in respect

of share-based payments — — — {248) — — {248)
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting

of options — — — (182) — 24 {153)
Completion of acquisition of MCL by settlemen:

of non-controlling interests earn-out - — — — 465 — 465
Total contributions by and distributions

to owners of the Company - — (48) (157} 465 1,600 1,860
At 30 Apnl 2018 4,096 29,657 {1,190) 626 — 14,052 47,241
Profit for the year — — — — — 8,724 8,724
Transactions with owners of the Company,

recognised directly in equity

Eguity dividends — - - — — (3,464) (3.464)
Vesting of Restricted Shares — — - - — 178 178
Own shares purchased — - (631) — — - {631
Own shares sold — — 743 — — — 743
Net loss on seling own shares - — 730 — - {730) -
Share-based payments - — — 291 — — 291
Deferred tax adjustrnent in respect

of share-based payments — — — {76) — — 176)
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting

of options — — — (238) - 47 {191)
Acquisition of 81.84% of Chess - — — — (4,350) — {4,350)
Total contributions by and distributions

to owners of the Company — — 842 (23} {4,350} 4755 1,224
At 30 April 2019 4,096 29,657 (348) 603 {4,350) 18,807 43,465

The reserves of the Group and the Company are described in note 22.

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated and Company statement of financial position

as at 30 April 2019

(RN

2019 - 2019
- £'000 B £7000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodw ! ] 41,354 39,156 —_ —
Other .ntangible assets g 20,588 6,108 — —
Prooerty, plant and equipment 13 10,956 9,537 263 51
[nvestment n subsidiar.es 1 — — 90,725 73,004
Defarred tax asset 17 365 406 39 93
73,263 55,327 91,027 73,153
Current assets
Inventaries 12 13,452 5,877 -— —
Trade and other recevabies 13 42,971 34,693 2,776 1,048
Derivative financial instruments 18 — 51 - -
Cash and cash eqguivalents 15 18,763 20,511 — -
75,186 51,132 2,776 1,048
Total assets 143,449 116,439 93,803 74,201
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 (35,225)  (28,836) (3,868) (1,581)
Current tax habilities - (265) - —
Derivative financial instruments 18 (99) (183) — -
Bank borrowings 15 {e1) (8,173) (35,970} (24,819)
Provisions 16 {818) {1,156} — (124)
36,203)  (39,613) (39,838} (26,524
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability 17 (4,041) {1,414} — —
Bank borrowings 15 (25,126) - — -
Provisions 16 {608) (436) - {436}
(Other creditors 29 (5,500) - (5,500} -
(35,275) (1,850) {5,500} {436}
Total liabilities (71,478) (41,463} {45,338) {26,960}
Net assets 76,971 74,296 48,465 47,241
Equity
Share capital 15 4,096 4,086 4,096 4,096
Share premium account 29,657 29,657 29,657 29,657
Own shares 21 (348) (1,190} (348) {1,130}
Share option reserve 603 626 603 626
Other reserves 25 {4,350) - {4,350) —
Retained earnings 41,034 39,253 18,807 14,052
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent 70,692 72,442 48,465 47,241
Non-controlling interests 6,279 2,554 - —
Total equity 76,971 74,996 48,465 47,241
I Praryear comparatives Bave beer resiated Lpon the Growp's adeoticn of (FRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” See rote 30 lor detals regardirg
the restetement.
The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements,
The financial statements on pages 67 to 110 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue on 23 July 2019
and are signed on itybepalf by:
/ff{ Ny i
Andy Thomis Simon Walther / Jfﬁ* B
Chief Executive Finance Director
Company number
05684823
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Consolidated and Company cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 April 2019

IR

2019 pe 2019 713
. £'000 s £'000 .
Met cas~ from ane-atirg act vites 23 8,635 13,220 12,362 3423
Cash flow from investing activities
irterest receiven 27 14 16 8]
Purchases of property, plant and equipmeant 10 {2,058} {747 (275) [20;
Acquisitior of Chess { ncluding net dabt acguirad) 29 {20,885} — {20,041} —
Acquisitior 2T EID - {3,514} - —
Investment in Thunderwaves 5.A. iholding company in Portugal for EID) - — — (3,514}
Acquisition of MCL - {2,529] — {2,529)
Net cash used in investing activities {22,916} (6,776) (20,300} 16,047]
Cash flow from financing activities
Dwidends paid 7 (3,464} {3,035} (3,464} {3.035)
Purchase of own shares 21 (621) {1,467) (631) {1,467)
Sale of own shares 21 743 637 743 697
Drawdown of borrowings 15 18,017 5,514 18,000 5,514
Repayment of borrowings 15 (2,027) {3) (2,000} —
Net cash generated from financing activities 12,638 1,706 12,648 1,709
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents [1,643) 8,150 4,710 1,085
Represented by:
Cash and cash equivaients and short-term borrowings brought forward 20,511 12,017 (15,652) {16,737)
Cash flow (1,643) 8,150 4,710 1,085
Exchange (105} 344 — —
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term borrowings carried forward 18,763 20,511 (10,942) (15,652)
Fifert of
“areign Jour
At L Ray  exchargsrate avg.ared At 30 April
2018 charzes Casn o ot 24 2019
£300 £000 £0n0 £000 £'000
Net funds reconciliation
Group
Cash and bank 20,511 {(105) (1,643) — 18,763
Short-term deposits — - — — -
Cash and cash eguivalents 20,511 {105} {1.643) — 18,763
Loan {9,167) 138 {15,973) {27y (25,028)
Finance lease () - (17) (126) (159)
Debt (9,173) 139 (15,990} {163) (25,187)
Net (debt)/funds 11,338 34 {17,633} (163} {6,424)
Company
Cash and bank _ _ _ . -
Short-term deposits — — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents — — — — —
Loan (8,167} 139 (16,000} — (25,028)
QOverdraft debt {15,652) — 4,710 — {10,942)
{24,819) 139 {11,290) —  {35,970)
Net debt (24,819) 139 111,290) — {35,970)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank depaosits with a maturity at commencement of three
months or less. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate to ther fair value.

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2019

1. Segmental analysis

Tor managamenrt ang report ng oursoses, “he Group, duning tae vear endea 38 Apnil 2319, operated tarough 1ts five trading subsidianies:
Chess, ZID, MASS, MCL, ang SEA Far Chess, the peniod of report ~g was fur approumately five montrs, frarm 12 December 2318 to 30 Apnl 2013
These subs.dianes are the gaai; on which the Company reports 15 arimary business segment -pfaration -p azcordance with 7R3 8.Whist each
subsichary rternaily reports oy reference to the sectors i selis to, these gre cors 2ored oy he Board to navs sim lar economic cnatactenstics
rarms of the natu-2 of toe services and the'r custamer base and therefore ¢saggragated nformat on s not reguarly reportec to the Board.
On this bas s, the Board, whick 5 ceemed to be the chief operating ceaision ma<er, considers 2ach subsdiary a separate op27aung segment.

The orinc-pa' activities of the subs:dianes are described nthe Strategic "eport (pages 2 to 33).

Busingss segrmentinformation about thasa subsidianies 15 prasantad below:

Chess {five
rtgnths only) EID MASS MCL SEA  Eliminations Group
2019 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Revenue
External revenue 10,674 11,530 38,936 21,715 38,327 — 121,182
Inter-segment revenue — — 15 - 404 (419) -
10,674 11,530 38,951 21,715 38,731 (419) 121,182
Segment adjusted operating profit 1,682 1,357 8,175 2,282 5,492 - 18,988
Unallocated corporate expenses - - —_ — — — (2,824)
Adjusted operating profit 1,682 1,357 8,175 2,282 5,492 - 16,164
Charge on marking forward exchange contracts
to market value at the year end — — — (53) 86 - 33
Costs of acquisition of EID _ - - — — — 17
Costs of acquisition of Chess — — — — — — {1,000)
Costs of restructuring at 5S£A — - - - (500) - (500)
Amartisation of other intangible assets {4,870) (990} — {(2,430) {1,224) — {9,514)
Research and development expenditure credits (RDEC) 59 — 34 - 577 — 744
Operating profit/(loss) (3,129) 367 3,209 {201) 4,431 - 5,944
Finance cost (net of income) (9) — 5 — 5 — (269)
Profit/{loss) before tax {3,138) 367 8,214 {201) 4,436 - 5,675
Income tax charge (584}
Profit after tax 5,091

All are UK operations with the exception of EID, which 1s based in Portugal All operations are continuing. Inter-segment sales are chargad
at arm’s length rates.

Unallocated corporate expenses are the costs of the Cohort ple head office including the remuneration of the Cohort plc Board.

Chess (five

manths anty) EID MASS MCL SEA Central Group
Qther information £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Capital additions 55 85 336 139 1,168 275 2,058
Depreciation 57 107 116 69 741 57 1,147

Chess EID MASS MCL SEA  Eliminations Group

Balance sheet £000 £'000 £'000 €000 £'00D £/000 £000
Assets
Segment assets 14,392 9,943 12,424 3,489 23,600 (1,747) 67,101
Goodwill and other intangible assets 21,262 3,719 12,500 2,398 22,063 - 61,942
Current tax asset 278
Deferred tax asset 365
Cash 18,763
Consolidated total assets 35,654 13,662 24,924 5,887 50,663 148,449
Liabilities
Segment liabilities (7,847) {5,634) (8,253) [8,363) (6,623) {5,530} (42,250}
Deferred tax liability [4,041)
Bank borrowings (25,187)
Consolidated totz! liabilities (7,847) (5,634) (8,253) (8,363) {6,623) {71,478)

The above figures include 100% of Chess and EID. The non-centrolling interest, 18.16% for Chess and 20 00% for EID, is reported
separately in the income statement and Group reserves,
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 April 2019

1. Segmental analysis continuad

2018 (restated!)

Revenue
Cxternal reven.e 18,233 37.353 17381 37315 — 110,547
Inzer-segment revan.le — 15 - 25 140} —
18,293 37,568 17381 37,340 {40y 110,54/
Segment adjusted operating profit 4,315 7,113 2,072 4413 — 17,918
Unaliscated corporate expenses — — — — — (2,693)
Adjusted operating profit 4,315 7113 2,072 4,418 — 15,225
Charge on marking forward exchange
contracts to market value at the year end — — (85) {195) — (280)
Costs of acquisition of EID — — — _ _ (50)
Amortisation of other intangihle assets {1,562) - (2,430} (1,320) — {5,312)
Research and development expenditure credits (RDEC) — 224 — 313 — 679
Operating profit/{loss) 2,753 7,333 (443} 3,216 - 10,262
Finance cost {net of income) — — 3 3 — (89)
Profit/{foss) before tax 2,753 7,333 {440) 3,219 — 10,173
Income tax charge (2,074)
Profit after tax 8,099

1 Pricryear comparatives have been restated upon the Group's adoption of ‘FRS L5 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers " See note 30 for details regarding

the restatement.

Alt are UK operations with the exception of EID, which is based in Portugal. All operations are continuing. Inter-segment sales are charged

at arm’s length rates.

Unallocated corporate expenses are the costs of the Cohort plc head office including the remuneration of the Cohort plc Board.

e MIASS hiles SEA Contral Grouo
Other information £ 000 £ 700 £000 000 £:000 £'000
Capital additions 82 58 20 577 10 747
Depreciation 112 85 61 831 27 1,116

TN NASS Nl SFa Flir narang Graoo
Balance sheet {restated') £V [l £030 £1000 (el £33
Assets
Segment assets 9,512 11,311 2,193 27,183 19 50,218
Goodwill and other intangible assets 4,709 12,500 4828 23,287 — 45,324
Deferred tax asset 406
Cash 20,511
Consolidated total assets 14,221 23,811 7021 50,470 116,459
Liabilities
Segment liahilities (7.543) 17,377) {4,802) {3,905) {984) (30,6811}
Current tax liabilities {265)
Deferred tax lability {1,414)
Bank borrowings (9,173)
Consolidated total liabilities {7,543) (7,377) {4,802) {9,905) {41,463)

1 Pr.o-yvear comgaratives have been restated azon the Greap's adopt or of IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Custemers.” See nate 30 for detalls regarding

the restatement

The above figures include 100% of EID. A further 23.09% of £1D was acquired on 24 November 2017. The nen-controlling interest
(20.00% 1o 43.09%) is reported separately in the income statement and Group reserves.

For the purposes of manitoring segment parformance and allocating resource between segments, the Group’s Chief Executive monitors
the tangible, intangible and financial assets attributable to each segment.

All assets and liabihties are allocated to reportable segments with the exception of central cash and bank borrowings, current tax and

deferred tax assets and habilities.

Goodwill and other intangible assets are allocated to reportable segments as analysed in note 9.
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1. Segmental analysis continued
Geographical segments

"he Groun’s subsichar.es are all located ir tre UK ate tne except on of £ID, which s lacatec ir Portugar The 73 lowi~g tad e proy Jes

an analysis of “ha Group's oo

sonue by geograok cal locanion of the tustorer

2019 2019 P o

From the From 2019 = 2

UK Partugal Total o

£'000 £'000 £000 I | -

UK 87,725 162 87,887 76,460 400 75,860
Portugal — 4,429 4,429 — 6,917 6,917
Other £C countries including NATO 4,293 3,534 7.828 3427 3,658 7085
Asia Pacific 14,614 3,168 17,782 10,575 4,163 14738
Africa 30 131 161 11 2,264 2,275
Narth and South America 2,990 105 3,095 1,776 896 2672
109,653 11,529 121,182 92,249 18,298 110,547

1 Prigc year comparatives ndve been -astated wpor ©12 Broup’s adaatior o (FRS 15 "Revenue from Contrac'» wilh Zustome:s” See ~ole 30 '0- deta |s r2gard rg

the re.tatemant

All Group assets, tangible and intzngible, are located in the UK with the exception of EID, which is located in Portugal. EiD’s net assets are

shown in note 1.

Market segments
The fallowing table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by market sector:

2018
2019 {restatec ’
£'000 £'000

Defence {including security} 106,505 98,164

Transport 9,168 5,304

Offshore energy 2,133 2,063

Other commercial 3,376 5,01p

121,182 110,547

The Group’s total revenue, broken down by type of deliverable, is as follows:

EEIR)
2019 iresldlos
£D00 £600

Product 65,109 60,639

Services 56,073 49,208

Total revenue 121,182 110,547

Product includes bespoke product, customised systems and sub-systems and is hardware and/ar software.

Further information on revenue by market segment and capability can be found in the Strategic report (page 26).

Major customaers

Revenue from major customers included in the Group’s business segments for the year ended 30 April 2019 15 as follows:

2019 2918 [restated )
Portuguese Porrguei
UK MOD MQD Customer & Customer B Custorner C LUK KIDD MO Justamer A Zustome: B Lustamer D
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £1000 00 £ 000 £00¢

Chess — — 892 - — — - - - —

EID - 4,429 - — — — 5,248 — — —

MASS 18,000 - 6,001 — - 20,093 — 4,069 — 2,350

MCL 20,192 — — - - 15,694 — — — —

SEA 7,804 — 3,205 4,653 3,605 7,002 — 6,195 3,942 —

45,996 4,429 10,098 4,653 3,605 42,789 5,248 10,264 3,942 2,350

Customers B and Cin 2019 are not the same as customers B and Cin 2018.

1 Proryear comparatings have been restated Lpor the Group's adeplion of iFRS 15 “"Revenue fram Contracts witk Customers” See note 3G fo- details regerdirg

the restatement
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

2. Employee benefit expense (including Directors)

2019 !
£000 NP
Wages ana salac es 36,461 34,903
SO0 ai 00U Ty C0575 4,035 3,979
Defired contr bation gens on plan costs 2,322 2723
Snare-pased payments 291 273
43,109 41,878

Average number of employees (including Directors)
w19 FREE)
Number NuThar
Other operational (including production} 444 139
Managed services 137 130
Total operational 581 569
Administration and support 234 226
815 735

The above disclosures include Directors. Directors” emoluments and share opticn details are disclosed separately in the Remuneration &
Appointments Committee report on pages 54 to 59, where the relevant disclosures have been highlighted as audited.

3. Profit for the year
The profit far the year has been arrived at after charging:

2019 2018
Notes £'000 £'000

MNet foreign exchange (gains}/losses 18 (33} 280
Research and development costs 8,844 5,936
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 10 1,147 1,116
Amortisation of sther intangible assets S 9,514 5,312
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 45,642 33,001
Staff costs {excluding share-based payments) 2 42,818 41,605
Share-based payments 20 291 273
All of the above charges are in respect of continuing operations.
The fees payable to the auditor for audit and non-audit services are disclosed in the Audit Committee report on page 44.
4. Finance income

2019 018

£000 £7000
Interest on bank deposits 27 14
All finance income 15 In respect of continuing operations.
5. Finance costs

2019 M8

£'000 £'300
Loans and finance leases 296 103

All finance costs are in respect of continuing operations.
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6. Income tax charge

2019 s

£000 Y

LK corparator tae o rosaent af this vear 2,729 2,251

LX corporation tas inresaect of pr.or years (10} 1389

Portugal corporation tax. in respect of us year (410) 1,106
Portuga! corporanon taz, in respect of prior years 1 1

Other foreign carporation fax 10 respect of this year 31 -

Orher fareign zarporat on tax: in respect of prio” yeass - 113}

2,311 2,966

Deferred tax: in respect of this year {1,713) {1,156}

Deferrad tax' in respect of prior years {(a4) 264

{1,757) (892}

584 2,074

The corporation tax s calculated at 19.0% (2018: 19.0%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year, as disclosed below.
The current tax in respect of the year ended 30 April 2019 includes £169,000 credit (2018: £Nil} in respect of exceptional items.

The deferred tax includes a credit of £1,688,000 in respact of amortisation of other intangible assets {2018: £1,063,000), and a current
year charge of £6,000 {2018: credit of £53,000) in respect of marking ferward exchange contracts to market value at the year end.
The deferred tax is further explained in note 17.

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit per the Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 April 2019 as follows:

2019 2018
£7000 £000
Prafit before tax on continuing cperations 5,675 10,173
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2018: 15.0%} 1,078 1,933
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 56 34
Tax effect of R&D tax credits in Portugal (483) —
Tax effect of exceptional items that are not recognised in determining taxable profit 116 10
Tax effect of other timing differences not reflected in deferred tax {96} —
Tax effect of change in tax rate; 2019: change in time profile of deferred tax assets and/or liabilities
{2018 change in time profile of deferred tax assets and/or liabllities} 3 19
Tax effect of statutory deduction for share options exercised (70} {66)
Tax effect of foreign tax rates 41 281
Tax effect of deferred tax movement on share options to be exercised {8} (10)
Tax effect of other prior year adjustments, including R&D tax credits (53} (127)
Tax charge for the year 584 2,074

The UK corporation tax for the year ended 30 April 2019 15 calculated at 19.0%, based upon twelve months at 12.0%, The UK corporation
tax rate for the year ended 30 April 2018 is calculated at 19.0%, based upon twelve months at 19.0%.

In addition, a deferred tax charge of £75,000 (2018: £248,000} was recognised directly in equity.

7. Dividends

2019 2073
£'000 £7009
Amounts recogrised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 April 2018 at 5.65 pence per ardmary share
(2017 4.90 pence) 2,300 1,999
interim dividend in respect of the year ended 30 April 2019 at 2.85 pence per ordinary share
{2018: 2.55 pence) 1,164 1,036
3,464 3,035
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2019 at 6.25 pence per ordinary share
(2018: 5.65 pence per ardinary share} 2,554 2,295

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on 17 September 2019 and has not been
included as a liability in these financial statements. If approved, this dvidend will be paid on 18 September 2019 to shareholders
on the register as at 23 August 2019.

The Cohort Employee Benefit Trust, which holds ordinary shares in Cohort plc representing 0.24% (2018. 0.83%) of the Company's
called up share capital, has agreed to waive all dividends due to it in accordance with an arrangement dated 20 November 2008.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 Aprit 2019

8. Earnings per share
The 2ar~.ngs per snare are calculated as fallows:

2019 S et
Weighted Aot
average
number Earnings
of shares Earnings pershare . AT e o
Number £'000 pence [N = 0T per T
3a3sic earn:ngs (net p-ofit attnbutable
to eguity halders of Conort plc) 40,749,551 5,447 13.37 40,679,428 7710 18.95
Srare opfions 224,086 413,334
Diluted earnings 40,973,637 5,447 13.29 41,082,762 7,710 1876

The basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to eguity holders of the parent company (Cohort pic)
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. The diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company by the weighted average number of shares inissue during the year
as adjusted for the effects of potentially dilutive share opticns

The weighted average number of shares for the years ended 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 is after deducting the own shares, which
are held by the Cohort Employee Benefit Trust.

In addition, the adjusted earnings per share of the Group are calculated in a similar manner to the basic earnings per share with the
adjustments to the basic earnings as shown below:

019 2018 irestarad |
Weighted Weghted
average average
number Earnings number Earmings
of shares Earnings per share ot shares Earnimgs pershare
Notes Number £'000 pence Number £000 pence
Basic earnings 4,749,551 5,447 13.37 40,679,428 7,710 18.95
{[Credit}/charge on markang forward exchange
contracts at the year end {net of tax charge
of £6,000{2018: £53,000 credit}) 18 {27) 227
Acquisition costs of EID (17) 50
Acgquisition costs of Chess (net of tax of £74,000) 29 926 —
Costs of restructuring at SEA {net of tax of £35,000) 405 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets {net of
income tax credit of £1,476,000 (2018: £945,000)) 6,956 3,844
Adjusted earnings 40,749,551 13,690 33.60 40,679,428 11,831 25.08
Share options 224,086 413,334
Diluted adjusted earnings 40,973,637 13,690 33.41 41,092,762 11,831 28.79

The adjusted earnings are in respect of continuing operations. The research and development expenditure credit (RDEC) has no effect on
adjusted earmings per share as itis Nil after tax.

The following table shows the adjustment to earnings for calculating the adjusted earnings per share. The calculation excludes the
non-controlling interest in respect of the amortisation of other intangible assets.

2019 2013
Amortisation Attributable AmaiLizdtion Attr butable
of other ta equity of athz- o eqguity
intangible Deferred Non- sharehoelders intangibla Non shasenolders
asset tax credit contrelling of the asiet H e ling afthe
{note 9) thereon Net interest Group irute9) trerean MNet irterest Groug
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 000 f ocu £000 £'60u £'C00
Chess 4,870 {925) 3,945 {716) 3,229 — — — — —
EID 990 {223) 767 {154) 613 1,562 {351} 1,211 (405]) 806
MCL 2,430 (346) 2,084 - 2,084 2,430 {461) 1,969 - 1,969
SEA 1,224 (194) 1,030 - 1,030 1,320 {251} 1,069 — 1,068
9,514 {1,688) 7,826 {870) 6,956 5,312 (1,063) 4,249 (405) 3,844

1 Prioryear comparatives have been restated upor the Group's adopt.or of (FRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” See nate 3C for details regarding
the restatement
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9. Goodwill and other intangible assets

i B o , \ . - P
Cost

At 1 Nay 2027 24,063 12500 2,398 2195 — 41,159 7955 4,340 1557% 10.247 — 3322C
Ar 1 May 2018 24,063 12,500 2,398 2,295 — 41136 7,955 4,340 15673 10,247 — 38220
Acguisition of Chess - — — — 2,198 2,198 - — — — 23,934 23,534
At 30 April 2019 24,063 12,500 2,398 2,195 2,198 43,354 7,955 4,330 15,678 10,247 23,934 62,154
Amortisation

At 1May 2017 2,000 — — — — 2,000 5411 2,340 10818 6171 — 26,740
Charge for the year

ended 30 April 2018 — — — — — — 1,320 — 2430 1582 — 5312
At 1 May 2018 2,000 — — - — 2000 6,731 — 13,248 7733 — 32,052
Charge far the year

ended 30 April 2018 - - — — — - 1,224 — 2,430 990 4,870 59,514
At 30 April 2019 2,000 - - - — 2,000 7,955 4,340 15,678 8,723 4,870 41,566
Net book vatue

At 30 April 2019 22,063 12,500 2,398 2,195 2,198 41,354 — — - 1,524 19,064 20,588
At 30 April 2018 22,063 12,500 2,398 2,195 2,198 39,156 1,224 — 2,430 2,514 — 6,168

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries. These subsidiaries are the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.

The amortisation charge is disclosed as "Amortisation of other intangible assets” in the income statement.

81.84% of Chess was acquired 12 December 2018. The acquisition accounting is shown in nate 25.

The Group tests goodwill biannually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that geodwifl might be imparred.

The recoverable amounts of the subsidiaries {cash-generating units) are determined from value-in-use calculations.

The value-in-use calculations take the cash flows of each cash-generating unit and apply the Group’s weighted average cost of capital
{WACC) to this to determine if there is any impairment of the cash-generating units’ goodwill.

In assessing any impairment of goodwll, each value-in-use calculation makes a number of estimates, which use the same basis as used
in previous years, as follows:

Basra af ust —ate

Cash flow

As In previous years, the cash flows for the years ended 30 April 2020, 2021 and 2022 are hased upon the cash-generating
units’ budgets and forecasts for those years. These cash flows are based upon the revenue, margin and overhead cost
forecasts for each business taking account of the run-off of order book, renewal of existing business and winning of new
business Histarically, these cash flow forecasts have been a reasonable forecast of actual performance over the period
of measurement. Costs reflect inflation rates, currently assumed at 2% (2018: 2%) With regard to the revenue, margin and
overhead cost forecasts, the key assumptions underlying these inputs are that current projects contracted will continue as
per agreement, that government defence spending will remain largely consistent in the future and that each cash-generating
unit will continue to be as successful in competing for new contracts asiit has been historically. Currently, a reasonable
proportion of revenue for 2020 is already under contract and, as such, the main assumpticns related to revenue volumes
are in periads for 2021 and after where there is greater uncertainty and risk.

Growth rate

The cash flows for each UK-based cash-generating unit from years four to twenty inclusive are based upon the forecast
cash flow for the year ended 30 April 2022 to which a growth rate of 1.5% is applied each year {2018: 1.5%}. This rate
reflects a prudent view of recent UK growth rates and is below the historically higher UK growth rate of 2 25%. The growth
rate is similar for all of the UK-based cash-generating units as a significant proportion of their business 1s with the same
customer, the UK MOD. As a significant propertion of the business s with the UK Government, 3 mere prudent growth rate
has been used ta reflect lower expected growth rates of UK Government expenditure. In the case of EiD, its main customer
1s the Portuguese MOD. As such, the growth rate assumed for EID’s future cash flows 15 1.0% {2018: 1.0%), reflecting
the expected growth rate for Portuguese Government expenditure.

Cohartplc.com
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

9. Goodwill and other intangible assets continued
WACC compr ses 3 71.mbe- of glemanrs as folows

-

Value of equity Calcutlated asthe ssued share captal 0f the Group {Conort pich m it prec 9y 102 05198 31ard price
At 30 Ao 2019 of £3 725 (2018, £3 500;

Risk free interest rate Based upon ten-year JK Government grt rate of 1 78% {2018, 1 42%;

Beta factor Dernved from analyst est'mates provided by the Group’s Momad (Investes) and refiects a range of ourcomes
from 0.26120.33{2018: 044 t0 0 80)

Equity risk premium The eguity ns< premium of the Group of 11 28% (2018, 10.36%) to which 1s added a further range of rnisx

preruum of 4% to 8% 1o reflect customer market risk and the low hguidity and nisk of AIM stocks

Cost of debt The Group is in a net debt pesition. The Group leans at 30 April 2019 have an average interest cost of 2.037%
per annum as at that date {2018: 1.552%)

The Group's pre-tax WACC applied to each cash-generating unit’s cash flows was 12.5% (2018 17.3%). The Group WACC has been
deemed appropriate to use for each cash-generating unit as all funding 15 cross guaranteed and therefore the same cost of funding
isincurred by each cash-generating unit. The decrease in the Group's pre-tax WACC 1s mainly due to the lower volatiity (Beta factor)
of Cohort pic shares, partly offset by higher interest rates.

QOn the basis of these tests, no impairment of goodwill has ansen in the year ended 30 Apnit 2019 in respect of any of EID, MASS, MCL
or SEA. Sensitivity was applied to the impairment tests to deliver a material impairment of goedwill. | the post-tax WACC 1s increased
to 12.0%, SEA’s goodwiil 1s impaired by just over £5m. SEA’s goadwill 1s the most sensitive to impairment due to its current high level of
segmental current assets. This impairment would arise If the equity risk increased by 13% at the upper end of the post-tax WACC range.

The other intangible assets arose on the acquisition of subsidiaries. The EID and J+5 intangible assets were in respect of contracts acquired.
The J+S other intangible asset is disclosed as part of SEA. The MCL intangible asset was in respect of contracts acquired and to be secured.

The MASS other intangible asset, which is now fufly amortised, was in respect of contracts acquired and to be secured in respect of
MASS's acquisition of Abacus EW.

Chess was acquired 12 December 2018. The goodwill in respect of this acguisition has not been subjected to impairment testing as the
business prospects since acguisition have not materially changed. The other intangible asset in respect of Chess s in respect of contracts
acquired and expected opportunities to be secured. The other intangible asset of Chess will be fully amortised by 30 April 2024,

The spht of the net book value of other intangibles, where it comprises both contracts/opportunities to be secured and contracts
acquired, is as follows:

2019 2018

MCL Chess ML Chess

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Contracts acquired — 5,021 — —
Custamer relationships - 14,043 2,430 —
- 19,064 2,430 —
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10. Property, plant and equipment

Cost

sjUWILe]s [EPUBULY

At 1 May 2017 5,508 5797 15,703
Additions 3 744 4
Disposais — 1152) 1252)
Foraign exchange movement - 17 17
At 1 May 2018 9,911 6,405 16,317
Acquired 83 411 494
Additions - 2,058 2,058
Disposals — (125) {125)
Foreign exchange movement — {12) {121
At 30 April 2019 9,994 8,738 18,732
Depreciation

At 1 May 2017 1,721 4,046 5,767
Charge In the year 298 818 1,116
Eliminated on disposal — (159) {159)
Foreign exchange movement — {4 {4)
At 1 May 2018 2,019 4,701 6,720
Charge in the year 302 845 1,147
Eliminated on disposal — (86) (86)
Foreign exchange movement — (5) {5
At 30 April 2019 2,321 5,455 7,776
Net boak value

At 30 April 2019 7,673 3,283 10,956
At 30 April 2018 7,892 1,705 9,597

The net book value of the Company’s property, plant and equipment was £263,000 at 30 April 2019 {2018: £51,000). This was after
agditions of £275,000, disposals of £6,000 and a depreciation charge of £57,000 for the year ended 30 April 2019.

The net book value of fixed assets held under finance leases at 30 April 2019 was £180,000 (2018: £Nil}.
The depreciation charge 15 disclosed within “Administrative expenses” in the Consclidated income statement.

The valuation {in accordance with International Valuation Standards) of the Group’s fand and builldings at 30 April 2019 supports
the above net book value.

The Group's land and buiidings as disclosed above are the cost of purchase plus refurbishment and the fair value on acquisition.
As such the Group has no revaluation reserve at this time.

11. Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

I IFR Compawy
2019 2218 2019 2018
£000 £'000 £°000 £'003
Subsidiary undertakings - — 90,725 73,004

Joint ventures — — — —

- — 90,725 73,004
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

11. Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures continued
Adztof 3l treanvestments inoint vertuces and subsidianes s as follows

DYoot InToa

Directly owned

Systems Consultants Secvices  One Waterside Drve Fngiand Orzimary 100% Formerly a proveder of technical consultancy
Limited ,5C5) Reading RG7 45W Operatirg dvisions transferred to SEA and
NMASS in November 2016
MASS Limited One Waterside Drive ng'and Ordinary 100% Holding company of
Reading RG7 45W MASS Consuitants Limited
SEA {Group) Ltd. (SEA} Beckington Castle Ergland Ordinary 100% Hotding company of Systems Engineering &
Frome BA11 6TA Assessment Ltd and Beckington Castle Ltd
Marlborough Communications  Dovenby Hall England Crdinary 100% Holding company of Marlborough
(Holdings) Limited Horley RHE UL Communications Limited
Thunderwaves, S.A. 6. Ruo do Alecia 26¢ Portugal Ordinary 100% The holding company of EID
1200-018, Lisbon
Chess Technologies Limited One Waterside Drive England Ordinary 81.84% Holding company of Chess Dynamics Ltd,
{Chess) Reading RG7 45W Chess Dynamics Inc and Visiondce Ltd
Held through a subsidiary
MASS Consultants Limited Enterprise House England Ordinary 100% Electrome warfare, managed services,
(MASS) Cambridgeshire secure commumications, digital forensics
PE19 6BN and IT support services
Systems Engineering Beckington Castle England Ordinary 100% Deliverer of systems engineering, software
& Assessment Ltd Frome BA11 6TA and electronic engineering services and
sofubions to the defence and transport
markets and is also the holding company
of J+5 Limited
1+5 Limited Riverside Road England Ordinary 100% Subsidiary of Systems Engineering &
Barnstaple EX31 1LY Assessment Ltd. Business transferred to
Systems Engineering & Assessment Ltd on
1 May 2018. Holds investment in 5FA's
Canadian operations
Marlborough Communications  Dovenby Hall England Ordinary 100%  Designs, sources and supports advanced
Limited (MCL) Horley RHE SUU electromc and surveillance technology
Beckington Castle Ltd Beckington Castle England Ordinary 100% Property company holding freshold of
Frame BA11 6TA Beckington Castle and SEA’s Bristol office
Chess Dynamics Limited Quadrant House England Ordinary 100%  Design and production of detection and
North Heath Business Park tracking systems, as well as counter UAV
North Heath Lane solutions for defence security markets
Harsham
West Sussex RH12 5Q¢F
Empresa de Investigagao Quinta dos Portugal Ordinary 80% Designs and manufactures advanced
e Desenvolvimento de Medranheiros Lazarnim cemmunications systems for the defence
Electrémea, 5.A. (EID} 2820-486 and security markets
Charneca da Caparica
Lishon
8963665 Canada Inc. 1100, Boul Rene-Levesque O, Canada Ordinary 100% The holding company of the Group's
Porte 2500, Montreal investment in JSK Naval Support Inc.
{Queberc), H3B 5C9
JSK Naval Support inc. 193 Brunswick Blvd Canada Ordinary 50% A joint venture between SEA and a Canadian
Quebec, Canada supplier to deliver and support SEA products
HSR 5NZ into the Canadian Navy and services
Visiondce Limited Unit 4 England Ordinary 100% Software solutions for detection,
Wokingham tracking and C-UAV systems
Commercial Centre
Molly Millars Lane
Wokingham RG41 2RF
Chess Dynamics Inc 7060 S Tucson Way A USA Crdinary 100% US representative of Chess’s UK business

Centennial
CO 80112

All shares held in subsidianes and joint ventures are the same class and carry equal weighting to any shares held by other sharehalders.
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11. Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Company

“he Corpany's investments nsubiimanes are a5 fo'lows

2,323

A1 Nay 2017 — 14,3%7 19,382 2.641 26,551 55,454
Acgured — — 29 — - 3.-14 3,613
Share-based payments — 104 20 18 82 14 248
Vastad In year — {69} 114) (20} (56} — {1591
Deferred rax on share-based payments cnarged

directly to equity — 951 — {16} {81 — {192}
At 1 May 2018 — 14,537 16,487 2,623 26,506 12,851 73,004
Acguired 18,702 - - - - — 18,702
Share-based payments — 109 24 — a8 33 254
Vested in year — (95} {13) — (83} — {191}
Deferred tax on share-based payments charged

directly to equity — (5} — — — — (s}
Repaid by subsidiary to Cohort — — — {1,039) - - (1.039)
At 30 Aprii 2019 18,702 14,546 16,498 1,584 26,511 12,884 90,725

Cohort plc acquired 81.84% of Chess on 12 December 2018 Cohort paid £20,041,000 for Chess including a sharehelder loan of £2,489,000. In
addition to the £17,552,000 paid for 81.84% of Chess’s shares, Cohort accrued £1,150,000 in respect of an earn out payable, making a total
investment by Cohort ple, the Company, for 81.84% of Chess of £18,702,000.

12. Inventories

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Finished goods and raw materials 13,452 5,877

The inventory at 30 April 2019 is after a stock provision of £1,130,000 {2018: £733,000).

13. Trade and other receivables
aroup Company
2013

2019 RCRS E AR 2013 2115
£'000 2000 £'000 700
Trade receivables {net of provision for doubtful debts}) 19,930 17,314 - —
Contract receivables 13,044 11,963 — -
Prepayrments and accrued income 9,719 5.416 150 158
Current tax assets 278 - - —
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - — 2,626 890
42,971 34,693 2,776 1,048

1 P-ior yoar compaat vos Pave beer restated oon tae Group’s adoption at IFRS 25 “Revenu2 from Contracts w.th Customers ™ 302 note 30 for details regarding
the rastatement

No trade and other receivables were due in greater than one year,

The avarage credit period taken on sales of goods is 22 days {2018: 24 days). Of the trade receivables balance, £5.3m was considered averdue
at 30 April 2015 (30 April 2018: £3.3m). The decrease in the debtor days is dug to the earlier invoicing in the final quarter by MCL, EID and SEA.
Cverdue is defined as trade receivables stifl cutstanding beyond invoice terms {typically 30 days). The allowance for doubtful debt is determined by
management’s best estimates, by reference to the particular receivables over which doubt may exist. None of the other receivables were past due.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair values. One of the largest
trade recevable, to which the Group 1s exposed at 30 April 2019, is the UK MOD with a balance outstanding of £1.6m {2018: £3.7m).
Other custamers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables include:

2019 203
£m £m

Customer A 24 1.5

Customer B 1.2 14

Customer C 1.2 1.1

Customer D 1.0 1.0

Customers A B, Cand D in 2019 are not the same as custamers &, B, Cand D in 2018.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 April 2019

13. Trade and other receivables continued

Trade recavabies inclyde 2320 ,2028 £5 5my zepnmnaras nfareign Zurrancy Toe pratomingte o

15 pounds stering

The =~aorit, of tne Grous'z Zustarars are JK or oversess goverrment cganisahons ard 3

T
and transa07t L2C100s

Loranoy o the trade recaivap 25

TERr prire Toniractons nine zafence

Tha Group assesies 3 rew Lstomers for creditworthness bafore extandirg cradit Ir the case of guerseas custorers, the Group unilisas
various payment protection rmachan smsinc Lding out not I m'ted to 2xport credit guarantees, letters of credit and acvance payments.

Tracte rece vablas disclosed 3bove nciude amounts which ara oast due at the eporting date but against which the Group bas not recogrised
371 allowanze for doubtful debts because the credit quality of the customer s not considered to have changed and the amopunt due

15 considered fully recoverabla.

2019 273

Ageina ot oastdua Bt noL mpare s celewal v £'000 £°300
30-60days 2,923 2,436
60-90 days 504 &5
>30 days 1,826 819
5,253 3,340

2019 2018

Aovenaat 1 the ailowance for doabrfuidest, rearrarwithiv trad=s 2 cvabiest £'000 £"000
Balance at 1 May 340 310
Impairment losses recognised - 35
On acquisition of Chess 689 -
Utilised on write off of debt {42) —
Released on recovery of debt previously provided — {19}
Forelgn exchange movement {7) 14
Balance at 30 April 980 340
2019 013

Contract recovab o5 £'000 L0
Opening balance 11,963 10,172
Acquired 1,440 -
Contract receivable recognised in revenue 12,806 11,864
Caontract receivable invoiced (13,150) (10,073}
Foreign exchange movement (15) —
Closing balance 13,044 11,963

The Group order book at 30 April 2019 and its expected recognition as revenue in future pereds 1s shown in the Business review on page 25.

The order book at 30 April 2018 {restated for IFRS 15) 15 shown on page 102.

14. Trade and other payables

Sraan Comraany

2019 EH - 2019 2012

£900 L0 £'000 EO03

Advance receipts 4,620 3,164 _ —
Trade payables and accruals 17,418 3,380 260 103
Social security and other taxes 2,190 3,384 103 124
Accruals and deferred income 10,997 12,908 1,921 1,354
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings — — 1,584 —
35,225 28,836 3,868 1,581

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing contract costs. Advance receipts
reflect invoicing ahead of work done in accordance with contracted terms. The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 43 days
(2018: 45 days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit

terms {(see Risk management, pages 46 to 51).

Trade payables and accruals, other payables and taxes are all due for settlement within 12 months of the year end, the majority within

three months.

Social security and other taxes include employment taxes and VAT,

The Directars consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair values.
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14. Trade and other payables continued
Tota gayaole rooLdas £4 3m 22018 £5 8m) deromopatad in foreign turrancy

2019 Pty
L £'000 o
Ooen ng baignce 3,164 2,192
Advanced acgured — —
New advances 4,620 3,154
Advarces coansumed in delvery of contract (3.164) (2,199i
Clasing balanca 4,620 3,164
15. Bank borrowings
GrouD L 3TpEy
2019 2018 2019 012
£000 £'090 £:000 £1000
Bank averdrafts - — 10,942 15,652
Bank loans 25,028 9,167 25,028 9167
Finance leases 159 3 — -
25,187 3,173 35,970 24,819
These borrowings are repayable as follows,
Group Company
2m9 2018 2019 2018
£000 £'00D £°000 £000
On demand or within one year 61 9,173 10,942 24,819
In the second year 61 — - —
In the third to fifth years inclusive 25,065 - 25,028 -
25,187 9173 35,970 24,819
Less: amounts due for settlement within 12 months {shown under current liabilities) {61) 9.173) (10,942) 124,819}
Amount due far settlement after 12 manths 25,126 — 25,028 —
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
2019 AN
% -
Bank overdrafts {variable) 2.45 2.10
Bank loans (variable) 2.15 1.55
Finance leases {fixed} 5.50 4.60

The variable rates are based upon the Bank of England or European Central Bank interest rates.

On 15 November 2013, the Group entered into 1ts current banking facility. The £30.0m facility s provided equally by Lloyds and NatWest
banks. The facility is provided for four years with options to extend for a further year and is secured over all of the Group’s assets excluding
EID, which is not part of the facility arrangement and maintans its own facilities locally in Portugal. The facility 1s available to the Group
{excluding EID) in respect of acquisition financing and overdraft. The facility alsa includes an option to extend the facility by a further
£10.0m to £40.0m in total. The Group is not obliged to make any repayments prior to the facility’s expiration in November 2022 and 15

disclosed as repayable in the third to fifth years inclusive.

The facility terms are similar to the Group’s previous facility which expired 15 November 2018,

At 30 April 2019 the facility has been drawn on as follows:

Stwhkich

drawenn s

£mn

Revolving credit facility loan 25.0
Qverdraft —
25.0

At 30 April 2019, the Group had available £5.0m of undrawn bank facility. The Directors consider the carrying amount of bank

borrowings approximate to their fair values.

The Group has entered into separate bilateral arrangements with each of its banks, Lloyds and NatWest, for ancillary facilities including

bonding, fetters of credit and foreign exchange contracts.

Similar bilateral arrangements exist for EID with its bank in Partugal. In addition, EID has an overdraft facility of €2.5m with Santander

which 15 renewable on a six-manth rolling basis. This facility was undrawn at 30 April 2018

Cohortplc.com
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

15. Bank borrowings continued
The Graio's cash at 30 Apnl 2013 o7 £18 8 s he o w “h the fol Dwing Danks

2019 s

£'000 £onn
Nartonal westminster Bank plc 15,445 11,913 At
3a-clays 8ark PLC 993 16 Al
ovyds Bank plc 185 131 Aa3
Clydescale Bank pic - 1 Baa3l
Novo Banco 11 11 Caa2
Santander Bank 801 1,491 Baa3
Banco Comercial Portugués 478 6,087 Baa3
Caixa Geral de Depositos Bank 822 857 Bal

Other banks and cash 28 4

18,763 20,511

16. Provisions

Other

contract

Reormanisaton related
of 5C5 Warranty PrOvISons Totel
Gro.up £000 £000 £°000 £'00n
At 1 May 2017 1,263 743 106 2,112
Charged to the income statement — 227 438 665
Utilised (612} (491) (106) {1,209)
Foreign exchange movement — 24 — 24
At 1 May 2018 651 503 438 1,592
On acguisition — 200 321 1.021
Charged/(released) to the income statement {109} 89 (330) {350}
Utilised {542) (131) {154) (827)
Foreign exchange movement — (10) — {10}
At 30 April 2019 — 651 775 1,426
Provisions due in less than one year — 651 167 818
Provisions due in greater than one year — — 608 608
At 30 April 2019 g 651 775 1,426
Provisions due in less than one year 215 503 438 1,156
Provisions due in greater than cne year 438 — — 436
At 30 April 2018 651 503 438 1,592

The warranty provisions are management’s best estimates of the Group’s fiability under warranties granted on software and cther products
supplied and are based upon past experience. The timing of such expenditure is uncertain, although warranties generally have a time {imit
of no mare than 12 months, unless a longer warranty period is purchased by the customer. Warranty provisions are reviewed at the half

year and year end in respect of actuzl spend and the remaining obligations to be fulfilled.

Other contract related provisions are management’s best estimate of the Group’s expasure to contract related costs and undertakings

which are in addition to contract accruals and include contract loss provisions. The timing of these is uncertain but is expected to be
resolved within 12 manths of the balance sheet date. These arise where a service or product has been previously delivered ta the customer
and the Group receives a claim or an adverse indication in respect of the work done. Where the amount required 1s uncertain or the Group

disputes the amount of the claim, provision is made for the best estimate of the amount that will be reguired to settle the issue.

Qther contract related provisions also include contract foss provisions in respect of contracts where the estimated cost at completion
exceeds the total expected revenue of the contract. A contract loss provision is recognised as a provision in full immediately as it arises.

The contract ioss provisions are held in respect of contracts which are expected to camplete in the next 12 months.

Other contract related provisions also include property dilapidation provisions and other trade related issues which may not be related

10 a trading contract.

The provision in respect of the reorganisation of SCS was fully utilised in the year following the relocation of Cohort's head office,

the onerous lease being settled.
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17. Deferred tax

ATl May 2017 1 12.167; {315 362 442 28 {1,650

Credit to the rncome statement 'n respect 0* the

currert tax vear 21 1063 7 14 10 53 1.1568
Charge to thaancome staterment in raspect of orior

Tax years i3 — — {199} — (57) {254)
Effect of tax rate charge due to change In estimated

lives of underlying assets and/or liabilities {10} — - (2) 17) — {19)
Foreign exchange movement 3 - - 2 - — >
Recognised in the income statement 6 1,063 7 {185) 3 4) 390
Recognised in equity — — — - (248) — (248)
At 1 May 2018 7 (1,104} 1309) 177 197 24 {1,008)
On acquisition (52} (4,297) — — — — {4,349
Credit/icharge) to the income statement In respect

of the current tax year (58) 1,688 8 120 8 {6) 1,720
Credit to the income statement in respect of prior

tax years — - - 42 1 1 44
Effect of tax rate charge due to change in estimated

lives of underlying assets and/or liabilities — - — (3} — — {3)
Foreign exchange movement — — — {4 _ - (4
Recognised in the income statement (98} 1,688 2 155 9 5] 1,757
Recognised in equity — — - - (78} - (76)
At 30 April 2019 (143} (3,713} {301) 332 130 i9 (3,676)

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances {after offset} for financial reporting purposes:

2019 2014
£'000 L
Deferred tax assets 365 406
Deferred tax liabilities (4,041) {1,414)

{3,676) {1,008}

A deferred tax liability in respect of the revaluation of a freehold building arose on the acquisition of SEA and is the potential tax liabtlity
payable cn the revaluation gain in respect of the buitding with reference to its historicat cost.

The Company’s deferrad tax balance at 30 Apnil 2019 was an asset of £39,000 {2018: £98,000) being £18,000 (2018: £12,000) in respect
of other short term timing differences, accelerated tax depreciation of £5,000 (2018: £5,000) and share options of £16,000 (2018: £81,000)

The corparation tax rate in the UK for the year ended 20 April 2019 was 19.0% {2018: 13.0%} which has been applied by Cohort in
calculating s income tax (see note 6). A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% (effective 1 April 2017) to 17% (effective
1 April 2020} was enacted in September 2016. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated using 19% for balances expected
to reverse on or before 31 March 2020 and 17% for those reversing after this date.

For deferred tax balances in respect of EID (Portugal), the rate used was 22.20% (2018: 22.45%).

The equity mavement in deferred tax on share options is to reflect the future tax associated with the total future share options exercisable
and Is not capped at the share-based payment level,
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

18. Derivative financial instruments
Tha Group mas dervatva firarc a nstruman®s as fal ows:

2019 Lo
£'000 S

Assets

Foreign currency forwarg coriracts - 51

Liabilities

Forzign currency forwara coniracts (929) 1123

The charges in marking the outstanding foreign currency forward contracts to fair value twhizh are hase upon quoted market valuations)
are credited or charged to the Consolidated income statement as “credit/(charge) on marking forward exchange contracts to market vatue
at the year end” They are in respect of trading contracts undertaken by the Group and in respect of MCL and 5EA, and are disclosed within
their respective operating profits in the segmental analysis {see note 1; 2018: MCL and SEA). They are considered to be level 1 classification.
The credit {2012: charge) to the Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 Apnil 2019 was as follows:

2019 RILHE)
£'000 £7009
Foreign currency forward contracts 33 (280)

Currency derivatives
The Group utilises forward currency cantracts to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows. The Group 15 party to a number
of foreign currency forward contracts in the management of its foreign exchange rate exposure.

The changes in total cutstanding committed foreign currency forward contracts of the Group were as follows:

sell Buy Buy sell Buy Sell Sell Buy
2019 £000 MYR 00 £'000 €000 £1000 LS5D00 £000 USS000
At forward exchange rates

At 1 May 2018 11,026) (6,315) 526 588 309 436 (1,290) (1,818)
Contracts matured in period 1,026 6,315 {526) {588} (309) (496) 1,250 1,818
New contracts in period — — 388 433 — — {3,603) {12,587)
At 30 April 2019 - - 388 433 — — (9,603) (12,587)
Fair value adjustment — {15} — (84)

At 30 April 2019 at spot rate — 373 — (9,687)

The total fair value adjustment s £99,000 (2018: £132,000) and the change in the forward exchange fair values for the year ended
30 Apri 2019 is £33,000 (30 April 2018: £280,000), which 1s included in the operating profit of the Group as a cregit {2018: charge).

szl Auy Buv Sul Buy S Sell Buy
2018 L0 WYR D00 £ 000 £701 £O00 155000 003 1J55°000
At forward exchange rates
At 1 May 2017 — — 371 434 1,251 1718 {2,458} (3,081}
Contracts matured in period — — (371) (434) 1,251) (1,718) 2,458 3,081
New contracts in pericd {1,026) (6,315) 526 588 309 495 (1,290} {1,818)
At 30 April 2018 (1,026) (6,313) 526 538 309 496 (1,290 {1,818)
Fair value adjustment, (144) (8} 51 131)
At 30 April 2018 at spot rate {1,170} 518 360 (1,321}
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18. Derivative financial instruments continuad
Liquidity risk

Trhe matur ty 0 the outstanding contracts aas as follows

i . PR R

2.

433 — — 14,543

19,955}

Within ons year — -
Withim Two vears — — — — — — {3,060) {6.632)
Gregter than twoyaas — - - — — — — -
At 30 April 2019 at forward rate — — 388 433 — — (9,603) (12,587)
i Aoy 3. Su By Se e 3y
£ 3% Aps 2018 £000 MrR'2O0 £ 290 eunr £ 200 N £000 U550
within one year {1,026) {6,315) 526 538 309 496 {1,290) (1,818)
Within two years — — — — — - — -
Greater than two vears — - - — — - - -
At 30 April 2018 at forward rate (1,026) {6,315} 526 588 309 496 {1,290) (1,818)
The following significant exchange rates applied at 30 Apnil-
2019 2013
Malays an
Uss$ Euro 2ngzt 55 tura
Exchange rates at 30 Apri 0.7698 0.8621 0.1853 0.7267 0.8735

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of sterling against the above currencies at 30 Apnit 2019 would decrease the reported operating profit by £847,000
(2018: increase the reported operating profit by £147,000) in respect of marking these forward contracts to market value.

19. Share capital

2019 2.3

Number Numger

Allotted, called up and fully paid 10 pence ordinary shares 40,959,101 40,959,101
Movement in allotted, called up and fully paid 10 pence ordinary shares:

Norna

Atl May 2017 40,959,101

Share options exercised —

At 1 May 2018 40,959,101

Share options exercised -

At 30 April 2019 40,959,101

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, none of which carry a right to fixed income.

During the year ended 30 April 20189, no ordinary shares (2018: Nil) in Cohort pic were 1ssued to satisfy share options.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

20. Share options

The Group 2rants new share opt ons undar the Tohart piz 2015 snare 00057 5272me 10 52107 Mmanagameant and key 2mployeas Previnus
20t ors nave aeen grantad urder the Cohart ple 2006 share opticn scm2™e The Grous 332 0Derates a S5ase As You £arr (SAYE) scheme
and a Shareipce~tive Pran (s 2 both of which are avaraoleto al employes,

TAe “miowng opt ons were oJtstanding at 20 Agr’ 2013,

e = 30 April 2019 ol s

JV:" : Ty Mot L
S et TETAT Iate - - Vested vested Totat SRS Lot Ty
Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme
23 Jur 2010 08235 24 Jul 2013 235112020 43,299 — 43,299 100,471 - 100,471
26 Jul 2011 0.915 27 Jut 2014 26 Jul 2021 22,000 — 22,000 52,252 - 52,252
2 Aug 2012 1.165 3 Aug 2013 2 Aug 2022 68,500 — 68,500  135.301 - 138.801
9 Aug 2013 1.675 10 Aug 2016 9 Aug 2023 78,550 — 78,550 111000 — 111,000
11 Aug 2014 1975 12 Aug 2017 11 Aug 2024 44,930 — 44,930 80.936 — 80,936
31 0ct 2014 2.425 1 Nov 2017 31 Oct 2024 — — - 8,000 — 8,000
20 Aug 2015 3725 21 Aug 2018 20 Aug 2025 192,534 — 192,534 — 246,469 246,469
Cohert plc 2016 share option scheme
15 Aug 2016 3.400 16 Aug 2019 15 Aug 2026 — 220,459 220,459 — 263,103 263,103
25 Aug 2017 3.760 26 Aug 2020 25 Aug 2027 — 288,563 288,563 — 339,632 339,632
10 Aug 2018 3.300 11 Aug 2021 10 Aug 2028 - 319,353 319,353 — — —

449,813 828,375 1,278,188 491460 849,204 1,340,664

Save As You Earn [SAYE) scheme

13 Aug 2013 1,545 - — — — 17,472 17,472
11 Aug 2014 2.075 - 28,913 28,913 1,734 34,695 36,429
14 Aug 2015 3.380 e 35,372 35,372 — 115,567 115,557
29 Aug 2016 3.550 — 101,041 101,041 — 127,839 127.839
25 Aug 2017 4.085 - 86,368 86,368 — 107,682 107,682
15ep 2018 3.900 — 70,441 70,441 — — —

— 322,135 322,135 1,734 403,285 405,019

449,813 1,150,510 1,600,323 493,194 1,252,489 1,745,683

The SAYE options have maturity perods of three or five years from the date of grant. The Group plar provides for 3 grant price egual

to the closing market price of the Group shares on the trading day prior to the date of grant. in the case of the SAYE schemes, the price
is determined an the date before the invitation to participate which was on 10 August 2018 The vesting period is generally three years,
five years in the case of some SAYE optians.

If options under the Cohort plc 2006 or 2016 share option schemes remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant,
the options expire. Furthermore, options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

The Group launched an all employee Share incentive Plan (SIP) an 1 September 2018. The scheme provides for participating employees
to save up to £150 per month throughout each annual accumulation period. At the end of each accumulation period (30 August each year),
the amount saved will be used to purchase Cohort plc ordinary shares at the lower of the mid-market share price on the first and ast day
of accumuliation period.

The shares to be issued under the Group’s SIP scheme are provided by the Cohort Employee Benefit Trust {see note 21).
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20. Share options continued
The movement «nsha~s oprions dur ng the year 5 as forows:

2019

Weighted

average
exercise @ 2

price
QOptions E Tior Z
Ouistarding at 1 May 1,745,683 2.94 1730355 2.55
Granted durirg tha yayr 414,264 3.90 452,427 384
Forfaited during the year (147,138) 3.66 (79,6551 328
Exercised during the year (371,626) 2.00 (338,164 2.06
Expired during the year {40,860) 3.68 19,274} 3.30
Outstanding at 30 Apnil 1,600,323 3.32 1,745,683 2.94
Exercisable at 30 April 449,813 2.39 493,194 1.34

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was £2.00 (2018 £2.06). The
options outstanding at 30 Apnil 2019 had a weighted average exercise price of £3.32 (2018: £2.94} and a weighted average remaining

contractual life of six years (2018 six years).

The exercised options in the year were satisfied by transferring shares from the Cobort Employee 8enefit Trust {see note 21).

In the year ended 30 April 2019, ocptions were granted as follows: 75,111 on 1 September 2018 under the SAYE scheme and 335,153
on 10 August 2018 under the Cohort plc 2016 share option scheme. The option price for the SAYE scheme was £3.900 per share which
was the mid-market price on the day before the scheme invitation was made on 10 August 2018. The option price for the options issued

under the Cohort plc 2016 share opticn scheme was £3.900, the mid-market price the day before the grant.

Share options granted during the current and previous years were valued using the Quoted Companies Alliance model, a Black Schales-based

binomial madel. The inputs to this model for the current and previous years were as follows:

2019 2018
Average share price £3.83 £3.83
Weighted average exercise price £3.32 £2.94
Expected volatility 26.0% 32.0%
Risk free rate 0.91%-1.84% 0.84%—1.96%
Leaver rate {per annumj 10.0% 10.0%
Dividend vield 0.94% 0.92%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histarical volatility of the Group’s share price over the previous two years.

The {eaver rate used in the modef is based on management’s best estimate.

The Group recognised a cost of £291,000 {2018 £273.000) relating to share-based payment transactions which are all equity settled,

an equivalent amount being transferred to the share option reserve

The cost of share-based payments is included in “Administrative expenses” within the Consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 Aprit 2019

21. Own shares

Balance at L May 2017 1,742

czures rthe yoar 1,267
Sold i the year 1697
Loss or sharss sold notne year 17221
Ba ance at 30 Apnil 2018 1,15C
Acauiradin the year 531
Sold i the year \7413)
Loss on shares sold in the year {730}
Balance at 30 April 2019 348

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Cohort plc purchased in the market and held by the Cohort Employee Benefit
Trust to satisfy options under the Group’s share option {see note 20}, Restricted Share Schemes (see the Remuneration & Appointments
Committee report on pages 54 to 59) and the Group’s SIP scheme.

The number of ordinary shares in Cohort plc held by the Employee Benefit Trust at 30 April 2019 was 98,053 (2018: 341,128).

Tranches of Cohert plc ordinary shares were acquired by the Employee Benefit Trust as follows: 32,500 on 23 May 2018 and 142,471
on 6 luly 2018, at costs of £3.41 and £3.65 per share respectively, a total investment of £630,852.

Ordinary shares in Cohort plc were transferred by the Employee Benefit Trust for the purposes of satisfying the exercise of share options
as follows:

\Loss)/profr
onsale

Exariise ance per share Number af Proceeds of shares
Pence shares sold £'000 £7000
835 57,172 48 {151)
915 30,252 28 {78)
116.5 70,301 82 (163)
1545 17472 27 (35)
1675 32,450 54 (59)
1975 36,006 71 {57)
2075 1,734 3 (3
2425 8,000 18 (%)
338.0 78,230 264 {14)
3400 9,278 32 (1)
355.0 554 2 -
3725 27,967 104 5
376.0 2,036 8 —
4085 134 1 —
371,626 743 (565)

in addition, 46,420 (2018: 53,456) ordinary shares in Cohort plc were transferred at nil value realising a loss on sale of shares of £164,879
for the purpose of satisfying shares awarded to the Executive Directors {see the Remuneration & Appointments Committee report on
pages 54 to 59) and senior management under the Group’s Restricted Share Scheme. The total loss on satisfying share options and
Restricted Shares by the Employee Benefit Trust was £730,000 {2018: £722,000).

28,690 {2018: 67,793) of the shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust at 30 April 2019 remain to be issued under the Restricted Share
Scheme, on which an estimated loss of £315,027 (2018, £236,548) will be recognised as they are issued.

As at 30 Apnil 2019, an estimated 14,000 shares (2018, Nil) held by the Employee Benefit Trust expect to be used under the Share [ncentive
Plan on which an estimated gain of £2,500 {2018: £Nil} would be recognised as they are 1ssued.

The market valuation of the ordinary shares in Cohort plc held by the Employee Benefit Trust at 30 April 2019 was £389,761 (2018: £1,193,948).

On 14 May 2019, the Cohort Employee Benefit Trust acquired a further 393,076 Cohort plc ordinary shares at 380.5 pence per share,
a total investment of £1.5m. As at that date, the Cohort Employee Benefit Trust held 491,129 Cohort plc ordinary shares (1 2% of the
totaf sharesin issue).

The cost of operating the Empioyee Benefit Trust during the year ended 30 April 2019 was £21,950 (2018: £21,500) and this cost is included
within “Administrative expenses” in the Consclidated income staterment.

92 Cohort ple Annual Report and Accounts 2019



22. Reserves

Tne Group (corsondated) 3d Comoany statements of changes in equity are disclos=d as prirary s1atemeris on pages 69 and 70,

Balow 13 4 2esid oton o° the rature ard parpase of e mmd.y Juai reserves

P S-are can ta cearesentiine roornal vaue of shares ssued nc uding Tnase $huas to the Connrt Eployes Benedtt Trustizee note 13

» S-are pramuLroaciudes the ammownts over tne norynal value inrespect of share ssaes . 3cminon, Costs 0 resgect of share ssues

are debizec 1o this account

» Own shares he.d by the Group reprasant shares in Cohorz ple. All the sha-es are neld by the Cohort Emglayee Berefit Trust {see note 21}

¥ Snare option resarve represents the cumulatve share-based payment charged to reserves less the transfer “o retained =arnings

on vesting of opt ons,

» The other reserve represented the final earn-out payable on the acquisition of the nen-controlling irterest (13 16%) of Chess.

This reserve s axpected to be fully utilised by 30 April 2022,

» Retained earnings include the realised gains and losses made by the Group and the Company

23. Net cash from operating activities

Eroug Cavipany

2019 2019 101%
£'000 £'000 7000
Profit for the year 5,091 8,058 8,724 5,158
Adjustments for:
income tax charge 584 2,074 {11) 5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,147 1,116 57 27
Amortisation of other intangible assets and goodwill 9,514 5,312 - —
Net firance expense 269 83 270 95
Derivative financia! instruments and other non-trading exchange movements {33) 280 - —
Share-based payment 291 273 37 25
{Decrease}/increase in provisions {1,186) {520} {560]) 574
Operating cash flows befare moverments in working capital 15,677 16,723 8,517 5,884
Increase in inventories (2,812) {581} — —
{Increase)/decrease inreceivables (794) 3,064 {1,048) (580)
Increase/(decrease) in payables {451) {4,081} 5,179 320
(4,057) {1,598) 4,131 (360]
Cash generated by operations 11,620 15,125 12,648 5,524
Income taxes paid (2,689) (1,802) — -
Interest paid {296) {103} (286) {101}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,635 13,220 12,362 5,423
1 Prios yoar comparatives have oo2n costatad gaon the Groun’s adastion of 1535 13 "Rovenue from Contralts w b Customers” Seenote 3040 deta |5 ~2garaing
the restarament
24. Operating lease arrangements
2019 2013
Group £'000 £:000
Mirimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense In the year:
Land and buildings 1,150 1,088
Other 132 183
1,282 1,271
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

24, Operating lease arrangements continued
AL 30 Aprn! 2019 tn2 Group nad sutstanding Zommitments ior futate minimLm lease payrments wnder non-cance lan'a nperaing 123ses
whicn faldoe as follows

2019 .=
£'000 A

Land ard buldings.
Witnin one year 502 293
Intne second to firth year inclusive 1,669 2,533
After fiva yaars 4,614 573
6,785 3,400

Other:

Within one year 182 171
In the second to fifth year inclusive 378 177
560 348
7,345 3,748

Significant leasing arrangements held by the Group are inrespect of its operating facilities in Aberdeen, Barnstaple, Horsham, Lincoln,
Lisbon, Plymouth, Theale and Wokingham,

In respect of all the Group’s operating leases {including the Company’s), there is no contingent rent payable and there are no escalation
clauses, restrictions for further leasing or restrictions on the Group's ability to access debt or pay dividends.

None of the significant operating leases entered into by the Group has any renewal or purchase options.

2019 018
Comoaany £'000 £°000
Minimum iease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year:

Land and buildings 62 38

The recognised expense 1n 2018 and 2019 15 lower than the actual payment made due to offsetting the expense against the onerous
lease provision established on the reorganisation of SCS. This provision was fully utilised when Cohort relocated its head office in
October 2018

At 30 April 2019 the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

2019
£'000

Land and buildings.

Within one year 87 203

In the second to fifth year inclusive 286 454
373 657

From 1 May 2019, the Group will apply IFRS 16 “Leases”. IFRS 16 “Leases” was issued in January 2016 and will be implementad by the
Group from 1 May 2019. This accounting standard will replace 1AS 17 "Leases” and will require lease liabilities and “right of use” assets to
be recognised on the balance sheet for almost all operating leases. This /s expected to result in an increase in assets and liabilities as set
out below.

The cost of operating leases currently included within operating costs will be split and the financing elernent of the operating charge
will be reported within finance expense.

Cohort plc wilt implement IFRS 16 applying the cumulative catch-up approach.

Operating leases will be valued on “right of use” assets as at 1 May 2019 and a lease hability recognised at the same time.
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24. Operating lease arrangements continued
Orthe transimon date of L May 2019, the Group 24p2cis to recogn.se “m2 ol owing

R.gh- of use assets

Lard and ouildi~gs 5,323
Fixtares and eau prent 469

5,797
Lease habil Ty 16,0851
Reduction in nat assets (and equity) (288]

The reducticn in net assets arises from the value of night of use assets brought onto the balance sheet being lower than the value
of lease habilities due to the different rates of run off

The net impact of IFRS 16 on profit before tax s not material at less than £0.1m reduction. For the year ended 30 April 2020 the operating
profit s expected to iImprove by just over £0.1m and the finance charge to increase by less than £0.2m as a result of implementing IFRS 16.

25. Commitments
There was £334,000 of capital commitments at 30 April 2019 (2018: £NIl}.

26. Pension commitments

The Group makes contributions to defined contribution stakeholder pension schemes. The contributions for the year of £2,322,000
{2018; £2,723,000} were charged to the Consolidated income statement. Contributions outstanding at 30 April 2019 were £332,691
{2018 £274,764).

27. Contingent liabilities
At 30 Apnl 2019 the Group had in place bank guarantees of £1,221,000 {2018: £1,920,000) in respect of trading centracts. The Group
15 not aware of any conditions which would realise these contingent liabilities.

28. Related party transactions
Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsicharies, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation.
However, the key transactions with the Company are disclosed as follows:

“3nagerent D derds G oaarehof

fondsreoe ved [N rorened

from trom fram

subsiciaries SO aros subsid aes

200 £000 [y

2015 2,246 10,111 235
2018 2,508 5,500 85

During the year ended 30 Apnil 2013, the Directors of Cohort ple received dividends from the Company as follows:

2018 2011

£ 3

S Carter 773,986 678,375
N Prest CBE 176,523 154,717
AThemis 10,199 8,942
Sir Robert Waimsley 2,550 2,235
S Walther 9,245 8.104
] Perrin 340 2398

972,843 852,672

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in the Remuneration & Appointments Committee report (pages 54 to 59).

The aggregate remuneration (excluding share option costs} of the key management of the Group was as follows:

2019 2015

£ £
Salary (including any allowances, benefits and employer’s NIC) 1,831,941 1,715,769
Employer’s pension contribution 438,866 49,624

Termination payments —_ —

1,880,807 1,765,393

The key management of the Group is the Board of Cohort plc phus each subsidiary’s Managing Director.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

29. Acquisition of Chess Technologies Limited {Chess)
Asannoavced o 12 Decamoer 2013, Cabart poacgured 31.84% 57 Thessfor an imita! cash considaration of yust avar 223 0m
Tre Groan nas recogrises 100% of Chess' rosu 75 a1d net asseis rore that date as it nas 2¥fective Zontro

Jdrder thia sg e and parchase agreemert, Lo oafurime - £12 /m 5 0ayable 1o Tne shareralders 07 Chess as 37 earn oot Daszed soen
its srading aerformarce over the thres y2a7s enced 30 Apr | 2021 34sed unonlataest foracasts, tris earn ouT s estimatad gt £1.15m

as 3% 3C Ap 2019,

The acguist on account ng s as follows:

Bk .a o
=10 i
Recognised amounts of ide~tif.able assets and 1aoilities assumed
Property, plant and eguipment 563 494
Other mtangible assets 4,154 23,934
Inventory 5,195 4,214
Trade and other receivables 5,350 8,641
Trade and other payables (6,628) 17.699)
Provisians - {1,021}
Deferred tax (52} 14,349)
Loan (27) {27)
Finance leases {135) {136)
Overdraft {844) (844)
11,615 23,207
81.84% of net assets acquired 18,953
Goodwill 2,198
Total consideration 21,191
Satisfied by:
Cash 20,041
Deferred consideration 1,150
Total consideration transferred 21,191
Net cash outflow anising on acguisition:
Cash consideration paid 20,041
Plus. overdraft acquired 844
20.885

The loan and finance leases acquired (£163,000) are shown as debt acquired in the net fund reconciliation on page 72

The fair value adjustments reflect policy alignments and adjustments arising out of Cohort’s due diligence work on the acquisition. These
include additional provisions aganst inventory and trade and other receivables balances an account of the age of certain balances and
uncertainty over recovery, recognition of accruals and liabilities {trade and other payables) and provisions for warranty, contract losses

and dilapidations {provisions).

The most significant fair value adjustment is in respect of the other intangible assets and is analysed as follows:

Bk v alue Fair wal.=

£ #0100

Goodwill held by Chess 56 —
Research & development expenditure 4,098 —
Contracts acquired — 8,091
Customer relationships — 15,843
4,154 23,934
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29, Acquisition of Chess Technologies Limited {Chess) continued
The otbarintangaie 3552ts of £23 S acguired and the restimatea wseful lives ave as falows

ER

Contracts 5091 5

Customer re’ations ips 15,843 5
23,934

Adeferred tax hability of £4.3 1 in respect of the other intangible assets balance above was established and 15 disclosed as part of the
fair value deferred tax hability,

The other intangible assets acquired are based upon the following:

Contracts The estimated profit m the acgquired order book of Chess, discounted at an appropriate WACC over the
expected Hife of the order book. This ntangible asset will be amaortised over that useful ife at a rate to
reflect the expected generation of profit from the order book

Customer relationships The estimated profit imidentified future orders and prospects, discounted at an appropnate WACC over the
expected hfe of the future order or prospect. This intangble asset will be amortised over that useful life
at a rate to reflect the expected generation of profit from those future orders and prospects.

The research and development expenditure acquired is considered to have no farr value as future cash flows arising from this asset
cannot be identified and assigned to any particular asset.

The goodwiil of £2.2m arising from the acquisition represents customer contacts, supplier relationships and know-how to which
no certain value can be ascribed. None of the goodwill 1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition of Chess includes a put and call option for the purchase of the remaining shares
(18.16%} in Chess, the non-controlling interest,

This option 1s exercisable by 31 October 2021 and is capped at £3.1m. The amount payable 15 dependent upon the performance
of the Chess business for the three years ended 30 April 2021

The non controtling interest is entitled to participate in any dividends payable by Chess in the period to 30 April 2021

In accordance with IFRS 3, the Group has ascribed a value to the option to acquire the non-controlling interest of Chess. This value
is £4.35m and the option is shown as a non current liability and, as the non-controlling interest has a right to dividends, in the other
reserves as “option for acquining non-controlhing interest in Chess”,

The Group has apphed the present-access method to the acquisition of Chess and thus the non-controling interest is deemed not
to be part of the acquisition transaction and the hability anismg from the optionis not included in the consideration transferred but
is accounted for separately

The values assigned to both the earn out and option are estimates based upon Chess’s actual performance for the year ended 30 April 2019
plus the {atest forecasts for the Chess business for the two years ended 30 April 2021 as adopted by the Board. These estimates, which are
considered to be significant unobservable inputs in accordance with IFRS 13, will be reviewed annually, based upon the actual performance
of Chess and 1ts latest forecast, and any adjustment necessary, made at that time. In accordance with IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
this s a level 3 hability but has not been discounted as the effect is immaternal.

The Group has considered 1t not appropriate to apply a discount rate to these financial liabilities as the effact would be immaterial.

The acguisition cost of £1.0m in respect of Chess was charged as an exceptional item in the Consolidated income statement. This cost
includes £0.4m in respect of renewing the Group's banking facility (see note 15). £18.0m of this facility was utilised in acquiring Chess.

Chess contributed £10.7m of revenue and £1.7m of adjusted operating profit for the period from 12 December 2018 to 30 Apnl 2019.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

30. Changes in accounting policies and restatements
Thiz aata 2xpiains the imoast of changas in accountng policies on prnior par ods

impact on financial statements
A5 a3 -es t of changesin tne GrouR’s 3rIoantng D0UTIes, DrIor yeas copatative nYormanon has besen cestated forthe adonnior o7 IFR5 15
“Reye e from Cortracts witn Customers™,

Tnempact of FRS 9 was not matera and no res:atement was reqguired

The *ol'owing tab'es show the adjustments ~ecogmsed for each .ndivdual ing tem | 'ne iterns that are not a'factad by the changes have
not oeenirciuded As arasult, the sub-totals ang totals disclosed cannot be recalculatad from the numbers provided.

Consolidated income statement

f2ar wndes 22400 20

Al

prav ausly moact oo

s+ared FR3 13

R [ReiB)
Revenue 111,798 (1,251) 110,547
Cost of sales (71,730} 874 (70,858)
Gross profit 40,068 (377} 39,691
Opening profit 10,639 (377) 10,262
Adjusted operating profit 15,602 (377} 15,225
Profit before tax 10,550 (377) 10,173
Incame tax charge {2,074) — {2,074}
Profit for the year 8,476 (377) 8,099

Yedr ende 130 apnl 2018

As Aazstated on
previous’y tmpact af adoption of
sated IFRS 15 FRS 15
£°000 OO0 F'ond
Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the parent 8,087 (377) 7,710
Non-controlling interests 389 — 389
8,476 (377) 8,099
Elalate) Perco Paare

Earnings per share:
Basic 19.88 (0.93) 18.95
Diluted 19.68 (0.92) 18.76

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 33 Aonl 2218

A, Reatatad an

prav-ously Impact of adontion of

stated IFRS 15 IFR3 15

£1000 £33 £000

Profit for the year 8 476 (377) 2,099

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,309 (377) 7932
Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the parent 7787 (377) 7410

Non-controlling interests 522 - 522

8,309 (377) 7,932

93 Cohert plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019



30. Changes in accounting policies and restatements continued

Consotidated statement of financial position

Current assets

ryentores 6,126 {549 5.8//7
Trade and other recawvables 33,258 1,435 34,593
603,246 B26 51,132
Total assets 115,573 886 116,459
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {27.303) {1,533)  {28,836]
{38,080) {1,533) (39,613}
Total liabilities {39,930) 11,533} (41,463)
Net assets 75,643 (647} 74,996
Equity
Retained earnings 39,500 1647} 39,253
Total eguity attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent 73,089 (647) 72,442
Non-controlling interests 2,554 — 2,554
Total equity 75,643 1647) 74,996
Note 8 — Earnings per share
tea- enzed 30 April 2013
As Restated on
B O Imoast ot adoption ot
araren i RS 1% RS %
Basic earmings (£'000) 3,087 (377) 7,710
Diluted earnings (£'000} 3,087 {377} 7.710
Adjusted earnings {£'000) 12,208 (377} 11,831
Diluted adjusted earnings (£'000) 12,208 {377} 11,821
Weignted average number of shares 40,679,428 — 40,679,428
Share options 413,334 — 413,334
Diluted weighted average number of shares 41,092,762 — 41,092,762
Basic earning per share — pence 19.38 (093} 18 95
Diluted earning per share — pence 19 68 (092} 1876
Adjusted earnings per share - pence 3001 (0.93) 29.08
Diluted earmings per share —pence 2871 (0.92) 28.79

The Group has adoptad IFRS 15 “Revenue from Customer Contracts”

have been restated accordingly

Cohortplc.com

fully retrospectively. Comparatives for the year ended 30 April 2018
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

30. Changes in accounting policies and restatements continued

Note 8 — Earnings per share continuzsd
The “0i'aa ng expechents withir tne stancard ~ave naen usan

P Revends n -2spact 0 comp eted contracts tha Demin and 300 a8 53028 3700 UrtnZ 927 o nave 1ot besn resratad

P Reven.e .nraspact of comp eted cortracts with var able co-s deration ref-ects the transact o~ orice at the date tre 29~ arts
wee comoered

The accountng oolicy in ~esoect of revenue froem 1 May 2018 s set cutin our Account.rg poiicies on page 107,

The imoact of IFR3 15 for the Group was that ravenue previously recogmised on milestones azhieved (an output basis) 1s now recognisad
arcording to the costsncurred, plus appropriate margin 1an Inpus basis) where those contracts involve the transfer of valus to castomars
over time.

The main impact of the restatement is already shown for the financial statements on pages 98 to 99.

In respect of the notes to the accounts, the mainmpacts are upon the following:

NMote 1 - Segmental analysis

Note 8 - Earnings per share

Note 12 - Inventories

Note 13 — Trade and other receivables

Note 14 — Trade and other payables

In addition, the impact on retained earnings 1s shown in the Consolidated statement of changes in equity and is summarised below.

Also, the five-year record (on page 110) has been impacted as shown below.

Note 1 — Segmental analysis for the year ended 30 April 2018

ED MASS MCL SEA Group
£1900 £000 £000 £0no £'000
Revenue:
As previously reported 19,084 37,568 17,381 37,805 111,798
Impact of IFRS 15 {786) — — (465) {1,251)
A5 restated 18,298 37568 17,3381 37,340 110,547
Segment adjusted operating profit:
As previously reported 4677 7113 2,072 4,433 15,602
Impact of IFRS 15 (362) —_ — (15) (377)
As restated 4,315 7,113 2,072 4,418 15,225
Operating profit/{ioss}:
As previously reported 3,115 7.333 1443) 3,231 10,639
Impact of IFRS 15 (362) — — {15) (377}
As restated 2,753 7,333 {443) 3,216 10,262
Profit/(loss) before tax:
As previously reported 3,115 7,333 (440} 3,234 10,550
impact of IFRS 15 (362) — — (15) {377)
As restated 2,753 7,333 (440) 3,215 13,173
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30. Changes in accounting policies and restatements ccntinued
Segment assets and liabilities as at 30 April 2018

segment asse's

As previodsly reparted 8637 12,31: 2,193 27122 19,332
Impact of TR 15 825 — — ol 846
As restated 9512 11,311 2,193 27,123 50,218
Segment liapilities:

As previously reported 16,0100 17.377) [4,802) (8.905)  (29,078)
Impact of IFR5 1y (1,533} — — (1,533)
As restated (7.543) {7,377} (4,802} {8,905) {30611

As a result of the restatement, the change in the consolidated total assets and habilities 15 the same as shown above, with no impact

of IFRS 15 on goodwill and other intang:ble assets.

Notes 12, 13 and 14 — inventories, trade and other receivables and trade payables have been combined

for convenience

t2ar enz=d 30 dar 1 2013

Rastated o0

A, prevously Im zau= of 1-25 15 adoor oq ot
repotted reclassd cation cameasurament IFR5 1%
£'000 £900 £:000 £000
tnventories 6,426 — (549) 5,877
Amounts recoverable on contracts 3,684 (3,684) — —
Contract assets — 10,528 1,435 11,863
Prepayments and accrued income 12,260 6,844) — 5,416
Advance receipts (1,297) (1,867} — (3,164)
Accruals and deferred income {13,242) 1,867 {1,533} {12,208)
The impact of adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group's retained earnimgs at 30 April 2018 and 30 Apnl 2017 is as follows:
2013 2017
21009 £ane
Retained earnings as previously reported 39,900 36,901
Recognition of revenue for aver time contracts based on
costs incurred and including attributable margin (647} (270}
Adjustment to retained earnings upon adoption of IFRS 15 (647) (270)
Retained earnings = IFRS 15 {restated) 39,7253 36,631
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2019

30. Changes in accounting policies and restatements continued
Theimpast on ne Groun's five-year “200r2 s as fo'lows:

Revarur
As prev ously redorted 111,798 112,651 122,277 89,938
Impact of IFR5 15 11.251; 343 {750) —
As rastatad 110,547 112,894 111,827 99,938
Adjusted operating profit
As previously reported 15602 14,489 11,502 10,085
Impact of IFRS 15 (377} {90) {180} —
As restated 15,225 14,399 11,722 10,085
Operating profit’
As previously reported 2,560 963 5,246 5,865
Impact of IFRS 15 (377) (50} {180) —
As restated 9,583 873 5,066 5,865
Peaca Praco Pance cenee
Basic adjusted earnings per share:
As previously reported 30.01 27.93 27.18 20.45
Impact of IFRS 15 (0.93) {0.22) (0.41) —
As restated 29.08 2771 26.77 20.45
Diluted adjusted earnings per share:
As previously reported 29.71 27.56 26.67 20.00
Impact of tFRS 15 {0.92) {0.22) (0.40) -
As restated 28.79 27.34 26.27 20.00
Basic statutory earnings per share:
As previousty reported 15.88 909 19.14 14.04
Impact of IFRS 15 {0.93) 10.22) (0.41) -
As restated 18.65 8.87 18 73 14 04
Diluted statutory earnings per share:
As previously reported 19.68 8.97 18.78 13.74
impact of IFRS 15 {0 92) (0.22) (0.40) —
As restated 18.76 8.75 18.38 1374
7918 07 206 2015
£m £m £ £
Order book:
As previously reported 102.5 1365 1160 134.0
tmpact of IFRS 15 1.3 (0.3) 0.8 —
As restated 103.8 136.2 116.8 134.0
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Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Tha Grogn firancia stataments nave bean preparad and aporovad by the Oirzciors 10 az2ordanza with Internalora. Financial Reonrting
Stardarzs as adopred by [ne EL1AdnuTen IFRSs), The Company nas e ecec to prepars 1i; parent company finarcal statements in accordance
w tn FRS 101, theys gre gresented on pages 67 10 110 Or pubish ~g the parert covpany Snarc al staterments nere, {ogether w 1
the Groun firancia’ statements, tre Company s taing acvantage of tre exerrot anin Section 408 of the Comoanies Act 2006 not to
presertits ‘ndovidlan incame statement and re-ated notes that foree part of tnaze approved firancia statemerts, The Comoany s 3

cubl o camrpary limited by shares

The firancial 3tasements are prepared on the histornical €03t basis 2xcept tnat the fo'lowing assets and iabiht-es are stated aft their fair
valus: derwvative fnancial instruments, financial instruments class.fied as fair varue through the profit or loss or as ava'aole for sale,
investrent property and fiabulities for cash-settled share based paymenis. Non-currart assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lowsr of previous carrying amount and fair value 1255 costs o seli

As highlighted in note 15 to the financial statements, the Company meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through a facility
which 1s due for renewal in November 2022 Both the current domestic economic conditions and continuing UK Government budget
pressures, including defence, create uncertainty, particutarly over the level of dermand for the Group's products.

The Company's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in tradmg performance, show that the Company
should be able to operate within the tevel of its current facility.

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements.

Further iInformation regarding the Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position, 1s set out in the Strategic report on pages 2 to 35 and Risk management on pages 46 to 51. The financial
position of the Company, its cash flows, its Higuidity gosition and 1ts borrowing faciiities are also described in the Strategic report on
pages 2 to 35.

In addition, the Strategic report includes the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk
management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financiai statements of the Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings made
up te 30 April 2019. Subsidiaries acquired during the year are consolidated from the date of acquisition, using the purchase method
{see "Business combinations” below).

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with
those used by the Group. The Group's subsidiaries have prepared their statutory financial statements in accordance with Adopted IFRS,
as from 1 May 2015.

Subsidiaries are enuties contralled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it 1s exposed to, or has nghts to, variable returns
from i1ts invoivement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control,
the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights. The acquisition date 1s the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consclhidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controliing interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling
interests even if doing 50 causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.
Unrealised gains arismg from transactions with equity-accounted investees are ebhminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated 1n the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Adoption of new and revised standards

Various new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted by the Group in the year ended 30 Aprit 2019 which have had
no significant impact on the amounts reported n these financial statements by the Group with the exception of IFRS 15 "Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, the impact of which 1s shown in note 30.

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement
using the effective interest rate method and are disclosed within accruals to the extent they are not settled in the period, unless the loan
terms provide for the interest to be added to the principal, in which case the interest is added to the carrying amount of the instrument
to which it pertains.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in the income statementn the period in which they are incurred unless, where appropriate, interest
costs are capitalised into assets, fixed and current.
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Accounting policies continued

Business combinations

af e f3imvalues, ar the comp eton date, of assets acoured, hab 1t 2 imaurred or assured a~d eguity irstruments issuen by the
navchange for contral of tne accu red subsidiary Tro costs 07 acquistor 372 charges to tie Comsol dates ncome statement as
sxcept ona tamr atcordarce with FI5 3 (Ressed,.

Goodwill anzing cn acguisizion s recogmised as an asseT and imtially measures at cost, beirg the evcess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group's interest in tne net fa rvalue of the icentifiab 2 mtang.ble assets, assets, habiht2s and co~tingent hablities recogr.sed.
If, after reassessment, which s 2 point in e greatar than 12 months afzar the completion date, t~2 Group's interest in the nat farr value
of the acqurree’s identifizole assets, habilities and contingent hablimies exceeds or s below the cost of the busness combination, the excess
o shortfall s recogmsed immadiately in tne income statement as an except-ona ‘tem.

Ad,ustments 12 the provisional value of assets and lailimes acaw-ad in a business combination when the final va'uss have become
kaown within 12 months are adjusted as if the ascounting had been completed at the acquisition date and the comparative information
for prigr periods is restated accordingly.

Any contingent consideration payable 1s recogmsed at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of tne
contingent consideration are recognised in profit or l0ss as an exceptional item.

The Group measures the non-controiling interests, which have both present ownership interests and are entitled to a proportionate
share of net assets of the acquired business in the event of hquidation, at 1ts proportigonate interest in the recognised amount of the
identifiable net assets of the acquired business at the acquisition date.

Where less than 100% of a subsidiary is acquired but the Group has effective control, that subsidiary is accounted for as if 100% were
acquired with the non-controlling intarest recognised appropriately.

Acquisitions and disposails of non-controlling interests that do not result in a change of control are accounted for as transactions with gwners
in their capacity as owners and therefore no goodwili is recognised as a result of such transactions. The adjustments to non-controlling interests
are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. Any difference between the price paid or received and the amount
by which non-controlling interests are adjusted is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on-demand deposits, and other short-term highly hguid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Deposits are included wsthin
cash and cash eguivalents where the maturity from commencement of the deposit 1s three months or less.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group uses
foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are
recognised directly in equity and the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. If the cash flow hedge
of a firm commitment or forecast transaction results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or liability
is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial
measurement of the asset or hability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts deferred in
equity are recognised in the income statement in the same peried In which the hedged item affects net income.,

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the iIncome
statement as they arise and are disclosed separately in deriving the Group's adjusted operating profit.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recordec at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Exceptional items

The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide a better indication of the Group's underlying business performance, reported
as the adjusted operating profit. Events which may give rise to the classification of items as exceptional, if of 3 significantly material
value, include gains or losses on the disposal of 2 business or the restructuring of a business, transaction costs, litigation and sirnilar
settlements, asset impairments and onerous contracts.

Financial instruments
Financiat assets and financial liabilities are recogrnised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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Foreign currencies
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foreign currencies) are recorced at the rates of exchange orevaling an the dares of the fransactons At eacn ba‘ance sheet date, monetary
assers and hiabihities that are derom:inated in foreign currencies are re-translatad at the rates prevalling on the ba'ance shee” date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the re-translation of monetary items, are included in the
income statement far the year.

in order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts. The Group’s accounting
policies in respect of such derivative financial instruments are described above.

These forward foreign exchange contracts are revalued to fair value at each balance sheet date with any movement included in the
Consolidated income statement as part of the cost of sales and disclosed separately in deriving the Group's adjusted cperating profit.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair vaiue of the
identifiable tntangible assets, assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly contrelled entity at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and 15 subseguently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill which is recognised as an asset is reviewed for impairment biannually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in

the income statement as an exceptional item and s not subseguently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s subsidiaries as appropriate. Subsidiaries
{cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment biannually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverabie amount of the subsidiary is less than the carrying amount of the subsidiary,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the subsidiary and then to the other
assets of the subsidiary pro rata on the basis of the carrying amaunt of each asset in the subsidiary. An impairment loss recognised

for goodwill is not reversed in a subseguent period. The impairment of goodwill 1s 2 critical judgement and estimate and s discussed

in detail below

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill 1s Included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each halance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment {if any).

The recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value i use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset {or subsidiary} s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{subsidiary} is reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss 15 recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset 1s carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss s treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (subsiciary) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but 50 that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had ne impairment loss been recognised for the asset (subsidiary) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised as income immediately.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised in respect of contracts, intellectual property rights and cther measurable intangibles arising on business
combinations. The value of these intangible assets is determined by the estimated value to the Group going forward. The intangible assets
are written off over the estimated usefui life on the basis of the consumption of the estimated value to the Group. As discussed on page 44,
the valuation of ntangible assets s an area of critical judgement and estimate for the Directors

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisabie value, Cost of finished goods and work in progress inciudes overheads appropriate
to the stage of manufacture. Net realisable value 1s based upon estimated selling price less the further cost expected to be incurred to
completion and disposat. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items. Stock is accounted far on a first in, first out basis.
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Accounting policies continued

Joint ventures
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Leasing
Lzases are zlassifiad 3s finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are Ciassified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recogmised as assets of the Group at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the mimmum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The correspanding liability to the lessor s included in the balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apporticned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability,

Rentals pavable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Benefits receved and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are alse spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Pension contributions
Payments are made to the Company’s stakeholder pension schemes, all of which are defined contribution schemes. Amounts are charged
to the income statement as incurred

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buitdings held for use in the praduction or supply of goods ar services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at their fair value at the date of acquisition, plus any subseguent cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised imparrment loss.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land and properties under construction, over therr
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:

Bulldings 2%—4%
Fixtures, fittings and equipment  20%-50%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter,
over the term of the relevant {ease.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement as an exceptional item.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive] which arises as a result of a past event and

It is probable that the Group wiil be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligatian at the balance sheet date and are discountad to present value where the effect is matenal
In respect of specific types of provisions, the pohicy is as follows:

Warranty

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation and specifically contracted warranty
undertakings are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant product or service. The provision is the Directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligation.

Other contract related provisions including contract loss provisions
These include the following:

The Group undertakes a number of contracts where contractual and/or third-party obligations arise as a result of delivering the
contract. This provision includes amounts for losses on contracts which are recognised in full mmediately when it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. In some cases, after a product has been delivered and revenue has been recognised,
the Group receives claims {including warranty issues) from customers in respect of work done. Where the amount required to settle
the claim 15 uncertain or the Group disputes the amount of the claim, provision is made for the best estimate of the amount that will

be required to settle the claim.

Contract loss pravisions are reviewed on a regular basis to determine whether the provision is still adequate or excessive.
Contract loss provisions and subsequent adjustments to them gre charged as cost of sales in the income statement.

Where such an obligation relates to a discontinued operation then the charge will be disclosed as an exceptional item.
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Interpaliy generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over thair useful ives. Where no intarnally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure 15 recognisad a5 an expense 10 the pernod in which 1t is incurrad.

Revenue and profit recognition
From 1 May 2018, the Group has applied IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The prior year figures have been restated
accordingly as shown in note 30,

Revenue represents iIncome derived from contracts for the provision of goods and services, over time or at a point in time, by the Group
to customers in exchange for consideration in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

Performance obligations

Upon approval by the parties to a contract, the contract 1s assessed to identify each promise to transfer either a distinct goed or service
or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer Goods
and services are distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations in the contract if the customer can benefit from them
either on their own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer and they are separately identifiable in
the contract.

The Group provides warranties to its customers to give them assurance that its products and services will function in line with agreed-upon
specaifications. Warranties are not provided separately and, therefore, do not represent separate performance obligations.

Transaction price

At the start of the contract, the total transaction price is estimated as the amount of cansideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods and services to the customer, excluding sales taxes Variable consideration, such as price
escalation, is included based on the expected value or most likely amount anly to the extent that it s highly probable that there will not be
a reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised. The transaction price does not include estimates of consideration resulting from
contract modifications, such as change orders, until they have been approved by the parties to the contract. The total transaction price is
allocated to the performance obligations identified in the contract in proportion to their refative stand-alone selling prices. Given the bespoke
nature of many of the Group's products and services, which are designed and/or manufactured under contract to the customer’s individual
specifications, there are typically no observable stand-alone sefling prices. Instead, stand-alone selling prices are typically estimated based
on expectad costs plus contract margin,

Whilst payment terms vary from contract to contract, on some of the Group's contracts, an efement of the transaction price Is received
in advance of delivery. The Group therefore has contract habilities disclosed as advance receipts {(note 13). The Group’s contracts are not
considered to include significant financing components on the basis that there s no difference between the consideration and the cash
selling price. UK Ministry of Defence contracting rules prohibit the inclusion of financing in the sales price.

Revenue and profit recognition

Revenue is recogmsed as performance obligations are satisfied as control of the goods and services 1s transferred to the customer.
For each performance obligation within a contract, the Group determines whether it is satisfied over time or at a point in time,
Performance obligations are satisfied over time if one of the following criteria is satisfied:

P the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as it performs;
P the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controis as the asset is created or enhanced; or

> the Group’s performance dees not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and 1t has an enforceable nght to payment
for performance completed to date.

The Group has determined that most of its contracts satisfy the over time ¢riteria, either because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's perfarmance as it perfarms {typically services or support contracts} or the Group's

performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and 1t has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date {typically development or production contracts).

For each performance obligation to be recognised over time, the Group recognises revenue using an input method, based on costs incurred
in the period. Revenue and attributable margin are calculated by reference to estimates of transaction price and total expected costs
to complete the contract, after making surtable allowances for technical and other risks Revenue and associated margin are therefore
recognised progressively as costs are incurred, and as risks have been mitigated or retired. The Group has determined that this method
appropriately depicts the Group's performance in transferring control of the goods and services to the customer.

If over time the criteria for revenue recognition are not met, revenue is recognised at the paint In time that control s transferred to the
customer, which i1s usually when legal title passes to the customer and the business has the right to payment, for example, on delivery.

When it1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately as an expense.
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Accounting policies continued

Software licences
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P the contract requires, or the customer reasonably expects, tnat the Group wili undertake actwaties that significantly affect
the intellectual property;

» the licence directly exposes the customer to the effects of those activities; and

B those activities do not result in the transfer of & good or service to the customer.

Contract modifications

The Group's contracts are often amended for changes in customers’ requirements and specifications. A contract modification exists
when the parties to the contract approve a modification that either changes existing or creates new enforceable nights and obligations.
The effect of a contract modification on the transaction price and the Group's measure of progress towards the satisfaction of the
performance obligation to which it relates 15 recognised in one of the following ways:

1. prospectively, as an additional, separate contract;
2. prospectively, as a termination of the exssting contract and creation of a new contract: or
3. aspartof the oniginal contract using a cumulative catch-up.

The majority of the Group’s contract modifications are treated under either 1 (for example, the requirement for additional distinct
goods or services) or 3 (for example, a change in the specification of the distinct goods or services for a partially compieted contract),
although the facts and circumstances of any contract modification are considered individually as the types of modifications wilt vary
contract by contract and may result in different accounting cutcomes.

Costs to obtain a contract
The Group expenses pre-contract bidding costs which are incurred regardless of whether 3 contract 1s awarded. The Group does not
typically incur costs to obtain contracts that it would not have incurred had the contracts not been awarded, such as sales commission.

Costs to fulfil a contract
Contract fulfilment costs in respect of over time contracts are expensed as incurred. Contract fulfilment costs in respect of point in time
contracts are accounted for under 1AS 2 “Inventorias”.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Share-based payments
The Group has applied the reguirements of IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments” In accordance with the tramsitional provisions, 1FRS 2 has
been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 May 2006.

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair
value {excluding the effect ot nan-market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group’s estimate

of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the non-market-based vesting conditions.

Fair value is measured by use of the Quoted Companies Alliance binomial model {a Black Scholes model) The expected life used in
the models has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The cost of share-based payments is charged to the income statement with a corresponding credit applied to the share cption reserve.
The appropriate element of the reserve is transferred to the retained profit of the Group when the share options to which the reserve
relates vest.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and the deferred tax expense or credit.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liahility for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax lishilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utthsed. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the tempoerary difference arises fram the initial recognition of goodwill or from
the imitial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the zccounting profit.
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Taxation continued
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially measured at fair value Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the
income statement when there 15 ghjective evidence that the asset 1s impaired. The allowance recognised 1s measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the estimated recoverable armount.

Where revenue recognised over time on a contract exceeds the value that has been invoiced, the excessis recognised as a contract asset
and s included within trade and other receivables

Accrued income is recognised on revenue recognised at a point In time where 3 delivery or service has been made and revenue can be
recogmised, but no invoice has been raised.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value. Subseguent measurement is based on changes in the fair value and any
changes recognised in the Consolidated income statement. To the extent that receipts from customers exceed relevant revenue whether
invoiced or a contract asset, then this is included as an advance receipt within trade and other payables.

Deferred income will arise on point in time contracts where customers have been invoiced, usually as a result of supplier costs incurred
by the Group but where the service/delivery has been made

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described above, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are hased on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed an an ongoing basis. Ravisions to accounting estimates are recognised
In the period in which the estimate is revised.

The Directors have identified the following ¢critical judgements and estimates in applying the Group’s accounting policies that have
the mast significant impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

1. Critical accounting judgements

Revenue recognition

Judgement is applied in whether ta recognise revenue over time or at a point In time with respect to contracts and other sales agreements
in place. This will make reference to the contractual arrangaments on each contract and which revenue recognition method 1s most
appropriate for that contract or sales agreement.

Fair values on acquisition

Judgement is applied In recognising the fair value of assets and liabilities on acquisition This judgement will make use of the experience
of the Directors, knowledge of the Husiness acquired and the due diligence exercise during the acquisition process. Provisional fair values
are recognised on the imitial reporting of any acguisition, allowing the Directors to reassess any judgements or estimates made in the
first twelve months of ownership.

Acquisition of other intangible assets

intangible assets ather than goodwill that are cbtained through acquisition are capitalised on the balance sheet. These other intangible
assets are valued on acquisition using a discounted cash flow methadology which depends on future assumptions about the revenue from
contracts, prices and costs and on the Group's cost of capital. At the time of an acquisition, the Directors use the business’s projected gross
margin from contracts acguired or future prospects. These gross margin figures will depend upon each contract’s cost to complete estimate
at that point i time and the Directors will apply judgement in whether those costs to complete are appropnate or not. The Directors will
also take into account the expected uming of the recognition of revenue {and gross margin} on each contract or future prospect.

Provisions

The Group makes estimates of provisions for existing commitments ansing from past events. In estimating these provisions, the
Group makes judgements as to the quantity and hkelihood of the liahiiity arising. Certain provisions require more judgement than others.
In particular, warranty provisions and contract loss provisions have to take account of future outcomes ansing from past deliveries
of preducts and services. In estimating these provisions, the Graup makes use of management experience, precedents and specific
contract and customer issues.
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Accounting policies continued

1. Critical accounting judgements continued

Research & development
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2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumpions concerning tha future, and other <ey sources of astimation uncertainty at tha ba ance sheet date, that have a sgnificant
risk of causing a matznial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habhties withun the next financial year are as folows,

Revenue and profit recognition

The judgement applied In recognising revenue on a contract over time as performance abligations are completed is in respect of the input
costs incurred and the attributable margin. The latter is particularly a judgement in respect of estimating the cost to complete on 3 particular
contract and the remaining risk and associated contingency. The Directors make use of manthly project {contract) control processes in each
business within the Group to monitar and review cost to complete estimates and the utihisation or release of risk contingencies with each contract.
This cost contingency takes account of the stage that the contract has reached and any judgement and uncertainty remaiming to deliver the
remainder of the contract. It is usual for these cost contingencies to reduce as the contract progresses and risk and uncertanty reduces.

Other
Where a reasonably possible change in a key assumption could give rnise to a change in the amount reported, this 1s disclosed within
the relevant note to the accounts.

Standards and interpretations issued as at 23 July 2019 not applied to these financial statements
A number of other standard amendments and IFRS Interpretations Committee {IFRS IC) interpretations have been issued and are yet
to be applied by the Group. The most sigmificant of these is:

IFRS 16 “Leases”. This standard was issued on 13 January 2016 and Is effective from 1 January 2018 and will first apply to the Group's
financial reporting for the year ending 30 April 2020. The estimated impact of this standard on the Group I1s reported in note 24.

IFRSIC 23 “Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments”. This interpretation was issued on 7 June 2017 and is effective from 1 ianuary 2019 and
will first apply to the Group's financial reporting for the year ending 30 April 2020. The Group currently takes a cautious approach to recognition
of R&D tax credits for periods that are still open. As at 30 Apnl 2019, a provision of £234,000 was recognised against R&D tax credit claims
made in the final 2nd early build computations for 2017/18 and 2018/19. The Group considers this level of provision as not material.

Five-year record

208 2017 20186

2019 trustared’) frestamed ) Irestate.t”) 2J15
Headliine results (£'000)
Revenue 121,182 110,547 112,994 111,827 99,938
Adjusted operating profit 16,164 15,225 14,399 11,722 10,085
Operating profit 5,944 10,262 873 5,066 5,865
Adjusted earnings per share {pence)
Basic 33.60 29.08 2771 2577 20.45
Diluted 3341 2879 2734 26.27 20.00
Statutory earnings per share [pence}
Basic 13.37 18.95 B.87 1848 14.04
Diluted 13.29 1876 875 18.14 13.74
Dividend per share (pence) 9.1 8.2 7.1 6.0 50
Net operating cash flow {£'000) 8,635 13,220 555 6,718 18,798
Net {debt}/funds {(£7000} {6,424) 11,338 8,472 19,805 19,687
Order intake (Em) 189.9 76.6 108.6 94.8 114.3
Order book {£m) 190.9° 103.8 136.2- 116.8 134.0°

1 Tnearder ook at 380 Apn 2019 alter including the acqguired arder hook of Chess (F20 tm) oa 12 December 2018,
2 The orcer nook at 3G apnl 2017 1= after mc!umng the acquired order boo< af E D{£23 1mj on 23 June 2016
2 Theorder boow at 30 Apr ) 2015 s alter ircluding the acauired erder bocks 09 MCLIES dm) or 9 July 201d and J=5{£32 &m} an 1 October 2014

4 Prigr year comarat ves have bee restated Dpon the Group s adoptior of IFRS 15 'Revenue trom Contracts with Custonre<” Sea note 30 far dets s regarding the mestatenent
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Glossary of terms

45 Cormmand, contral, commanizat ons,

C457AR Command, captool, cormmunicat 003,

COMNT - Cormmumzat orsaintell.gence

comaoutars ard informanos systems

COmpuTars, htef‘\gem:e, sarertarie, tatger a0y Atior a0 r2I0nalsignte

C-uay Courier Jrmanaed A Yacie

Jab un iz States Depariment of Defence

D515 Defzrce Schiac! of Commeomcat ons 2nd Information Systers
D5F Defarce ang Secur-ty Equiament Internationa event

OTFS Dgital traffiz anforcement systems

ECS Fxternal communications system

Ew Eiectromec warfare

EWOS Electronic warfare operational support

FILS Future individuai fethality system

ISTAR Intelligence, survelllance, target acguisition and reconnaissance

JEWCS Joint

Electranic Warfare Core Staff

MOD Ministry of Defence

NATG North Atlantic Treaty Organisation
PES Parking enforcement solution
RAF Royal Air Force

RN Royal Navy

SERFCA South East Reserve Forces and Cadets Association

SIGINT  Signa

Is intelligence

SSAFA Seldiers, Saiiors, Airmen and Families Association
SSP Software solutions and products
VR Virtual reality

Please visit the listed web sites for more information on products mentioned in this report:

Chess — chess-dynamics.com

AUDS
Air Guard
Air Shield

EID —eid pt

MASS — mass.co.
CounterworX
NEWTS
SHEPHERD
THURBCN

uk

MCL - marlboroughcomms.com

SEA - sea.co.uk

KRAIT defence system

Terpedo launche
Roadflow

Cohartplc.com

1 systerm
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Shareholder information, financial calendar and advisers

Advisers

Nominated adviser and broker

Investec
30 Grasham Streot

~ondon BC2Y 7QP

Auditor

KPMG LLP

Chartered AccoLntares
Arlington Bus ness Parg
Thealz

Reading RG7 45D

Tax advisers
Deloitte LLP
Abbots House
Abbey Street
Reading RG1 3BD

Legal advisers
Shoosmiths LLP
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading RG1 15H

Registrars

Link Asset Services
The Regstry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Public and investor relations

MHP Communications
6 Agar Sireet
London WC2N 4HN

Bankers
Lloyds Bank

The Atrium
Davidson House
Forbury Square
Reading RG1 3EU

NatWest Bank
Abbey Gardens
4 Abbey Street
Reading RG1 3BA

Shareholders’ enquiries

If yo. have a1 2aquiry about b Tompany's
busimess, o7 about sometr ng a‘fecning you
35 3 snareboldergtaer than quer 2s which
are dealt witk oy ne regstrars), Jou shollz
cortazt the Company Secratany, by lettar
10 the Comrpany’s ~egistered o ice or by
emal to nfo@conoriplc.com

Share register
Link Assat Services maintains the register
of members of the Company.

If you have any guestions about your
personal holding of the Company’s shares,
please contact:

Link Asset Services
Shareholder Selutions
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone: 0871 664 0300 (calls are
charged at 12 pence per minute plus your
phone provider’s access charge). (From
outside the UK +44 371 664 0300, calls will
be charged at the applicable international
rate) Lines are open 9.00am to 5.30pm,
Monday to Friday, excluding public
holidays in England and Wales.

Email: shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

If you change your name or address

or if details on the envelope enclosed
with this report, including your postcode,
are Incorrect or incomplete, please
notify the registrars in writing.

Daily share price listings
The Financial Times — AIM, Aerospace
and Defence

The Times — Engineering
The Daily Telegraph — AtM secticn

Londen Evening Standard — AIM section
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Financial calendar

Annual General Meeting
17 Seatemuer 2019

Final dividend payable

18 Seo ember 2019

Expected announcements
of results for the year ending
30 April 2021

Preliminary half year announcement
12 December 2019

Preliminary full year

announcement
July 2020

Registered office
Cohort plc

One Waterside Drive
Arlingtan Business Park
Theale

Reading RG7 45W

Registered company number
of Cohort plc
05684823

Cohort ple is a company registered
in England and Wales.
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